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Directors and Senior Management
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As at 20 March 2025, the date of this annual report, the
biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are as follows:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

XU WENSHENG, Chairman

Mr. Xu, age 56, is the Chairman and an Executive Director of the
Company and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
He graduated from the Dalian University of Technology with
a bachelor’s degree in computer science and engineering and
has extensive experience in computer systems integration of the
financial industry. Mr. Xu is also a director of Hi Sun Limited
(“HSL"), a substantial shareholder of the Company. Prior to joining
the Group in 2003, Mr. Xu was the president of a system integration
company.

KUI MAN CHUN, Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Kui, age 58, is the Chief Executive Officer and an Executive
Director of the Company and a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Company. He graduated from the Peking University with a
master’s degree in international relations and has over 33 years of
experience in the information technology industry and investment
activities. Mr. Kui is also the chairman, chief executive officer and
a director of HSL. Prior to joining the Group and HSL in 2000, Mr.
Kui was the president of an enterprise in the PRC.

LI WENJIN

Mr. Li, age 61, is an Executive Director and a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. He graduated from the Peking
University with a master’s degree in law. He has over 32 years
of experience in investment and administrative affairs. Mr. Li is
also a director of HSL. Prior to joining HSL in 1999, he worked
for several companies in the PRC and Hong Kong. Mr. Li has also
been appointed as an executive director of PAX Global Technology
Limited, an associated corporation of the Company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, since 24 February 2010. He
joined the Group in 2000.

XU CHANGJUN

Mr. Xu, age 58, is an Executive Director and a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. He graduated from the Peking
University with a master’s degree in international economics. Prior
to joining the Group in 2001, Mr. Xu worked for several companies
in the PRC and Hong Kong. He has over 32 years of experience in
corporate management of enterprises in Hong Kong and the PRC.
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Directors and Senior Management

HUI' LOK YAN

Ms. Hui, age 46, is an Executive Director, the Chief Financial
Officer and Joint Company Secretary of the Company and a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. She graduated
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s
degree in business administration. Ms. Hui is currently a certified
public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Prior to joining the Group in 2007, she was a manager
of an international public accountancy firm.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

TAM CHUN FAI

Mr. Tam, age 62, is an Independent Non-Executive Director. He
graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a
bachelor of arts degree in accountancy. Mr. Tam is a member
of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
member of Chartered Financial Analyst and has over 33 vyears
of experience in auditing, corporate advisory services as well as
financial management and compliance work. Mr. Tam is currently
an independent non-executive director of KWG Group Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange. He joined the
Group in 2004.

LEUNG WAI MAN, ROGER

Mr. Leung, age 68, is an Independent Non-Executive Director. He
obtained a bachelor’s degree in law and a postgraduate certificate
in laws from the University of Hong Kong. He also obtained a Juris
Doctor degree from the University of Western Ontario, Canada.
Mr. Leung has been a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong since
1984 and is now a partner of the law firm, Messrs Foo, Leung &
Yeung. He was also admitted as a solicitor in England and Wales
and as a barrister, solicitor and notary public in Ontario, Canada.
Mr. Leung has extensive working experience in law both in Hong
Kong and Canada. He served as a member of the Inland Revenue
Board of Review from 1997 to 2005 and has been appointed as a
China-appointed Attesting Officer since January 2003. Mr. Leung
is currently an independent non-executive director of China Boton
Group Company Limited and UBTECH ROBOTICS CORP LTD, both
of which are listed on the Stock Exchange. He joined the Group in
2004.

LI HEGUO

Mr. Li, age 59, is an Independent Non-Executive Director. Mr. Li
graduated from the Peking University with a bachelor’s degree in
international economics and a master’s degree in economics. From
July 1992 to June 2007, Mr. Li worked for China Baoan Group
Co., LTD., a company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange, and its
subsidiaries, including Beijing Heng-Feng Real Estate Development
Company Limited QER1EE FE M ZE 2 5]) serving as the President
and General Manager. Mr. Li has over 30 years of experience
in corporate management and strategic development. Mr. Li is
currently serving as the General Manager in strategic development
department of Fu Shou Yuan International Group Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange. He joined the Group in
2021.
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Directors and Senior Management

e R AR

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

LI HUIMIN

Mr. Li, age 45, is the President of BE/T{IZ 4B RAF (unofficial
English translation being VBill Payment Co. Ltd.) (“VBill OPCO").
He graduated from the Hubei University of Technology with a
bachelor’s degree in electrical technology. He has over 18 years of
experience in third-party payment industry management. He joined
the Group in 2008.

LIU SHAOQING

Mr. Liu, age 46, is the Vice President of J0RPEE EHER AR
‘A8] (“Beijing Suixin Yunlian”). He graduated from the Hunan
University of Arts and Science with a bachelor’s degree in internet of
things engineering. He has over 22 years of experience in business
expansion cooperation with banks, marketing and third-party
payment industry management. He joined the Group in 2017.

FENG FAN

Mr. Feng, age 32, is the Chief Executive Officer of Hunan Hisun
Mobile Pay IT Limited. He graduated from the Peking University
with a bachelor’s degree in finance and a master’s degree in finance.
He has over 10 years of experience in the corporate service and
information technology industry. He joined the Group in 2021.

LIANG JING JING

Mr. Liang, age 43, is the President of Shenzhen Hi Sun FinTech
Global Limited (“Shenzhen Hi Sun”). He graduated from the Central
South University with a bachelor’s degree in telecommunications
engineering. He also received a master’s degree in Engineering
Project Management from the Shanghai Jiao Tong University and a
master’s degree in business administration from the China Europe
International Business School. He has over 21 years of experience
in the information technology industry. He joined the Group in
2003.

LIU XIAOZHEN

Mr. Liu, age 42, is the President of Beijing Hi Sun Advanced
Business Solutions Information Technology Limited (“BJ ABS”).
He graduated from the Shenzhen University with a bachelor’s
degree in engineering. He also received a master’s degree in
science in innovation management from Audencia Business School
(AUPENCIA). He has over 20 years of experience in the financial
technology industry. He joined the Group in 2004.

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024

REIRE

HEH

S s 455% 0 AT BRAR (THE1TT)) 42
HoBBENPILTEARZ - HASE ﬁﬁmmi@
Lo W BE = AT ATESTESEmEE 1/ \ LK -
R _EZN\FEMALRER-

R Tt

F L EE

21555 4658 BILRBEEERBRABRAB( IR
BEIEE=8E)) RIS - REBEFHE RSN FEY)
B IREXB TR KN IRTEFNESE &
HhE=ZAXNTEEESEES -+ ZF&58-
BN T —CFMALER -

Ea/)

W 325 il e BB E BRI ARART
BHRE - REENERAR - FAESMB LB I
EIRAEETFEMBL R - RN EERBEE
ARBATESERETEER RN - —F
AZEEH -

R B g

REL B HRYBBEXRRARAR (TR
=5 BE - REXNFEAS FAEBEILESEL
B -KIFELBRBAERTIEBEEEERRLT
BURTHRERIHSERET IHEERTSE-
RNERRMITESAERRE _+—F&R KN
TR FNALER -

FEz=Z
5% 25 RIRBBEEEEERMARAE
(MERBBEE)) B - REBENRIKRE KA
BELTEM - RTEZEEESSTHERE TR
MEEESRT S - RNERMBRITESERR
T EER RN _EEMEMALER-



L -y — L L B
Hy, "0y Ny Tny EEEEEEEEERR aul
iy -,"'u:"'n:"ll.:::"'"----:-n--II""_:.--l
Ny "r,"n..l"l- st EEmgs EmEmaEEERRRC gt
iy | e s =-n
|r' by » "im. e l-—.._:.. '.-..Et:_--li'----

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Hi Sun Technology (China) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”), | would like to present to our
shareholders the annual report of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2024 (“FY2024").

In June 2024, the Shanghai Stock Exchange formally approved the
withdrawal application of Megahunt, an associated company of the
Company, for listing of its shares on the Science and Technology
Innovate Board of the Shanghai Stock Exchange filed in light of
its strategic planning and the recent capital market environment.
Megahunt will continue to explore further business and fundraising
opportunities as and when appropriate.

Following the completions of the disposal of the entire equity
interests in two indirect wholly— owned subsidiaries of the Company
in July and August 2024, the Group has ceased its electronic
power meters and solutions business accordingly. The disposal
would streamline operations and enable the Group to optimise the
allocation of its resources to refocus on its principal businesses and
reduce the ongoing loss of the disposal companies and improve the
overall financial performance of the Group, ultimately enhancing
shareholders” values.

OVERALL PERFORMANCE

We are optimistic about the momentum of national economic
recovery and expect the economic outlook and operating
environment to remain challenging in 2025. Consolidated turnover
of the Group amounted to HK$2,340.0 million, representing a
decrease of 14% in FY 2024 as compared to HK$2,709.2 million in
FY2023. The Group’s share of results from an associated company,
PAX Global in FY2024, decreased by 38% as compared to FY2023.
Profit for FY2024 totaled HK$176.6 million as compared to
HK$514.4 million in FY2023.
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Letter from the Board

HEH G

The significant decrease in operating profit is mainly attributable
to the reduced interest income and operating profit under the
fintech services segment due to a decline in volume of loans
granted given the recent economic conditions and expected
rise in default rates. During 2024, the digital payment volume
experienced significant growth, achieving a year-on-year growth
of more than 35%, while the handling fee rate of digital payment
is lower than that of traditional payment at its expansion stage.
Further replacement of the traditional payment market by digital
payments has resulted in a decrease in revenue and operating profit.
Meanwhile, more resources were allocated to the overseas and
cross-border businesses. Cross-border transaction volume achieved
a year-on-year growth of more than 70%. On the other hand, our
Paa$ platform continues to bring in new partners, covering multiple
business transactions across various sectors, including catering,
retail, second-hand car trading market, gas station, hotel, tourist
attraction, wet market, property management and campus payment.
Despite the expected short-term pressure during the phase of
digital transformation, the Group firmly believes that this strategic
adjustment will lay the cornerstone for more stable development in
the future.

Combined with our strong financial position, management will
remain focused on financial and operation disciplines and take
hold of various opportunities for the Group’s business growth in
2025. Meanwhile, we would like to take this opportunity to express
our utmost gratitude to our customers, bankers, suppliers, business
associates and most valued shareholders for their continuous trust
and support to the Group.

On behalf of the Board

Xu Wensheng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 March 2025
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE AND BUSINESS
OUTLOOK

Review of business performance of the Group during the reporting
year and the Group’s business outlook are disclosed in the section
titled “Business Review” in the Report of the Directors.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2024, the Group reported total assets of
HK$11,858.8 million (2023: HK$13,031.7 million), which
were financed by total liabilities of HK$4,135.9 million (2023:
HK$5,253.7 million) and total equity of HK$7,722.9 million (2023:
HK$7,778.0 million). The net asset value was HK$7,722.9 million
(2023: HK$7,778.0 million). Net assets per share amounted to
HK$2.781 as compared to HK$2.801 per share as at 31 December
2023.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had restricted bank balances
of HK$2,593.9 million (2023: HK$3,542.3 million), cash and cash
equivalents of HK$3,011.3 million (2023: HK$3,482.0 million),
time deposit of HK$442.5 million (2023: nil) and short-term bank
borrowings of HK$82.1 million (2023: HK$42.7 million). The net
cash position was HK$3,371.7 million (2023: HK$3,439.3 million).
The gearing ratio is calculated as total debt divided by total capital,
while total debt includes bank borrowings and lease liabilities of the
Group. The gearing ratio was 1.5% (2023: 1.1%). The gearing ratio
is considered healthy and suitable for the continuing growth of the
Group’s business.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND DETAILS OF CHARGES

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had bank borrowings of
HK$82.1 million (2023: HK$42.7 million) carrying fixed interest
rates (2023: same) and banking facilities of approximately
HK$213.8 million (2023: HK$277.0 million). As at 31 December
2024, no banking facility was secured by the Group’s assets. As at
31 December 2023, banking facility amounted to HK$23.9 million
was secured by leasehold land and buildings, with a net carrying
amount of HK$2.6 million and HK$2.6 million respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB o YL B

The Group’s restricted bank balances and cash and cash equivalents
were principally denominated in Renminbi, Hong Kong dollar,
US dollar, Euro, Japanese Yen, British Pound, Singapore dollar
and Canadian dollar in the respective amount of approximately
HK$3,916.2 million, HK$654.0 million, HK$983.3 million,
HK$34.0 million, HK$5.2 million, HK$5.0 million, HK$3.2 million
and HK$2.8 million as at 31 December 2024.

Approximately HK$5,793.6 million, HK$573.1 million, HK$558.2
million, HK$54.2 million, HK$32.9 million, HK$6.6 million,
HK$2.4 million and HK$2.0 million of the Group's restricted
bank balances and cash and cash equivalents were principally
denominated in Renminbi, Hong Kong dollar, US dollar, Euro,
British Pound, Japanese Yen, Singapore dollar and Czech Koruna
respectively as at 31 December 2023.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

Save as disclosed in note (E) under the section titled “Overall
Financial Results and Position” in the Report of Directors on
pages 31 to 33, the Group held no significant investment as at
31 December 2024.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section titled “Key Investing and Financing
Activities” on pages 38, the Group had no material acquisition or
disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the
year ended 31 December 2024.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

There was no specific plan for material investments or capital assets
as at 31 December 2024.

EXCHANGE RATES EXPOSURE

The Group derives its revenue, makes purchases and incurs
expenses denominated mainly in US dollar, Renminbi, Euro,
British Pound, Japanese Yen, Singapore dollar, Canadian dollar and
Hong Kong dollar. Currently, the Group has not entered into any
agreements or purchased any instruments to hedge the Group’s
exchange rate risks. Any material fluctuation in the exchange rates
of Hong Kong dollar or Renminbi may have an impact on the
operating results of the Group.

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

(i)

(ii)

In 2019, the Company entered into a guarantee agreement (the
“2019 Manufacturer Guarantee Agreement”) with a subsidiary
and two then subsidiaries (both became associates of the
Company since May 2022) of the Company, pursuant to which
the Company shall guarantee to repay the due and unsettled
debts of the said associates individually and/or collectively
of up to US$10 million (equivalent to approximately HK$78
million) incurred in relation to manufacturing orders placed
against a named manufacturer, should any of the said
subsidiary/associates individually and/or collectively cease or
fail to honour its payment obligations.

In respect of the further expansion of order scale, the Company
entered into another guarantee agreement in 2021 (the
“2021 Manufacturer Guarantee Agreement”) with the same
counterparties, pursuant to which the amount of guarantee was
increased to up to US$20 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$156 million) and the 2019 Manufacturer Guarantee
Agreement was terminated and the entirety of the Company’s
obligations and liability thereunder, if any, was effectively
transferred to the 2021 Manufacturer Guarantee Agreement.

In 2020, the Company entered into a guarantee agreement (the
“2020 OEM Guarantee Agreement”) with a then subsidiary of
the Company (an associate of the Company since May 2022)
and an independent manufacturer (“OEM”), pursuant to which
the Company shall guarantee to repay the said associate’s
due and unsettled debts of up to US$10 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$78 million) owed to the OEM incurred
in relation to manufacturing orders placed against the OEM
should the associate cease or fail to honour its payment
obligations.

As at 31 December 2024, the provision for the 2021 Manufacturer
Guarantee Agreement and the 2020 OEM Guarantee Agreement
was assessed to be immaterial (2023: same).

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no material financial

guarantee or contingent liability as at 31 December 2024.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB o YL B

EMPLOYEES

The total number of employees of the Group as at 31 December
2024 was 2,411. The breakdown of employees by division is as

B&

FERNR_ZE_NF+_A=+—HZEEBRHES
2,41 N EEIZEFIADUT ¢

follows:
Payment and digital services XA R FAERRTS 1,168
Fintech services ERRIR RS 97
Platform operation solutions TREEMRAE 608
Financial solutions ERURIR S 482
Others Hith 14
Corporate office 4y 42
2,411

The Group ensures that its employees’ remuneration packages are
comprehensive and competitive. Directors are entitled to a fixed
director’s fee, discretionary bonus and other benefits, which are
determined with reference to the performance of the individual and
the Company, market practice and conditions as well as the Group’s
corporate goals and objectives in accordance with the remuneration
policy of the Company. Employees are remunerated with fixed
monthly income plus annual performance related bonuses. The
Group also operates share option schemes and share award scheme
for the purpose of attracting, retaining, motivating and rewarding
the employees. The Group also sponsors selected employees to
attend external training courses that suit the needs of the Group's
businesses.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Disclaimer:
Non-GAAP measures

Certain non-GAAP (generally accepted accounting principles)
measures, such as EBITDA, are used for assessing the Group's
performance. These non-GAAP measures are not expressly
permitted measures under GAAP in Hong Kong and may not
be comparable to similarly titled measures for other companies.
Accordingly, such non-GAAP measures should not be considered as
an alternative to operating income as an indicator of the operating
performance of the Group or as an alternative to cash flows from
operating activities as a measure of liquidity. The use of non-GAAP
measures is provided solely to enhance the overall understanding
of the Group’s current financial performance. Additionally, as
the Group has historically reported certain non-GAAP results to
investors, the Group considers the inclusion of non-GAAP measures
provides consistency in our financial reporting.
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Report of the Directors

HEEgRS

The Directors hereby present their report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Group are provision of payment and
digital services, fintech services, platform operation solutions and
financial solutions.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business
and geographical segments is set out in note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 106.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of dividend for the
year (2023: Nil).

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and in notes 27 and 36 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTIONS, SHARE AWARDS
AND EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Details of the share capital are set out in note 26 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Share Schemes of the Company

The Company operated the following share schemes pursuant to
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December
2024:

e the share option scheme adopted on 12 June 2023 (the “Share
Option Scheme”)

e the share award scheme adopted on 29 June 2021 (the “Share
Award Scheme”)
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Share Option Scheme of the Company

The Company operates the Share Option Scheme for the purpose of
incentivizing and rewarding the participants for their contribution or
potential contribution to the growth and development of the Group,
recruiting and retaining high-calibre participants and attracting
human resources that are valuable to the Group.

Participants include directors and employees of (a) the Group
(including persons who are granted options under the scheme as an
inducement to enter into employment contracts with any member
company of the Group) (“Group Employee Participants”); and (b) the
holding companies, fellow subsidiaries or associated companies of
the Company. The scheme, unless otherwise cancelled or amended,
will remain valid and effective for a period of 10 years from its
adoption until 11 June 2033.

The number of Shares issued and may be issued upon exercise
of all options and awards granted (excluding any lapsed options
and awards) under the share schemes of the Company to each
participant in any 12-month period shall not in aggregate exceed
1% of the number of Shares in issue. For options granted to a
substantial Shareholder or an Independent Non-Executive Director,
or any of their respective associates, the said limit is reduced to
0.1%. Any further grant of options in excess of such limits must be
approved by the Shareholders in general meeting with the relevant
participant, his/her associates or close associates (as the case
maybe) and/or all core connected persons of the Company (as the
case maybe) abstaining from voting.

The exercise period of the options granted shall be determined at
the discretion of the Board and shall expire within 10 years from the
date of grant.

The vesting period in respect of any option granted shall not be
less than 12 months, save that the Remuneration Committee or
the Directors (as the case maybe) may determine a shorter vesting
period for any Group Employee Participant if a shorter vesting
period is considered appropriate to align with the purpose of the
scheme.

Each grantee shall, within 21 days of the offer, pay a nominal
consideration of HK$1 to the Company upon acceptance of the
options granted.

The exercise price of an option shall be determined at the discretion
of the Board and shall not be less than the higher of (i) the closing
price of the Shares on the date of grant, which must be a trading
day; and (ii) the average closing price of the Shares for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of grant.
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Report of the Directors

HPEFWE

No option was granted, vested, exercised, cancelled or lapsed
since the adoption of the scheme and during the year ended 31
December 2024. 227,683,383 options were available for grant as
at 1 January 2024 and 31 December 2024. As at the date of this
annual report, 277,683,383 Shares were available for issue under
the scheme, representing 10% of the total number of Shares in
issue.

Further details of the scheme can be found in the circular of the
Company dated 25 May 2023.

Share Award Scheme of the Company

The Company operates the Share Award Scheme for the purpose of
(i) recognising and rewarding the contribution of the participants to
the growth and development of the Group and to provide incentives
in order to retain them for continual operation and development
of the Group; and (ii) attracting suitable personnel for further
development of the Group. The scheme, unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, will remain valid and effective for a period of 10 years
from 29 June 2021 (the “Adoption Date”) until 29 June 2031.

Participants include any (i) employee, (ii) non-Executive Directors
(including Independent Non-Executive Directors) or (iii) adviser
(professional or otherwise), consultant to or expert in any area of
business or business development of any member of the Group
or any entity in which any member of the Group holds any equity
interest; and (iv) any other group or classes of participants who have
contributed or may contribute by way of joint venture, business
alliance or other business arrangement to the development and
growth of the Group.

The scheme is operated by an independent trustee which may
purchase the existing Shares from and/or off the market by utilising
the funds allocated by the Board out of the Company’s resources
and be held in trust for the relevant selected participants until such
Shares are vested. For the avoidance of doubt, no new Share(s) will
be issued and allotted by the Company pursuant to the scheme.

The total number of Shares which may be issued subject to any
awards granted to each participant shall not exceed 1.5% of the
issued Shares as at the Adoption Date.

Awards granted are subject to such vesting conditions and/or vesting
periods as determined by the Board. Each participant shall pay a
nominal consideration of HK$1 to the Company upon acceptance
of the award granted.
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No award was granted, vested, cancelled or lapsed during the year
ended 31 December 2024. 245,688,383 awards were available for
grant as at 1 January 2024 and 31 December 2024. As at the date
of this annual report, up to 245,688,383 Shares may be purchased
by the independent trustee and available for grant under the Share
Award Scheme, representing approximately 8.85% of the total
number of Shares in issue.

Further details of the scheme are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 29 June 2021.

No Shares may be issued in respect of options and awards granted
under all share schemes of the Company during the year since
neither options nor awards were granted and/or vested during the
year.

Other Share Schemes
During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group also operated
the following share schemes:

e the share option scheme adopted by VBill (Cayman) Limited on
12 June 2023 (the “VBill (Cayman) Scheme Option Scheme”)
pursuant to Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules;

e the share option scheme adopted by VBill OPCO on 5 February
2018 (the “VBill OPCO Scheme Option Scheme”) which
expired on 6 February 2024 pursuant to Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules; and

e the Shenzhen Hi Sun Share Incentive Scheme adopted by
Shenzhen Hi Sun on 20 May 2024.

VBill (Cayman) Share Option Scheme

VBill (Cayman) operates the New VBill (Cayman) Share Option
Scheme for the purpose of incentivizing and rewarding the
participants for their contribution or potential contribution to the
growth and development of the VBill (Cayman) Group, recruiting
and retaining high-calibre participants and attracting human
resources that are valuable to the VBill (Cayman) Group.

Participants include directors and employees of (a) the VABIill
(Cayman) Group (including persons who are granted options under
the scheme as an inducement to enter into employment contracts
with the member companies of the VBill (Cayman) Group) (the
“VBill (Cayman) Group Employee Participants”); and (b) the holding
companies, fellow subsidiaries or associated companies of VBill
(Cayman). The scheme, unless otherwise cancelled or amended,
will remain valid and effective for a period of 10 years until 11 June
2033.
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Report of the Directors

HPEFWE

The number of VBill (Cayman) Shares issued and may be issued
upon exercise of all options and awards granted (excluding any
lapsed options and awards) under the share schemes of VBill
(Cayman) to each participant in any 12-month period shall not
in aggregate exceed 1% of the number of VBill (Cayman) Shares
in issue. For options granted to a substantial Shareholder or an
Independent Non-Executive Director, or any of their respective
associates, the said limit is reduced to 0.1%. Any further grant
of options in excess of such limits must be approved by the
Shareholders in general meeting with the relevant participant, his/
her associates or close associates (as the case maybe) and/or all core
connected persons of the Company (as the case maybe) abstaining
from voting.

The exercise period of the options granted shall be determined at
the discretion of the Board and shall expire within 10 years from the
date of grant.

The vesting period in respect of any option granted shall not be
less than 12 months, save that the Remuneration Committee or
the Directors (as the case maybe) may determine a shorter vesting
period for any VBill (Cayman) Group Employee Participant if a
shorter vesting period is considered appropriate to align with the
purpose of the scheme.

Each participant shall, within 21 days of the grant, pay a nominal
consideration of HK$1 to VBill (Cayman) upon acceptance of the
options granted.

The subscription price shall be determined at the discretion of the
board of directors of VBill (Cayman), but shall not be less than the
nominal value of a VBill (Cayman) Share.

800 options were available for grant under the scheme as at
1 January 2024 and 31 December 2024. No option was granted,
vested, exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the year ended 31
December 2024. As at 31 December 2024 and the date of this
annual report, there was no outstanding option granted under the
New VBill (Cayman) Share Option Scheme.

As at the date of this annual report, 800 VBill (Cayman) Shares were
available for issue under the New VBill (Cayman) Share Option
Scheme, representing 10% of the total number of VBill (Cayman)
Shares in issue.

Further details of the scheme can be found in the circular of the
Company dated 25 May 2023.
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Share Option Scheme of VBill OPCO

VBill OPCO operated a share option scheme (“VBill OPCO Share
Option Scheme”) which was adopted on 15 January 2018 and
became effective on 5 February 2018, pursuant to Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules. Certain terms of the scheme and the options granted
thereunder were amended by the Shareholders at the Company’s
special general meeting held on 18 November 2020. The scheme
remained effective for a term of 6 years until 5 February 2024.

The purpose of the VBill OPCO Share Option Scheme was to
incentivize or reward the participants for their contribution or
potential contribution to VBill OPCO and its subsidiaries (“VBill
OPCO Group”). Participants included any directors, supervisors,
general managers and other employees of any member of VBill
OPCO Group.

The registered capital of VBill OPCO (“VBill OPCO Registered
Capital”) contributed and to be contributed upon exercise of the
options granted to each participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period should not exceed 1%
of the VBill OPCO Registered Capital. For options granted or to be
granted to any substantial Shareholder, Independent Non-Executive
Director, or their respective associates, the said limit should be
reduced to 0.1%. Any further grant options in excess of such limits
should be approved by the Shareholders in general meeting with
the relevant participant, his/her associates or close associates (as the
case maybe) and/or all core connected persons of the Company (as
the case maybe) abstaining from voting.

The exercise period should be determined by VBill OPCO’s board of
directors and should be within 6 years from the date of grant.

The board of directors of VBill OPCO should determine on a case-
by-case basis or generally any minimum holding period for which
an option may be exercised as considered appropriate.

Each participant should, within 7 days after the grant, pay a nominal
consideration of RMB1 to VBill OPCO upon acceptance of the
options granted.

The subscription price should be determined by the board of
directors of VBill OPCO in its absolute discretion, with reference to
factors which may include the business performance, value of VBill
OPCO Group and the participant’s individual performance, but in
any event, shall not be less than the net asset value of the relevant
equity interests of VBill OPCO subject to the options calculated
based on the latest audited accounts of VBill OPCO.
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The following table sets out the movements of the options granted

during the year ended 31 December 2024:

TREPEEZE_NF+_B=1+—HILLFERKR
H o RG> S E ¢

Amount of VBill OPCO Registered Capital subject to the options granted
R HERERRNEITVERREEE

Exercise
price
(for every Options Options Options
RMB1 in the outstanding Options Options lapsed/ outstanding
VBill OPCO as at granted exercised cancelled as at
Registered 1 January during during during 31 December
Grantee Date of grant Capital) 2024 the year the year the year 2024
e RIF-DE RZZZRE
(BBfTfTsE M —BA—H +ZA=+-H
REHE FET FARE  FRET FREY/ REITE
EEA KB AE®17) ke Bk Bk EHERE ke
RMB RMB RMB
ARET ARBT ARET
Mr. Shen Zheng* 5 February 2018 12.51 13,629,500 - - 13,629,500 -
b “Z-)\E”H1H
Mr. Li Huimin” 5 February 2018 12.51 6,814,750 - - 6,814,750 -
REgmEE “Z-)\¥-RiA
Mr. Guo Yi# 5 February 2018 12.51 6,814,750 - - 6,814,750 -
BHEKLE “Z-)\E”_BxH
Total: 27,259,000° - - 27,259,000° -
A5t

*  Mr. Shen Zheng is a director and the chairman of the board of VBill OPCO

and a director of certain members of the VBill OPCO Group.

" Mr. Li Huimin is the President of VBill OPCO.

Mr. Guo Yi is the senior vice president of VBill OPCO.

@ Exercise period of these options ended on 5 February 2024 (the 6th
anniversary of the date of grant).

As at 1 January 2024, upon and following its termination on 6
February 2024, no option was available for grant, hence no VBill
OPCO Registered Capital was available for issue under the VBill

OPCO Share Option

Scheme.

Further details of the scheme can be found in the circulars of the

Company dated 19 January 2018 and 28 October 2020.
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Shenzhen Hi Sun Share Incentive Scheme

Shenzhen Hi Sun, an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, operates a share incentive scheme (“Shenzhen Hi
Sun Share Incentive Scheme”) for the purpose of (i) strengthening
the workforce, aligning the interests of Shenzhen Hi Sun with its
shareholders and core employees; and (ii) enhancing the core
competitiveness, to build Shenzhen Hi Sun into China’s leading
financial technology overseas enterprise in three years, and to
maximise the value of Shenzhen Hi Sun for its shareholders.

The scheme, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain
valid and effective for a period of 3 years from 20 May 2024 to 19
May 2027.

Pursuant to the Shenzhen Hi Sun Share Incentive Scheme,
Shenzhen Hi Sun shall grant options to the scheme participants, i.e.
employees of Shenzhen Hi Sun who are also the general or limited
partners of a shareholding platform (“Shareholding Platform”) as at
the date of adoption of the scheme, to subscribe for a maximum of
RMB7,500,000 new registered capital of Shenzhen Hi Sun (each
RMBT1 registered capital representing one “Option Share”) at the
subscription price of RMB1.5 for each Option Share. All the Option
Shares to be subscribed for under the Shenzhen Hi Sun Share
Incentive Scheme shall be held by the Shareholding Platform.
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The following table sets out the particulars of the options granted
during the year ended 31 December 2024:

TR BEE_E_NF+_B=+—HL=F
ERH 7 EIREES

Options Options
Options Options lapsed/ outstanding
granted exercised cancelled as at
Subscription during during during 31 December
Grantee Date of grant Price the year the year the year 2024
RZZ-NE
ERiiL FERETE FR%®/ +-B=+-H
ARA R EH sBiRE fRlRiE fahafE dHERRE RETERRE
RMB
NI
Shareholding platform* 20 May 2024 1.5 7,500,000.00" = = 7,500,000.00
fRFa* “ETRERRZTH
Notes: Hiat -

As at 31 December 2024, the Shareholding Platform holds 12% of
the registered capital of Shenzhen Hi Sun and Mr. Liang directly and
indirectly, through the Shareholding Platform, holds 26.55% of the
registered capital of Shenzhen Hi Sun.

Mr. Liang Jing Jing, as general partner, is holding approximately 81.82%
of the partnership interest in the Shareholding Platform and each of Mr.
Kang Chuang Sheng and Mr. Zhou Jin Hui, as limited partner, is holding
approximately 9.09% of the partnership interest in the Shareholding
Platform.

Vesting of these options are subject to the fulfillment of the predetermined
financial targets set for the three financial years ending 31 December
2024, 2025 and 2026 (the “Performance Period”).

The vesting of the options is subject to the fulfillment of the

predetermined financial targets of Shenzhen Hi Sun set for (i) each

of the financial years in the Performance Period; and/or (ii) the

entire Performance Period (which may be early fulfilled). Number
of options to be vested depends on the level of financial targets
met and when such financial targets are met. All vested options
may only be exercised within one (1) year from the end of the

Performance Period, subsequent to which all options remaining

unexercised shall lapse unless otherwise agreed by Shenzhen Hi

Sun and the Shareholding Platform.
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Pursuant to the terms of Shenzhen Hi Sun Share Incentive Scheme,
each grantee may elect to request Shenzhen Hi Sun to repurchase
up to 30% of the subscription rights of his/her Option Shares before
the time of exercise at a price to be determined with reference
to the profits of Shenzhen Hi Sun (excluding any share option
expenses) for the financial year preceding the date of exercise,
subject to a maximum repurchase price of RMB10 per Option
Share. In any event, such repurchase shall only be carried out
without adversely affecting the general working capital of Shenzhen
Hi Sun. Assuming the 7,500,000 Share Options are vested and
exercised in full, Shenzhen Hi Sun will cease to be a subsidiary
of the Company as the Company’s interests in Shenzhen Hi Sun
will decrease from 50.91% to 40% (assuming no repurchase) or
approximately 42.75% (assuming 30% of the Option Shares are
repurchased).

Further details of the scheme are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 20 May 2024.

Save as disclosed in this section above, no equity-linked agreement
was entered into by the Group during the year ended 31 December
2024 or subsisted at as 31 December 2024.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2024, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to Shareholders as calculated under the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended) amounted to HK$152,123,000
(2023: HK$137,473,000). The Company’s share premium account,
in the amount of HK$1,290,857,000 (2023: HK$1,290,857,000)
may be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company
to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 248.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any Shares during the year ended 31 December 2024.

Report of the Directors

HPEFHE

RIFRYI SRS B T BIM R SRIB AT
BERFSBREBRETER U2E RIS
BT IR BEENEF CREEEAER
RS MEEERER  BOlHRZ30%0 B
HRERE HBELERSASREBRERDARE
107 IMERAIBER T BREELRETN I EEH RIS
G REEESERTFEENER T ET BXR
7,500,00017 B IR I R BUER B R T 18 AN A AE]
YIS S R F950.91 % B 40% (BRE% I R
[B]) 34942.75% (R EBEB0%IEARERD) » FlE
A BAAATNMBAT

ZEBINE— BN AR HRAR T -NE
IRZ+HRRfe

BRI LEIFTIREE SN A EEMERBEET M
F+A=+—HLEFETUHN T WFE+=
B=+—B&FEZREHDRZE-

RISk

RIBFERE—NN\—FRAEE @] st8 > XAF
R E+ "B =+—H%A152,123,000/87T (Z
LT =4 137,473,000 70) 2 BB HRDIRTE
BoRAB AU RAIIR A D IR D B BERE T A
811,290,857,0005 70 (CE =4 1 1,290,857,0005&
TO) ZFIBe

BrcsthetE

AAB) 2 ABIHRR S B RO A R I i A R R
W2 SORTE B A A B AR RA R LG 2
EHR o

HFMBHHE

AERRBEAEMBEE 2EREERAEE]
EENSE248E ©

BB E « HE B0 S

RBEZ_NF+-_B=1+—HILFE £ARF
HEERME QB HERE - HESBOIEARD

BERE chE) BRAT —ECmEES

23



Report of the Directors

HEEgRS

BUSINESS REVIEW E e
CONDENSED SEGMENT RESULTS ANALYSIS JEREREE DR
Turnover EBITDA?
£ EBITDA?
2024 2023 2024 2023
“EomE EI=FE ZEIRE “RC=F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i TERT FER TERT TER
Payment and digital services S REFRE 1 1,749,898 1,994,129 190,297 297,203
Fintech services ERNERE 2 91,458 200,473 (20,631) 47,748
Platform operation solutions TEEEMAFR 3 146,353 166,856 (3,970) (5,492)
Financial solutions SRRARE 4 285,043 325,437 14,891 (13,515)
Others Hith 5 83,796 46,787 (7,747) (25,069)
Segmental results NEERE 2,356,548 2,733,682 172,840 300,875
Less: Inter-segment turnover B DEEEERE (16,508) (24,518) = =
Total At 2,340,040 2,709,164 172,840 300,875
Depreciation e (66,878) (120,166)
Amortisation i (352) (1,484)
Fair value losses on financial assets at fair value A TE:t AEH (TRATE
through profit or loss (“FVPL"), net SARE)) ZEMBEZ
ATEEETE (8,849) (6,290)
Segmental operating profit LSRR 96,761 172,935
Unallocated other income KDEEMMA 23,094 24,696
Unallocated corporate expenses ApEhERS (113,312) (123,086)

Operating profit, before gain on disposals of KA AEEHERBAR
subsidiaries, net PGyt 6,543 74,545

3

EBITDA is calculated by excluding interest expenses, taxes, depreciation, ¢  EBITDAMD (B G FINMRF] SRS ~ MRI8 T2 ~ #8H

amortisation and fair value losses on financial assets at FVPL, net from AT EFT A BRI BEZ AN EEEFETE
segmental operating profit.

24 HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT  f§BR4REURER R
2024 2023
“ECmE ZEC=fF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Mirsk THET TET
Revenue N A 2,340,040 2,709,164
Cost of sales HEMA C (1,431,238) (1,716,987)
Gross profit £ 908,802 992,177
Other income EftA B 155,170 116,918
Other losses, net HitE18 3% (8,804) (22,432)
Selling expenses HERY C (166,100) (134,484)
Administrative expenses THER ¢ (832,887) (821,129)
Credit impairment loss EERERE C (49,638) (56,505)
Operating profit, before gain on disposals of subsidiaries, net & &#) REEHEMBAT 2 Wi F 5 6,543 74,545
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries, net HEWB AR 2 W FE L 93,226 3,277
Operating profit, after gain on disposals of subsidiaries, net "ags) AELENBAT 2 WGP 99,769 77,822
Share of results of associated companies EEHME s 25 213,160 402,949
Impairment of investment an associated company R—EBEARREZAE E (141,307) =
Gain on deemed acquisition and dilution of interest of RIFBREE-HHEATRE
an associated company Wi 4,906 1,973
Finance costs EEEN (1,895) (3,757)
Profit before income tax BRETSIRANER 174,633 478,987
Income tax credit g s K 1,921 35,387
Profit for the year FERER 176,554 514,374
Profit attributable to: JEAL R
— Owners of the Company - YNCIEZZEPN 157,605 463,432
— Non-controlling interests —JEERER 18,949 50,942
176,554 514,374
Earnings per share for profit attributable to the FRTER AEILERZ HKS$ per share HKS per share
owners of the Company: SRER: gRER BRER
Basic E=%: 0.057 0.169
Diluted #e 0.021 0.133
SR (FE) BIRAR T OEFR
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET GRS EERRR
As at 31 December
®+=ZB=+—H
2024 2023
ZEImE TETCE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
MisE TER TER
ASSETS BE
Investment properties and property, plant and equipment BRENERNE BERZE 45,176 78171
Right-of-use assets FRELE 55,986 69,560
Intangible assets BREE 8,304 2,834
Investments in associated companies REEREZKE E 3,442,562 3,606,250
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BATESI ARGz SREE F 69,415 309,206
Inventories feast 872 19,474
Trade and bills receivables R RN ES G 185,722 177,055
Other financial assets at amortised cost and other current assets BB EZ At EREER
HitRg&E 204,035 200,160
Loan receivables fEWER H 1,785,138 1,536,634
Amounts due from associated companies e E A B 2 2B 6,273 5,000
Current income tax recoverable eI 7,613 3,040
Time deposits EHER [ 442,487 =
Restricted bank balances SRR TR I 2,593,913 3,542,318
Cash and cash equivalents ReEREEEEY I 3,011,282 3,482,016
Total assets EENE 11,858,778 13,031,718
EQUITY i
Capital and reserves attributable to owners of the Company FRAREANEEESRGEE
Share capital PR 6,942 6,942
Reserves e 7,124,249 7,183,993
7,131,191 7,190,935
Non-controlling interests RS 591,685 587,083
Total equity gk 7,722,876 7,778,018
LIABILITIES af
Deferred income tax liabilities FIEFEHREE = 17
Trade payables FEFIER J 427,433 596,415
Payables for payment and digital services business T REFCRBER ZRARE J 2,623,537 3,591,920
Other payables and accruals HMENRUERE A J 925,445 932,745
Amounts due to associated companies RS AR 2B 4,160 4,295
Current income tax liabilities EFERas 37,327 42,136
Lease liabilities HEaRE 35,870 43,484
Bank borrowings BITER 82,130 42,688
Total liabilities BfRAE 4,135,902 5,253,700
Total equity and liabilities Rk aREE 11,858,778 13,031,718
HK$ per share HKS$ per share
si#T SkET
Net assets per share SREEFE 2.781 2.801

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT fSBR4ESIRERE

For the year ended 31 December

BE+ZA=t+—HLEE

2024 2023

—EIQE —EC=E

HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TET

Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities mEEs (Frm) /FsREsE (482,838) 1,205,842

Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities RETHART/ R REFE 73,375 (38,571)

Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities MEEDRE PrE) REFR 314 (1,163,410)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents BERFLLEY CAY) /LM E (409,149) 3,861
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year FNzRERFELEBY 3,482,016 3,537,506
Exchange loss on cash and cash equivalents RERREEBYZEREE (61,585) (59,351)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FERZRAERFLEEN 3,011,282 3,482,016
BT (FE) BRAF —E_MEFR
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2024 (“YEAR 2024"), the
consolidated turnover of the Group amounted to HK$2,340.0
million, representing a decrease of 14% when compared with the
year ended 31 December 2023 (“YEAR 2023"). Profit for the year
totaled HK$176.6 million as compared to HK$514.4 million in
YEAR 2023.

With regard to the balance sheet, the total assets as at 31 December
2024 amounted to HK$11,858.8 million, when compared with
HK$13,031.7 million as at 31 December 2023. As at 31 December
2024, net current assets amounted to HK$3,844.7 million, when
compared with HK$3,958.4 million as at 31 December 2023.

SEGMENT PERFORMANCE REVIEW

(1) Payment and digital services
Key performance indicators

Turnover* =EXEY
EBITDA? EBITDA*
Operating profit S =yl

* Turnover from external customers

‘ EBITDA is calculated by excluding interest expense, taxes, depreciation

and amortisation from segmental operating profit

Segmental turnover amounted to HK$1,749.3 million as
compared to HK$1,993.4 million in YEAR 2023. Segmental
operating profit amounted to HK$141.4 million, 28% down as
compared to YEAR 2023.

The decrease in segmental turnover and segmental operating
profit was primarily attributable to the further replacement
of the traditional payment market by digital payments. While
the digital services business of the Group is in the expansion
stage, the handling fee rate of digital payment is lower than
that of traditional payment. As such, the decline in the overall
transaction volume and average handling fee rate during the
digital transformation period has resulted in a decrease in
revenue and operating profit during the year. At the same time,
the Group was actively making strategic moves to expand its
management service products and platforms as well as cross-
border business. Despite the expected short-term pressure
during the period of digital transformation, the Group firmly
believes that this strategic adjustment will bring about the

cornerstone of more stable development in the future.
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REBEE_ZT_NE+_B=+—HILEEE (=
“NEE)) c RERZ S EEEREA2,340,000,000588
TTBEE_E_=F+_A=+—HtEE(ZZ
T=FE)) BIM4% FENEF] S H%176,600,00078
7o M_E = =FEHI%514,400,00078 7T

HEEEeBXRMs N _ S _NWE+_B=1+—
H>&EEMAEA11,858,800,0008T M=
=+ ZB=+—HHaI%13,031,700,000& T °
A _E_NE+_B=+—H hHBEEFEAS
3,844,700,000870 MK _E_=F+_/F=+—H
81]%3,958,400,00078 7T ©

AR OIS
(1) XAREFIERE
TEXEIERE
2024 2023 Change
—TE k- =)
HK$'000 HK$'000 +/(-)
FET TET
1,749,261 1,993,439 -12%
190,297 297,203 -36%
141,431 196,539 -28%

* RBIEIERZEXE

EBITDARZ D SRS & mF HIFRF R s IR I EE
HINstE

’\*E%¥§EF3’1 749,300,000 75 M — &
=FEA1,993,400,0005 7 o D B E
5FIJ7%141 400,000 B _& __fEFT

Bk28% o

DEEERRRSBEE IRV ETERE
REF A E—TERAEH TS #R
AEBEZHFERBEBRNERER B
HFXMNFEEXBRERZT - HIL >
RBEFCHEABNEEXZERTHET
BEXRTEERFEANBIWA KL E @R
Do [EIR ) AEEE L BT RGBT E
HEERFER FaUARBREE B8
TREAN MF C BB AR R A HA R BE » (B E
EREEERBRABRERABRENRE
ERNER-
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(2) Fintech services (2) TRFEHE RS
Key performance indicators TEXEER
2024 2023 Change
k-l 12} 2 - —— =)
HK$’000 HK$'000 +/(-)
FHET FHET
Turnover* =ES Y 87,799 198,306 -56%
EBITDA? EBITDA? (20,631) 47,748 N/A3E B
— including credit impairment loss —@ 515 & RER B 46,512 54,457 -15%
Operating (loss)/profit g (BB18) af) (23,915) 42,980 N/ATE

3)

& Turnover from external customers

i EBITDA is calculated by excluding interest expense, taxes, depreciation

and amortisation from segmental operating (loss)/profit

In YEAR 2024, segmental turnover amounted to HK$87.8
million as compared to HK$198.3 million in YEAR 2023,
representing a decrease of 56%. Decline in segmental turnover
was mainly due to the decrease in volume of loans granted
given the current market conditions. Segmental operating
loss amounted to HK$23.9 million as compared to segmental
operating profit HK$43.0 million in YEAR 2023. The segmental
operating loss was mainly contributed by a decrease in turnover
and credit impairment loss incurred during the year.

Platform operation solutions
Key performance indicators

Turnover* R
EBITDA* EBITDA?
Fair value loss on a financial assetat 2 AFEFF AR Z
fair value through profit or loss TRMEEZ N TE
E518
Operating loss KERE

*  Turnover from external customers
¥ EBITDA is calculated by excluding interest expense, taxes,
depreciation, amortisation and fair value loss on a financial asset at
FVPL from segmental operating loss

* REMNIERZEER

EBITDARZ D HEASE (8548) & F kA SR 1R
EMTERBHEAE

ZTETUFE > RS EEE#387,800,00078 7T 0
m_ZE - =FE#198,300,000/87T * #/56%°
DEEEBTRIZANREENNTRT &
RHE TR - DK ERE 423,900,000
BT o MIEZ=FERADPELEHF
43,000,000 7T DR E BB F ERBNERN
EEREIR D REENEERERE

Q) FEEEMRAR

EXFIEE

2024 2023 Change
—EINE ZEI=F =i
HK$’000 HK$'000 +(-)

FAET FAET
145,312 166,011 -12%
(3,970) (5,492) N/AT 4 B
(11,415) (8,159) N/AT 4 B
(20,928) (19,509) N/AR3E B

* RBEIBIERRZEXE

f EBITDARZ D 4B E B BN R SR ~FRIE I EE ~
BRI AT EF ARG EREEY AT EHE
8

BEEH (RE) BRAR —EMEFR
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4)

(5)

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

In YEAR 2024, we continued to provide high-quality and
efficient supporting services, such as product development,
business operation and system maintenance, to China Mobile
Group. During the year, segmental turnover amounted to
HK$145.3 million as compared to HK$166.0 million in YEAR
2023. Segmental operating loss amounted to HK$20.9 million
as compared to HK$19.5 million in YEAR 2023, which was
primarily attributable to the fair value loss on a financial asset at
fair value through profit or loss amounted to HK$11.4 million
in YEAR 2024 as compared to fair value losses of HK$8.2
million in YEAR 2023.

Financial solutions
Key performance indicators

Turnover* =ES0h
EBITDA® EBITDA?
Operating profit/(loss) KggnF, (B58)

& Turnover from external customers

: EBITDA is calculated by excluding interest expense, taxes, depreciation
and amortisation from segmental operating profit/(loss)

In YEAR 2024, segmental turnover amounted to HK$273.9
million as compared to HK$304.6 million in YEAR 2023.
Segmental operating profit totalled HK$9.2 million as
compared to segmental operating loss HK$19.9 million in
YEAR 2023. The improving segmental operating profit was
mainly due to increase in profit margin from overseas markets.

Others

Other business operations mainly included results of
subsidiaries under our electronic power meters and solutions
business, which were disposed in July and August 2024
respectively. Turnover of which contributed approximately
3.6% of the total consolidated turnover of the Group.

Segmental operating loss amounted to HK$9.0 million as
compared to HK$27.2 million in YEAR 2023.
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ATETMFEE HMEERSPRHEEIREM
BERMNZIHRD NERME XBEE
e IR AETE o F N D EEE FEEE/3145,300,0007%8
oM E T =FERI%A166,000,0008 7T 7
FEACE F538520,900,0008 5 M B - =4F
FEAJ%19,500,0008 0 FERMRPN - ZIM
FE RBRAFEFABGZSHEEATES
1#87311,400,0008 7L MZE_=FEEES
8,200,0007 7T ©

4) ERUBRFE

EXIFIEIZ
2024 2023 Change
—EmE S =53]
HK$’000 HK$'000 +/(-)

FET TFET

273,872 304,621 -10%
14,891 (13,515) N/A3E
9,174 (19,867) N/AE B

(5)

* RBEIIBIERZEXE

* EBITDARDEREHF],/ (B518) MFF B 1R
EMTERBIEAE

N ZETNFE > HFEEEREA273,900,0008
7o MZZEZ = FEH]%A304,600,000/8 7T ° 948
A& 1£759,200,0008 T M_E_=
FE R A4S B4 EE1819,900,00078 7T © D FBACE
AR EEHPEIINE BRI

Hith
HthEKEEFEORBETERBAITE
KETHWBADEE ZSEMBATD N
TETMECARN\BHE - HEEBERY
A E RS EEERETN3.6%

DR E E18749,000,0008 T M_E_=4
EERI%A27,200,0007 7T °
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OVERALL FINANCIAL RESULTS AND POSITION

(A)

(B)

(@)

Revenue

The consolidated turnover amounted to HK$2,340.0 million,
representing a decrease of 14% over YEAR 2023. Such
decrease was mainly contributed by a decrease in segmental
turnover of our payment and digital services segment. Please
also refer to Notes (1) to (5) above on segmental performance.

Other income
Other income mainly consisted of interest income and
government grants in YEAR 2024.

Cost of sales and operating expenses

In YEAR 2024, cost of sales decreased significantly mainly due
to decline in total turnover particularly in payment and digital
services and finech services segments.

Increase in operating expenses was mainly due to increase in
research and development costs in YEAR 2024.

Credit impairment loss was primarily due to impairment loss
on aged loan receivable balances under the fintech services
segment.

(D) Share of results of associated companies

(E)

Amounts mainly represented share of the results of the
associated companies of the Company, including PAX Global
Technology Limited (“PAX Global”), the shares of which are
listed on the Stock Exchange, as well as Megahunt Technologies
Inc. (“Megahunt”).

Investments in associated companies

Balance mainly represented the Group’s interests in PAX
Global and Megahunt. The Group is optimistic about their
future prospects and will continue to demonstrate prudence
and resilience in assessing its investment strategy towards the
enhancement of shareholders” value.
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BRMBRERIR

(A)

(B)

©

WA

REEEEEA2,340,000,0008 0 RZF 2=
FERM14% BB IEZARI I REF
ERRB OB DEE LR VIR - TNESH
EXMEFENEG)Z nEERIR

H A
TR NFEEHMRA T ESER S WA K
F#8Bf

HEMTRIEERZ
TECMEEHERAKETE TEHANE
ERETE LHEXNRBFLERFTURE
RORHR AR 048 o

EEPE Ty E B ER B EERHE N
ESSTIR

EEREBENIZHEN SRR DEE
RS AR SRS ERBY R ER IR °

(D) FEIEHHE QBT Z E&

(B)

ERZBEBENEEIARZHEAT B
BERKREARAR BRIk - HikH

TREESZFRr _E ) MURIKEIBERHR IR BIRAE]
(TJEERIBE)) Z %R

REABARZIRE
ERIBEAEENESRIREIKFAIEEZ #
e REMBRE 2 RRATRFT BB > WA
EEBEAE DM A ERE R LIRAR
REE-

BERE chE) BRAT —ECmEES
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@) PAX Global

As at 31 December 2024, the Group held 364,000,000
ordinary shares of PAX Global and the fair value of the
Group’s approximately 34.3% effective interest in PAX
Global was approximately HK$1,954.7 million and was
lower than its carrying value. An impairment test was
performed to determine the recoverable amount of the
investment. The recoverable amount, which was assessed
by an independent valuer on a value-in-use basis using the
discounted cash flow model, exceeds the carrying value
as at 31 December 2024. The interest in PAX Global of
HK$3,090.2 million represented approximately 26.1% of
the Group’s audited total assets as at 31 December 2024
and the cost of investment as at 31 December 2024 was
HK$259.8 million.

PAX Global, together with its subsidiaries, is principally
engaged in the development and sales of electronic
payment point-of-sale terminals products and the provision
of maintenance and installation and payment solution
services.

PAX Global is one of the global leading suppliers of
E-payment Terminals solutions business. The continuous
progress in payment technology, coupled with the growing
consumer preference for convenient and secure payment
options, along with global cashless initiatives, has opened
up new opportunities for PAX Global’s products and
solutions. Despite facing challenging macroeconomic
conditions, PAX Global has showcased resilience to risks
and adaptability to volatile environments. PAX Global
remains at the forefront of market trends and actively drives
the enhancement of payment terminal technology.

In YEAR 2024, the decrease in the net profit of PAX Global
was primarily due to the decline in revenue recorded.
The decline in revenue was primarily due to the drop
in purchase orders in certain markets during the period,
which is attributed to global economic uncertainty.

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024

(i) BERIK

RIBE_NE+—B=+—H > xEEF
BB EIRIX364,000,00008 @G BAE
EREBIRIKAB43%ERER Y ATE
#9751,954,700,00078 70> BEN EREE
ETREANAETEEEREZTWE &
BoR —_E_ME+"B=+—H > H%E
I EMZE B EEREE LW AIR
HWEREHEHE 2 W Ol&REBERE
B RZZEZNF+ZB=+—H IEE
IBIRAYREEE3,090,200,0007 oA L A<
REIZEEBEN26.1% MR _ME
+ B =1+—HZ&REMZA%259,800,000
BIte

BERN ERAEWEAR TBREETF
SATSHE BRI E MR BRI E Wi
AR 2 R UK RS RS

BEIRKE 2B E F T RIHER
FEEBREHZ — I ARMINFEE
ToMEHBERERE - 220X AHH
RIFBRIEMUKREREREEER B
AHEBRKNERKBERS BITHEM
8 - B EmH AN REAB R
BERKNERRIIEZREROIE R EY
PRRBENEREN BERNEBIE
R I5EE R AS AL BBER (T
IR AMTETER Y ©

RZZB_MEE > AEIRKBMTRELD E
ERNBFUWA TR - WA TREES
BARZE2HEETRELENTE 5T
THIBHERIEE] B EARNB AR o
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Looking forward, the shift toward cashless and digital REXRN MBRERBFEHEEENS
economies remains an irreversible trend. We are optimistic REEEMEE - WM B SRRERFTH
about PAX Global maintaining a positive outlook on the ZRIGETIBERFEERERE LEM
market demand for its payment terminals and being well- YFIEIE 2 IR (1T 3 RE R IB Y 1 4L
prepared to capitalise on the vast opportunities within the BREE-

global payments industry.

(i) Megahunt (i) JKHIEE

As at 31 December 2024, the Group held approximately N ZE_MFEF+_A=+—H &&EH
45.73% of the issued shares of Megahunt. The financial FAEIINIEED EITRING45.73% A
impact was attributed to Megahunt's withdrawal of the KB EMEINR —_ZE_HFEARBEL
proposed listing on the Shanghai Stock Exchange in June BEFXZMETHNREEMELENY
2024. The recoverable amount had been determined BB - rREISEDRBEATERSD
based on the higher of the fair value less cost of disposal ENFEGERABEZRSEEE - RN
and value-in-use. The recoverable amount of Megahunt ENERA=ZTHRBAFERD
based on the fair value less costs of disposal calculation EMASER/RE ZIKAIEETWE®
was determined under the market approach valuation BDHBUEXGEMR DG EET
performed by an independent professional valuer as at 30 LEMEE - KA I1EE 2 AT EI £ 1R
June 2024. The recoverable amount of Megahunt is lower PREEREE © 141,300,00078 oAV 4EZE%E
than its carrying amount. The total shortfall of HK$141.3 A TECNMFBRI/NBERATZR
million was recognised as a non-cash impairment loss of B2 IFRESREBE-RER 2N
investment in an associated company in YEAR 2024. Based F+_A=+—BHETZRENS
on the impairment test performed as at 31 December MBI (EMREREEREEN L
2024, the recoverable amount of Megahunt, which was KAMRRESRSEYFEZIKAIE
assessed by an independent valuer on a value-in-use basis EZWETEBBEREE RN _-Z
using the discounted cash flow model, exceeds its carrying “HE+ZA=+—H RIFHIEERN
value. The interest in Megahunt of HK$322.9 million #%5322,900,0008 T4 R E B K=
represented approximately 2.7% of the Group’s audited B EAREN2.7%

total assets as at 31 December 2024.

In YEAR 2024, due to the impact of the global economic TECMFE RRMERERRTUKR 2K
conditions and the tightened global semiconductor FERHERBERNTEE EEZEEA
supply chain, the growth of the information security chip TEERBNEIE GEFEMHIN A5t
industry tended to slow down and competition became —_ECHFERZETRTRER TR
more intense. The information security chip market is & R R ISR BERR &M - H
generally expected to develop steadily in 2025, subject to MEIEAEFRERIERN > & ERBIEA

changes due to the policy impact on the payment market. BAELFETEIARIENRERE
Other research and development projects are progressing

smoothly and the cost reduction initiatives of various

products are also rolling out in an orderly manner.
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(F) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Amount mainly represented an unlisted investment fund
outside Hong Kong. Decline in balance was mainly due to the
decrease in other FVPL investments outside Hong Kong.

(G) Trade and bills receivables

(F) BAFEAARGZEMEE
CREIBE—RBBRIFLIRERES
ERERR D EEMNE BRI MR A TES

ANBm 2 KERDAE

(G) FEUWARR K FEW R 15

2024 2023

—E-OE TET=F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHT FHET

Trade receivables (Note (i) FEUSBRFR (BYZEG)) 189,586 187,243

Bills receivables e W ZE 5k - 5,830

Less: provision for impairment of B R IE R E R

trade receivables (3,864) (16,018)

Total = 185,722 177,055
Note (i): BraEa):

The Group’s credit terms to trade debtors normally range from 0 to 180
days. The ageing analysis of the trade receivables primarily based on the
invoice dates is as follows:

FTER-ROTEZBEBAZEERHIEIB0AREF =
EREH RO EUCRFERE DT T ¢

2024 2023

TEZNE “B=H

HK$’000 HK$’000

FAET FET

Current to 90 days BPEAZE90H 164,853 145,541
91 to 180 days 91E180H 16,135 13,989
181 to 365 days 1812365H 2,810 3,463
Over 365 days 365HLL E 5,788 24,250
189,586 187,243

- Changes in balances between aged current to 90 days and over 365
days were mainly due to changes of outstanding balances under
financial solutions segment and the effect on the disposal of electronic
power meters and solutions business.

(H) Loan receivables
Loan receivables are amounts due from customers under the
fintech services segment in the ordinary course of business and
primarily denominated in RMB.
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— RN FEIEAEI0H K365B U EZ dErrEE £ 2
BIER SRR RN EE T REBEREFIU
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) ERER ZREVITEFUARRERRE

cash equivalents L)
2024 2023
—E-mE T =F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Long-term bank deposits REBIR1ITHER 265,280 -
Current assets mEEE
Short-term bank deposits RREIRTT 177,207 =
Total time deposits E TR ABER 442,487 -
Restricted bank balances (Note) ZORHVIRITAS R (W52E) 2,593,913 3,542,318
Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEEY 3,011,282 3,482,016
Restricted bank balances and cash and ZIREIRITAEFRURIRE R
cash equivalents REEEY 5,605,195 7,024,334

Note:

In accordance with the notice issued by the Payment and Settlement
Department of the People’s Bank of China (“PBOC”) from 14 January 2019,
all customer reserve accounts held by third-party payment institutions
should be cancelled and the customer reserves should be deposited in a
dedicated deposit account maintained centrally by a designated agency.
Since the transfer of fund of the dedicated deposit account is subject to
measures imposed by PBOC, the customer reserves maintained therein are
restricted in nature.

As at 31 December 2024, the amount comprised (i) the customer
reserves deposited in the abovesaid dedicated deposit account which was
denominated in RMB; and (ii) the funds deposited in designated bank
accounts for the operation of the Group’s cross-border payment business.

Hiz -

REPBEARRT (PRARRT) INEER#
fvEN BT —NE—ATHAE  F=753%f
KERANMATPREESRAREEE BER
HETAETEFHNEERBNERERRA T
HRZEAERRFTNESBRTPEARRT
BREOEREE AERAEPERNZEE A #E
BAE ERRFI-

RIZ-MFE+"RB=+—H  Z=BEEEOHFERN
LHRERERRATUARBHENERERES
RERRIEERITRA ANEERERBR
EBNEE

BEEH (RE) BRAR —EMEFR
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FEATERTR » T R B FEARFE D 2 B
TR LA R E fth FE {4 RRIE R & 517k IR

(J) Trade payables, payables for payment and digital ()]
services segment and other payables and accruals

2024 2023

11 -2 TR =F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FHET

Trade payables (Note (i) FE{SBR =X (B 22()) 427,433 596,415
Payables for payment and digital services ST REFIERBDEZ

segment (Note (ii) FETFRIE (Y32 i) 2,623,537 3,591,920
Other payables and accruals (Note (iii) ~ EAFESFIBER EsTFIE

(a2 i) 925,445 932,745

Total =i 3,976,415 5,121,080

Note (i): Hia#a):

HEFRT 2 EEHHH0E180 TS - TERBEZERH
Z FEMBRRRBREG DATLOT

The credit period granted by the suppliers ranges from 0 to 180 days. The
ageing analysis of the trade payables primarily based on invoice date was as
follows:

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

2024 2023

—ETME =R

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Current to 90 days BIEAZE90H 422,633 318,313
91 to 180 days 91E180H 148 110,708
181 to 365 days 181E365H 14 156,504
Over 365 days 365 E 4,638 10,890
427,433 596,415

-~ Changes in trade payables aged between current to 90 days, 91 to 180
days and 181 to 365 days were mainly due to changes in outstanding
balances under the payment and digital services segment.

Note (ii):

This balance represents payables to merchants for the payment and digital
services segment.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

—  BRES/FENHAE90H ~91E180H K& 181E3650 2 FE
TRERREES FBHP I RBFEREDEE TR

BB GRREBFIE
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Note (iii): Bfain:
2024 2023
—EmE B
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THET
Accrued staff costs and pension obligations* FEEt B T A IR RS B 223,907 256,214
Deposits BwE 33,667 35,154
Receipt in advance from customers** FESCUWEL B 2 JR I 27,382 24,023
Deposits from business channel partners** REEHBRESIFRRE 445,864 424,893
Others*** Hftree 194,625 192,461
925,445 932,745

*  Balance represented accrued staff costs, pension obligations and year-
end bonus.

** Receipt in advance from customers and deposits from business channel
partners represented advances and guarantees received from merchants
and partners under the payment and digital services segment.

##% Balance mainly represented accrued subcontracting costs and other
accrued handling fees payable under the payment and digital services
segment.

Income tax credit

The income tax credit was mainly due to a subsidiary under
payment and digital services segment being qualified as a
Software and Integrated Circuit Enterprise (“SICE”) in YEAR
2024.

Gain on disposals of subsidiaries, net

The amount mainly represented gain on disposal of subsidiaries
under our electronic power meters and solutions business,
which amounted to HKD101,076,000.

On 7 July 2024, Hangzhou PAX Electricity Technology Ltd.
and Pacific Sheen International Limited, two indirect wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company entered into a share
transfer agreement with, inter alia, an independent third-
party purchaser in relation to the Company’s disposal of the
entire equity interests in two other indirect wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company, namely Hangzhou PAX Electronic
Technology Ltd. and Hangzhou Fushun Information Technology
Co., Ltd. (the “Disposal Companies”). Upon completion of the
respective disposals in July 2024 and August 2024, the Disposal
Companies ceased to be subsidiaries of the Company. Other
details can be referred to in the announcement of the Company
dated 7 July 2024.

(K)

(L)

* KEEREIEET B TA RIS B ELURFRTEAL

* FRGEWEE R ZMIERREEFRECFENERS
B REFERB DA M RAEBF RS ER
B 7 BB ARBE ©

o ER T BIEES D ERE RSN REFERBE DL
BTN E AR FEE -

FriSiRiE s
FAIEMBREEAN U RBEFIERED
BTH—RHNBARENR _Z_MFEER
BERERBREE R REMBRDE
®) &g

HEMBARZWE FEE
ERTBRTIEREHEEETEER N
BAPREFEETHNHRNBABT Z W@
101,076,000 # 7T °

RIZBEZ_NFEtBtH xR EmEEEE
EMBAR BUNBEBNEMARAEK
EIEERARAR) & (HHaE) —2B1
B=HERIU—MRNEEGZ AEH
FAABDHERARTARIMEEREEN
BAT (MMNBEEBFRMARASRFTM
EIREERMARAE) (HERAF) B2
BRE - ZFHENINR T _NF AR
“ETNFENBEME HERRRKIER
TABDZMB AT - EthFIEF2RART
AR NFEtRBtRZAffe
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KEY INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Adoption of the Shenzhen Hi Sun Share Incentive Scheme
and the possible deemed disposal of Shenzhen Hi Sun

In May 2024, Shenzhen Hi Sun adopted the Shenzhen Hi Sun Share
Incentive Scheme, pursuant to which Shenzhen Hi Sun granted
options to the scheme participants to subscribe for new registered
capital of Shenzhen Hi Sun through a shareholding platform. The
Shenzhen Hi Sun Share Incentive Scheme, unless further resolved
by its shareholders, will remain valid and effective for 3 years from
20 May 2024 until 19 May 2027.

7,500,000 options were granted to three Shenzhen Hi Sun
employees (the “Grantees”) who are the general and limited
partners of the aforesaid shareholding platform, vesting of which
are subject to certain predetermined financial targets. Upon vesting,
the Grantees may exercise the vested options to subscribe for up to
RMB7,500,000 new registered capital of Shenzhen Hi Sun at the
subscription price of RMB1.5 for RMB1 new registered capital. Each
Grantee may also elect to request Shenzhen Hi Sun to repurchase
up to 30% of the subscription rights of his vested options at a
repurchase price (capped at RMB10 for RMB1 new registered
capital) to be determined with reference to the profits of Shenzhen
Hi Sun for the financial year preceding the date of exercise. Should
the options be vested and exercised in full, Shenzhen Hi Sun will
cease to be a subsidiary of the Company, as the Company’s interests
will decrease from 50.91% to 40% (assuming no repurchase) or
approximately 42.75% (assuming repurchase of all 30% of the
subscription rights of all vested options).

No option was vested, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the
Shenzhen Hi Sun Share Incentive Scheme since its adoption and up
to 31 December 2024. Further details can be referred to the section
“Shenzhen Hi Sun Share Incentive Scheme” of this report and the
Company’s announcement dated 20 May 2024.

Withdrawal of application for listing of Megahunt
Technologies Inc.

In June 2024, the Shanghai Stock Exchange formally approved the
application of Megahunt to withdraw its application for listing of
its shares on the Science and Technology Innovate Board of the
Shanghai Stock Exchange filed in light of its strategic planning
and the recent capital market environment. Other details can be
referred to Note (E)(ii) of the section “Overall Financial Results and
Positions” of this report and the announcement of the Company
dated 20 May 2024.
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INFORMATION ON THE CONTRACTUAL HRESHNZHZER

ARRANGEMENTS

The Group has been operating certain businesses which adopt
contract based arrangements and/or structures (“Contractual
Arrangements”) for the purpose of enabling the Group, as a foreign
investor, to control and benefit from the PRC operating companies
(“OPCQO”) in the foreign restricted businesses in the PRC.

Set out below are the details of the Contractual Arrangements which
are material to the Group.

1.

Contractual Arrangement in respect of EE#&THIEHE
PRA T (formerly known as EEE TR EBEHEEIRAR)
(“Chongqing JIM”) and its subsidiary VBill OPCO

1.1

1.2

Particulars of OPCO and its registered owners
Chongging JIM is a limited liability company established in
the PRC on 4 June 2002.

From 28 May 2010 to 24 October 2019, contractual
agreements (“Existing JIM Control Documents”) were
entered into between Chongqging JIM, its registered
shareholders, namely Mr. Zhou Jianhong (60%) and Mr. Na
Wei (40%), (“Chongging JIM Shareholders”) and 51715 B
£ (£78) BRAE (“Shanghai JIM”), pursuant to which
Shanghai JIM was allowed to exercise control of and enjoy
economic benefits generated from Chongging JIM.

Shanghai JIM is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

On 24 October 2019, (i) Chongging JIM, (ii) Chongging
JIM Shareholders and (iii) It RS EIERFEBRA A
(unofficial English translation for identification purpose
only, being Beijing Microcode Data Technology Co., Ltd.)
(a wholly-foreign owned enterprise incorporated under the
laws of the PRC and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of VBill (Cayman), the “New WFOE"), entered into a new
set of contractual agreements which allows New WFOE to
exercise control of and enjoy economic benefits generated
from Chongging JIM (“New JIM Control Documents
(Pre-Swap)”). The Existing JIM Control Documents were
terminated on the same date.

Description of OPCO's business and their significance to
the Group

Chongging JIM and its subsidiaries (collectively “JIM
Group”) are principally engaged in the value-added
telecommunication business (1 & 5% 7) with major
focus on payment related solutions and services, the
provision of payment and digital services in the PRC.
Key financial indicators of the JIM Group are set out in
paragraph 1.4 below.
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1.3 Summary of the major terms of the underlying contracts of

the Contractual Arrangements

JIM Master Exclusive Service Agreement (Pre-Swap)

New WFOE and Chongging JIM entered into the JIM
Master Exclusive Service Agreement (Pre-Swap), pursuant
to which (i) Chongging JIM has appointed and designated
New WEFOE as its exclusive service provider to provide
the technical and business support services and (i) New
WFOE has agreed to provide financial support in the
form of interest-free loan, as permitted by PRC laws, to
Chongqing JIM by separate agreements to be executed
and performed by the parties. The service fee payable for
the said services shall be equal to 100% of the audited
consolidated net profits of Chongging JIM; notwithstanding
the foregoing New WFOE may adjust the service fee at its
sole discretion and in accordance with the requirements
of relevant governmental authorities, with reference to the
working capital requirements of Chongging JIM.

JIM Business Cooperation Agreement (Pre-Swap)

New WFOE, Chongqging JIM, and the Chongqing JIM
Shareholders entered into the JIM Business Cooperation
Agreement (Pre-Swap), pursuant to which each of the
Chongging JIM Shareholders and Chongging JIM have
jointly and severally agreed and covenanted that, without
obtaining New WFOE’s prior written consent, neither
Chongging JIM nor the Chongging JIM Shareholders shall
cause Chongging JIM to, engage in any transaction which
may materially affect Chongging JIM’s asset, obligations,
rights or operation.

JIM Exclusive Option Agreement (Pre-Swap)

New WFOE, Chongging JIM and the Chongging JIM
Shareholders entered into the JIM Exclusive Option
Agreement (Pre-Swap), pursuant to which (i) New WFOE
shall have the exclusive right to require Chongqing
JIM Shareholders to transfer any and all of their equity
interests of Chongging JIM (the “JIM Equity Interests”) to
New WFOE and/or its designated third party, subject to
New WFOFE’s specific requirements; and (ii) New WFOE
shall have the exclusive right to require Chongging JIM
to transfer any and all of the assets owned by Chonggqing
JIM (the “JIM Assets”) to New WFOE and/or its designee,
subject to New WFOE's specific requirements. The total
transfer price for the JIM Equity Interests and/or the
JIM Assets shall be the lowest price allowed under the
applicable PRC laws and administrative regulations at the
time of transfer. Where there is no lowest price prescribed
under the applicable PRC laws and administrative
regulations, the transfer price shall be determined by New
WFOE.
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JIM Proxy Agreement and Power of Attorney (Pre-Swap)
New WFOE, Chongging JIM, and the Chongging JIM
Shareholders entered into the JIM Proxy Agreement and
Power of Attorney (Pre-Swap), pursuant to which (i)
each of the Chongging JIM Shareholders has nominated
and appointed New WFOE (as well as its successors,
including a liquidator, if any) as his attorney-in-fact to
exercise such rights as a shareholder of Chongging JIM on
his behalf, and any right conferred by relevant laws and
regulations and the articles of association of Chongging
JIM; and (ii) each of the Chongging JIM Shareholders has
covenanted with and undertaken to New WFOE that, if he
receives any dividends, interest, any other forms of capital
distributions, residual assets upon liquidation, or proceeds
or consideration from the transfer as a result of, or in
connection with, his JIM Equity Interests, he shall, to the
extent permitted by applicable laws, remit all such monies
or assets to New WFOE or its designated entity without
any compensation, and shall bear all taxes and fees with
respect thereto.

JIM Equity Interest Pledge Agreement (Pre-Swap)

New WFOE, Chongqging JIM and the Chongqing
JIM Shareholders entered into the JIM Equity Interest
Pledge Agreement (Pre-Swap), pursuant to which each
of the Chongging JIM Shareholders has agreed to,
unconditionally and irrevocably, pledge all of their JIM
Equity Interests, including any interest or dividend paid for
such equity interests, to New WFOE as a security for the
performance of any and all obligations of Chongging JIM
Shareholders and Chongging JIM under the contractual
documents (other than JIM Equity Interest Pledge
Agreement (Pre-Swap)) at the amount of RMB50,000,000
which is estimated value of the obligations of Chongging
JIM Shareholders and Chongging JIM under the contractual
documents for initial registration purpose.
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JIM Confirmation and Guarantee Letter (Pre-Swap)

Each of Chongging JIM Shareholders has signed the JIM
Confirmation and Guarantee Letter (Pre-Swap), pursuant
to which each of the Chongging JIM Shareholders has
confirmed and guaranteed that, among other things:

1. his successor, guardian, creditor, spouse or any other
person that may be entitled to assume rights and
interests in the equity interests of Chongging JIM held
by him upon his death, incapacity, bankruptcy, divorce
or any circumstances that may affect his ability to
exercise his shareholder’s rights in Chongging JIM,
will not carry out any act that may affect or hinder
the fulfillment of his obligations under each of the
contractual documents;

2. he will unwind the contractual documents and transfer
all of the equity interests of Chongging JIM held by
him to New WFOE or any party designated by New
WEFOE as soon as the applicable PRC laws allow New
WHFOE to operate the business operated by Chonggqing
JIM by way of directly holding equity interests, and
that subject to applicable PRC laws, he must donate
immediately without compensation to New WFOE or
its designated entity any consideration he has received
from New WFOE during its acquisition of JIM Equity
Interests; and

3. he will not directly or indirectly engage in, own or
acquire any business that competes or might compete
with the business of Chongging JIM or its affiliated
companies or to have any interest in such business;
and none of his actions or omissions will give rise to
conflict of interest between himself and New WFOE
(including but not limited to the shareholders of New
WEFOE); in the event of any such conflict, he will take
any action as instructed by New WFOE to eliminate
such conflict provided such action is compliant with
PRC laws.

JIM Spousal Consent (Pre-Swap)

Ms. Liu Dan (“Ms. Liu”), the spouse of Mr. Na Wei has
covenanted, among other things, not to take any action
with the intent to interfere with the arrangements under
and performance of the contractual documents, including
making any claim that such equity interests in Chongging
JIM constitute property or community property between
herself and Mr. Na Wei and waives all her rights or
entitlements to such equity interests that may be granted to
her according to any applicable laws.
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Disputes resolutions

The contractual documents all contain a disputes
resolution clause which stipulates that any dispute or
claim shall be resolved by the parties in good faith through
negotiations. If no resolution can be reached, the dispute
shall be submitted to the Beijing Arbitration Commission
for arbitration in Beijing in accordance with its rules of
arbitration in effect at the time of application. The arbitral
tribunal or the arbitrators shall have the authority to
award any remedy or relief in accordance with the terms
of the contractual documents and applicable PRC laws,
including provisional and permanent injunctive relief (such
as injunctive relief with respect to the conduct of business
or to compel the transfer of assets), specific performance
of any obligation created thereunder, remedies over the
equity interests or land assets of Chongging JIM and
winding up orders against Chongging JIM. The arbitral
award shall be final and binding upon all parties. In
addition, to the extent permitted under applicable PRC
laws, each party shall have the right to seek interim
injunctive relief or other interim relief from a court of
competent jurisdiction in support of the arbitration when
formation of the arbitral tribunal is pending or under
appropriate circumstances. The parties agreed that, subject
to applicable laws, the courts of Hong Kong, the Cayman
Islands, Bermuda, PRC and the places where the principal
assets of Chongging JIM are located, shall all be deemed to
have jurisdiction.

Revenue and assets subject to the Contractual
Arrangements

The consolidated total revenue of the JIM Group for the
year ended 31 December 2024 was HK$1,740.1 million.
The consolidated total assets and net assets of the JIM
Group as at 31 December 2024 amounted to HK$4,733.5
million and HK$1,597.8 million respectively.
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2.

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

Contractual Arrangements in respect of M ER

= 2T AMRAE (“Hunan Yunrong”, unofficial
English translation being Hunan Yunrong Information
Technology Co., Ltd.)

2.1

2.2

Particulars of Hunan Yunrong and its registered owners
Hunan Yunrong is a limited liability company established
in the PRC on 15 August 2014. Hunan Yunrong was
wholly-owned by Chongging JIM before 21 May 2019.
Hunan Yunrong and Chongging JIM were accounted for as
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company contractually
controlled by the Group through the Existing JIM Control
Documents.

On 21 May 2019, the Group implemented a restructuring
involving the Hunan Yunrong and its subsidiaries (“Yunrong
Group”) as detailed in the announcement of the Company
dated 21 May 2019. Upon completion of the restructuring,
Mr. Zhang Yonggang (“Mr. Zhang”) and Mr. Wei Mingliang
(“Mr. Wei”) became the registered shareholders of Hunan
Yunrong (“Hunan Yunrong Shareholders”), holding 70%
and 30% equity interests of Hunan Yunrong (“Yunrong
Equity Interests”), respectively. Control documents
(“Yunrong Control Documents”) were entered into between
Hunan Yunrong, Mr. Zhang, Mr. Wei and 1t 2322
BEEERMARASR (“Beijing Hi Sunsray”, unofficial
English translation being Beijing Hi Sunsray Information
Technology Limited) to allow Beijing Hi Sunsray to
contractually control 100% equity interests and the
management of Hunan Yunrong.

Description of OPCO's business and their significance to
the Group

Yunrong Group is principally engaged in platform
operation solutions business in the PRC. Key financial
indicators of the Yunrong Group are set out in paragraph
2.4 below.
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2.3 Summary of the major terms of the underlying contracts of

the Contractual Arrangements

Yunrong Master Exclusive Service Agreement

Beijing Hi Sunsray and Hunan Yunrong entered into the
Yunrong Master Exclusive Service Agreement, pursuant to
which (i) Hunan Yunrong has appointed and designated
the Beijing Hi Sunsray as its exclusive service provider
to provide the technical and business support services
and (ii) Beijing Hi Sunsray has agreed to (to the extent
permissible under PRC law) provide financial support
in the form of interest-free loan, as permitted by PRC
laws, to Hunan Yunrong by separate agreements to be
executed and performed by the parties. The service
fee payable for the said services shall be equal to
100% of the audited consolidated net profits of Hunan
Yunrong; notwithstanding the foregoing the Beijing Hi
Sunsray may adjust the service fee at its sole discretion
and in accordance with the requirements of relevant
governmental authorities, with reference to the working
capital requirements of Hunan Yunrong.

Yunrong Business Cooperation Agreement

Beijing Hi Sunsray, Hunan Yunrong and the Hunan
Yunrong Shareholders entered into the Yunrong Business
Cooperation Agreement, pursuant to which each of
the Hunan Yunrong Shareholders and Hunan Yunrong
have jointly and severally agreed and covenanted that,
without obtaining the Beijing Hi Sunsray’s prior written
consent, neither Hunan Yunrong nor the Hunan Yunrong
Shareholders shall cause Hunan Yunrong to, engage in any
transaction which may materially affect Hunan Yunrong’s
asset, obligations, rights or operation.
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Yunrong Exclusive Option Agreement

Beijing Hi Sunsray, Hunan Yunrong and the Hunan
Yunrong Shareholders entered into the Yunrong Exclusive
Option Agreement, pursuant to which (i) Beijing Hi
Sunsray shall have the exclusive right to require Hunan
Yunrong Shareholders to transfer any and all of their
Yunrong Equity Interests to Beijing Hi Sunsray and/or its
designated third party designated, subject to Beijing Hi
Sunsray’s specific requirements; and (ii) Beijing Hi Sunsray
shall have the exclusive right to require Hunan Yunrong
to transfer any and all of the assets owned by Hunan
Yunrong (the “Yunrong Assets”) to the Beijing Hi Sunsray
and/or its designee, subject to Beijing Hi Sunsray’s specific
requirements. The total transfer price for the Yunrong Equity
Interests and/or the Yunrong Assets shall be the lowest price
allowed under the applicable PRC laws and administrative
regulations at the time of transfer. Where there is no
lowest price prescribed under the applicable PRC laws
and administrative regulations, the transfer price shall be
determined by the Beijing Hi Sunsray.

Yunrong Proxy Agreement and Power of Attorney

Beijing Hi Sunsray, Hunan Yunrong and the Hunan Yunrong
Shareholders entered into the Yunrong Proxy Agreement
and Power of Attorney, pursuant to which (i) each of
the Hunan Yunrong Shareholders has nominated and
appointed Beijing Hi Sunsray (as well as its successors,
including a liquidator, if any) as his attorney-in-fact to
exercise such rights as a shareholder of Hunan Yunrong
on his behalf, and any right conferred by relevant laws
and regulations and the articles of association of Hunan
Yunrong; and (ii) each of the Hunan Yunrong Shareholders
has covenanted with and undertaken to Beijing Hi
Sunsray that, if he receives any dividends, interest, any
other forms of capital distributions, residual assets upon
liquidation, or proceeds or consideration from the transfer
of equity interests as a result of, or in connection with, his
Yunrong Equity Interests, he shall, to the extent permitted
by applicable laws, remit all such monies or assets to
Beijing Hi Sunsray or its designated entity without any
compensation, and shall bear all taxes and fees with
respect thereto.
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Yunrong Equity Interest Pledge Agreement

Beijing Hi Sunsray, Hunan Yunrong and the Hunan Yunrong
Shareholders entered into the Yunrong Equity Interest
Pledge Agreement, pursuant to which each of the Hunan
Yunrong Shareholders has agreed to, unconditionally
and irrevocably, pledge all of their Yunrong Equity
Interests, including any interest or dividend paid for such
equity interests, to Beijing Hi Sunsray as a security for
the performance of any and all obligations of Hunan
Yunrong Shareholders and Hunan Yunrong under the
contractual documents (other than Yunrong Equity Interest
Pledge Agreement) at the amount of RMB10,000,000,
the estimated value of the obligations of Hunan Yunrong
Shareholders and Hunan Yunrong under the contractual
documents for initial registration purpose.

Yunrong Confirmation and Guarantee Letter

Each of Hunan Yunrong Shareholders signed the Yunrong
Confirmation and Guarantee Letter, pursuant to which each
of the Hunan Yunrong Shareholders has confirmed and
guaranteed that, among other things:

1. his successor, guardian, creditor, spouse or any other
person that may be entitled to assume rights and
interests in the equity interests of Hunan Yunrong
held by him upon his death, incapacity, bankruptcy,
divorce or any circumstances that may affect his ability
to exercise his shareholder’s rights in Hunan Yunrong,
will not carry out any act that may affect or hinder
the fulfillment of his obligations under each of the
contractual documents;

2. he will unwind the contractual documents and
transfer his entire Yunrong Equity Interests to Beijing
Hi Sunsray or its designated party as soon as the
applicable PRC laws allow Beijing Hi Sunsray to
operate the business operated by Hunan Yunrong
by way of directly holding equity interests, and that
subject to applicable PRC laws, he must donate
immediately without compensation to Beijing Hi
Sunsray or its designated party any consideration
he has received from Beijing Hi Sunsray during its
acquisition of the Yunrong Equity Interests; and
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3. he will not directly or indirectly engage in, own or
acquire any business that competes or might compete
with the business of Hunan Yunrong or its affiliated
companies or to have any interest in such business;
and none of his actions or omissions will give rise to
conflict of interest between himself and Beijing Hi
Sunsray (including but not limited to the shareholders
of Beijing Hi Sunsray); in the event of any such
conflict, he will take any action as instructed by
Beijing Hi Sunsray to eliminate such conflict provided
such action is compliant with PRC laws.

Yunrong Spousal Consent

Ms. Li Qi (“Ms. Li"), the spouse of Mr. Zhang, has
covenanted, among other things, not to take any action
with the intent to interfere with the arrangements under
and performance of the contractual documents, including
making any claim that such Yunrong Equity Interests
constitute property or community property between herself
and Mr. Zhang and waives all their rights or entitlements to
such equity interests that may be granted to her according
to any applicable laws.

Disputes resolutions

The contractual documents all contain disputes resolution
clause which stipulates that any dispute or claim shall be
resolved by the parties in good faith through negotiations.
If no resolution can be reached, the dispute shall be
submitted to the Beijing Arbitration Commission for
arbitration in Beijing in accordance with its rules of
arbitration in effect at the time of application. The arbitral
tribunal or the arbitrators shall have the authority to
award any remedy or relief in accordance with the terms
of the contractual documents and applicable PRC laws,
including provisional and permanent injunctive relief (such
as injunctive relief with respect to the conduct of business
or to compel the transfer of assets), specific performance
of any obligation created thereunder, remedies over the
equity interests or land assets of Hunan Yunrong and
winding up orders against Hunan Yunrong. The arbitral
award shall be final and binding upon all parties. In
addition, to the extent permitted under applicable PRC
laws, each party shall have the right to seek interim
injunctive relief or other interim relief from a court of
competent jurisdiction in support of the arbitration when
formation of the arbitral tribunal is pending or under
appropriate circumstances. The parties agreed that, subject
to applicable laws, the courts of Hong Kong, the Cayman
Islands, Bermuda, PRC and the places where the principal
assets of Hunan Yunrong are located, shall all be deemed
to have jurisdiction.
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2.4 Revenue and assets subject to the Contractual
Arrangements
The consolidated total revenue of the Yunrong Group for
the year ended 31 December 2024 was HK$139.1 million.
The consolidated total assets and net assets of the Yunrong
Group as at 31 December 2024 amounted to HK$188.5
million and HK$2.0 million respectively.

Contractual Arrangement in respect of It EBEE &
BRI AR AT (“Beijing OPCO”, unofficial English
translation being Beijing Sui Xin Digital Technology Co.,
Ltd.)

3.1 Particulars of Beijing OPCO and its registered owners
Beijing OPCO is a limited liability company established in
the PRC on 28 April 2024. Beijing OPCO was formed by
IERETHEERFEARAT (“Tchain”, unofficial English
translation being Beijing Jie Xing Sui Xin Technology
Co., Ltd.) and Mr. Wang Yuanqgi (“Mr. Wang”), holding
62.5% and 37.5% of its equity interests respectively. Both
Beijing OPCO and Tchain are accounted for as 80.04%
subsidiaries of the Company.

On 28 April 2024, the Group undertook a restructuring
(“Tchain Restructuring”) involving JERPEEEEAILE
FR/2F) (“Beijing Tchain”, unofficial English translation
being Beijing Sui Xin Yun Lian Technology Co., Ltd.) and
its subsidiaries (collectively, “Beijing Tchain Group”) as
detailed in the announcement of the Company dated
29 April 2024. Prior to the Tchain Restructuring, Beijing
Tchain Group was controlled by the Company under the
New JIM Control Documents (Pre-Swap) as disclosed
above through Chongging JIM. On 28 April 2024, control
documents (“Tchain Control Documents”) were entered
into between Tchain, Mr. Wang and Beijing OPCO to
enable Tchain to obtain effective control over and receive
all the economic benefits generated by the businesses
operated by Beijing OPCO (including Beijing Tchain
Group).

3.2 Description of Beijing OPCO’s business and their
significance to the Group
Beijing OPCO and its subsidiaries (“Beijing OPCO Group”)
are principally engaged in the business of fintech solutions
and services in the PRC. Beijing Tchain, in particular, is
principally engaged in the value-added telecommunication
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3.3 Summary of the major terms of the Tchain Control

Documents

Tchain Master Exclusive Service Agreement

Tchain and Beijing OPCO entered into the Tchain
Master Exclusive Service Agreement, pursuant to which
(i) Beijing OPCO has appointed and designated Tchain
as its exclusive service provider to provide technical and
business support services; and (ii) Tchain has agreed to (to
the extent permissible under PRC law) provide financial
support in the form of interest-free loan(s) to Beijing OPCO
by separate agreement(s) to be executed and performed
by the parties. The service fee payable for the said services
shall be equal to 100% of the audited consolidated net
profits of Beijing OPCO; notwithstanding the foregoing,
Tchain may adjust the service fee at its sole discretion
and in accordance with the requirements of relevant
governmental authorities, with reference to the working
capital requirements of Beijing OPCO.

Tchain Business Cooperation Agreement

Tchain, Mr. Wang and Beijing OPCO entered into the
Tchain Business Cooperation Agreement, pursuant to
which Mr. Wang and Beijing OPCO have jointly and
severally agreed and covenanted that, without obtaining
Tchain’s prior written consent, neither Beijing OPCO nor
Mr. Wang shall cause Beijing OPCO to, engage in any
transaction which may materially affect Beijing OPCO'’s
asset, obligations, rights or operation.

Tchain Exclusive Option Agreement

Tchain, Mr. Wang and Beijing OPCO entered into the
Tchain Exclusive Option Agreement, pursuant to which (i)
Tchain shall have the exclusive right to require Mr. Wang
to transfer any and all of his interests in Beijing OPCO
to Tchain and/or its designated third party, subject to
Tchain’s specific requirements; and (ii) Tchain shall have
the exclusive right to require Beijing OPCO to transfer any
and all of the assets owned by Beijing OPCO (“Beijing
OPCO Assets”) to Tchain and/or its designee, subject to
Tchain’s specific requirements. The total transfer price
for the Beijing OPCO Assets shall be the lowest price
allowed under the applicable PRC laws and administrative
regulations at the time of transfer. Where there is no
lowest price prescribed under the applicable PRC laws
and administrative regulations, the transfer price shall be
determined by Tchain.

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024

3.3 TchainfZ #1475 £ ZIK 1 Z

Tchainf§ K RS 48 1%

Tchainf2 b R BB (S R 5T 1 TchainfB SR AR TS
Wik I ()VIERBEHER EZERTE
ETchainfEz BB RARFS(HIER » MIRMHE
MR EFH LIRS ; KiTchainBERE (E
REDERASTEHERN) BREHFTEIL
RETHEILBEAEEERNEXEIL
REEEHFR AT B - Bl L RFSIE
FZAHRBERENIERBEEEREEZ
LREREF]AY100%; BE B W LFRE » Tchain
] 2R 5 K 2 BB AR R BT 14 B AR B 2
EZERBEEHANNESEECEERAERD
%o

TchainZEFB & EipiE

Tchain~ £ 5eE B RBE(S BRI 5] i Tchain
E=BEERE BRI EAREHIERPEEHR
R EHE R @R 7 E Kk 2258 » RESTchain
EhEARR IRBEHR N ELLRE
RELFABEHERN A ESUEIERERE
IERBEHNEE BB #FHHEEZT
(EE¥ZH

Tchainf& R & B # 15 :%

Tchain~ £ e 3L RBEE & 5] 1L Tchain
BREBERRZE BRI ()RIETchainZ 55
EER Tchaini B BREFERELER
BRIERBEHRNE MR IR REE
FTchaink, / REIETEZE=7 ; KR
ETchainZ f5E E3K > Tchainfd BRI #EF)
ERIEABEEHERFIEREEEREE
FAkEHEE (EEBEHNEE) &
EFTchaink HEIBFEA LT IEREEEH
NEE B REREERAIETEER
BRAFEERRITBUERMM AT Z REE
1% o 38 B P EA R RATBUARIE T 0 #
REER B (ES R ATchainEE ©



! ® e 'uny "N gygug

.’ '.- L] .I..._ e =

Iy ; - - e mmEE
L] o

Tchain Proxy Agreement and Power of Attorney

Tchain, Mr. Wang and Beijing OPCO entered into the
Tchain Proxy Agreement and Power of Attorney, pursuant
to which (i) Mr. Wang has nominated and appointed
designee(s) appointed by Tchain (as well as its/their
successors, including a liquidator, if any) as his attorney-
in-fact to exercise such rights as a shareholder of Beijing
OPCO on his behalf, and any right conferred by relevant
laws and regulations and the articles of association of
Beijing OPCO; and (i) Mr. Wang has covenanted with and
undertaken to Tchain that, if he receives any dividends,
interest, any other forms of capital distributions, residual
assets upon liquidation, or proceeds or consideration
from the transfer of equity interests as a result of, or in
connection with, his interests in Beijing OPCO, he shall,
to the extent permitted by applicable laws, remit all such
monies or assets to Tchain or its designated entity without
any compensation, and shall bear all taxes and fees with
respect thereto.

Tchain Equity Interest Pledge Agreement

Tchain, Mr. Wang and Beijing OPCO entered into the
Tchain Equity Interest Pledge Agreement, pursuant to
which Mr. Wang has agreed to, unconditionally and
irrevocably, pledge all of his interests in Beijing OPCO,
including any interest or dividend paid for such equity
interests, to Tchain as a security for the performance of any
and all obligations of himself and Beijing OPCO under
the Tchain Control Documents (other than the Tchain
Equity Interest Pledge Agreement) at an initial registration
amount, which was the estimated value of the obligations
of Mr. Wang and Beijing OPCO under the Tchain Control
Documents for initial registration purpose.

Tchain Confirmation and Guarantee Letter

Mr. Wang signed the Tchain Confirmation and Guarantee
Letter, pursuant to which he has confirmed and guaranteed
that, among other things:

1. his successor, guardian, creditor, spouse or any other
person that may be entitled to assume rights and
interests in his equity interests of Beijing OPCO upon
his death, incapacity, bankruptcy, divorce or any
circumstances that may affect his ability to exercise his
shareholder’s rights in Beijing OPCO, will not carry
out any act that may affect or hinder the fulfillment of
his obligations under the Tchain Control Documents;
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he will unwind the Tchain Contractual Documents
and transfer all his equity interests of Beijing OPCO
to Tchain or its designated party as soon as the
applicable PRC laws allow Tchain to operate the
businesses operated by Beijing OPCO without being
subject to the Maximum Permitted Interest Restriction
(as defined below) under the PRC laws, and that
subject to applicable PRC laws, he must donate
immediately without compensation to Tchain or its
designated party any consideration he has received
from Tchain during its acquisition of his equity
interests of Beijing OPCO;

he will not directly or indirectly engage in, own or
acquire any business that competes or might compete
with the businesses of Beijing OPCO or its affiliated
companies or have any interest in such businesses;
and none of his actions or omissions will give rise
to conflict of interest between himself and Tchain
(including but not limited to the shareholders of
Tchain); in the event of any such conflict, he will take
any action as instructed by Tchain to eliminate such
conflict, provided such action is compliant with PRC
laws; and

in the event that he has a lawful spouse during the
term of the Tchain Control Documents, he shall
procure his spouse to execute a spousal consent
in which his spouse shall, among other things, (i)
covenant to waive any rights or entitlements to his
equity interests of Beijing OPCO and not to take
any action with the intent to interfere with the
arrangement under the Tchain Control Documents;
and (ii) undertake to be bound by the Tchain Control
Documents in the event that she for any reason
obtains any of Mr. Wang's equity interests of Beijing
OPCO.
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Dispute resolutions

Each of the Tchain Control Documents (except for the
Tchain Confirmation and Guarantee Letter) contains a
disputes resolution clause which stipulates that any dispute
or claim arising out of or in connection with the same
shall be resolved by the parties in good faith through
negotiations. If no resolution can be reached, the dispute
shall be submitted to the Beijing Arbitration Commission
for arbitration in Beijing, the PRC, in accordance with its
rules of arbitration in effect at the time of application for
arbitration. The arbitral tribunal or the arbitrators shall have
the authority to award any remedy or relief in accordance
with the terms of the Tchain Control Documents and
applicable PRC laws, including provisional and permanent
injunctive relief (such as injunctive relief with respect to
the conduct of business or to compel the transfer of assets),
specific performance of any obligation created thereunder,
remedies over the equity interests or land assets of Beijing
OPCO and winding-up orders against Beijing OPCO. The
arbitral award shall be final and binding upon all parties.
In addition, to the extent permitted under applicable
PRC laws, each party shall have the right to seek interim
injunctive relief or other interim relief from a court of
competent jurisdiction in support of the arbitration when
formation of the arbitral tribunal is pending or under
appropriate circumstances. The parties agreed that, subject
to applicable laws, the courts of Hong Kong, the Cayman
Islands, Bermuda, the PRC and the places where the
principal assets of Beijing OPCO are located, shall all be
deemed to have jurisdiction.

3.4 Revenue and assets subject to the Contractual Arrangement

The consolidated total revenue of the Beijing OPCO Group
for the year ended 31 December 2024 was HK$17.8
million. The consolidated total assets and net liabilities
of the Beijing OPCO Group as at 31 December 2024
amounted to HK$242.3 million and HK$8.3 million
respectively.
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Laws and regulations relating to the provision of value-
added telecommunications services in the PRC and
reasons for adopting the Contractual Arrangements
Foreign investment activities in the PRC are mainly governed by
the Catalogue of Industries for Encouraging Foreign Investment
(B I EEE B ) (“Encouraging Catalogue”) and the
Special Administrative Measures (Negative List) for the Access
of Foreign Investment (SMEIREEA LRI EEEH (BE
7BE)) (“Negative List”), the Foreign Investment Law of the
PRC and their respective implementation rules and subsidiary
regulations. The Negative List and the Encouraging Catalogue
divide industries into four categories in terms of foreign
investment, namely, “encouraged”, “restricted”, “prohibited”
and “permitted” (the last category of which refers to industries
not listed under the former categories).

According to the Negative List, value-added
telecommunications businesses are classified as a restricted
business (“Restricted Business”), in which the proportion
of foreign investments shall not exceed 50% (except for
e-commerce, domestic multi-party communications, storage-
forwarding, and call centres) (“Maximum Permitted Interest
Restriction”).

According to the Administrative Measures on Internet
Information Services (EHt#81E BRFEIEME) and the
Telecommunication Regulation of the People’s Republic of
China (FEARHZEMBEIEEFHRA) promulgated by the State
Council of the PRC, an ICP License is required for conducting
the Restricted Business in the PRC.

The purpose for the Group to adopt the contractual
arrangements is to enable the Group to engage in the value-
added telecommunications business indirectly through
Chongging JIM, Hunan Yunrong and Beijing Tchain which hold
the ICP License.

Risks relating to the Contractual Arrangements
The Group is exposed to certain risks under the Contractual
Arrangements, which are summarised below.

e There is no assurance that the New JIM Control Documents
(Pre-Swap), the Yunrong Control Documents or the Tchain
Control Documents could comply with future changes
in the regulatory requirements in the PRC and the PRC
government may determine that the New JIM Control
Documents (Pre-Swap), the Yunrong Control Documents
or the Tchain Control Documents do not comply with
applicable regulations.
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Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation and
implementation of the Foreign Investment Law (4N #
&%) and how it may impact the viability of the current
corporate structure, corporate governance and business
operations under the Contractual Arrangements.

the New JIM Control Documents (Pre-Swap), the Yunrong
Control Documents or the Tchain Control Documents may
not be as effective as direct ownership in providing control
over Hunan Yunrong, Chongging JIM or Beijing OPCO.

The registered shareholders of Chongging JIM or Hunan
Yunrong or Mr. Wang may potentially have a conflict of
interests with the Group.

The Contractual Arrangements may be subject to scrutiny
by the PRC tax authorities and transfer pricing adjustments
and additional tax may be imposed.

Certain terms of the New JIM Control Documents (Pre-
Swap), the Yunrong Control Documents or the Tchain
Control Documents may not be enforceable under PRC
laws, such as the disputes resolution clauses stipulated
above.

A substantial amount of costs and time may be involved
in transferring the ownership of OPCOs to the Group
under the JIM Exclusive Option Agreement (Pre-Swap),
the Yunrong Exclusive Option Agreement or the Tchain
Exclusive Option Agreement.

The Group may bear economic risk which may arise from
difficulties in the operation of OPCOs.

The Company does not have any insurance which covers
the risks relating to the New JIM Control Documents (Pre-
Swap), the Yunrong Control Documents or the Tchain
Control Documents and the transactions contemplated
thereunder.
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6. Internal control measures implemented by the Group to
mitigate the risks
The New JIM Control Documents (Pre-Swap), the Yunrong
Control Documents or the Tchain Control Documents contain
certain provisions to exercise effective control over and to
safeguard the assets of OPCOs. In addition to such provisions,
the Company has adopted certain measures which may include
but not limited to management control, financial control and
legal review as follows:

¢ the Group has delegated representatives (“Representatives”)
to OPCOs, mainly responsible for exercising management
control of OPCOs; the Representatives will conduct
reviews on the operations of OPCOs;

e the Board and the Representatives shall identify major
issues arising from the implementation of and compliance
with the New JIM Control Documents (Pre-Swap), the
Yunrong Control Documents or the Tchain Control
Documents;

e any regulatory enquiries from government authorities will
be submitted to the Board, if necessary, for review and
discussion on an occurrence basis;

e the Representatives or other delegates of the Board shall
meet with the registered shareholders or directors of the
OPCOs to investigate and report any suspicious matters to
the Board;

e the Board shall collect the management accounts and
major operational data of OPCOs regularly for review
which will be no less frequent than on a quarterly basis;
the financial team of the Company will seek explanations
from the senior management of the OPCOs on any
material fluctuations;

e the Board will consult the Company’s PRC legal
advisers from time to time to check if there are any legal
developments in the PRC affecting the arrangement
contemplated under the New JIM Control Documents
(Pre-Swap), the Yunrong Control Documents or the Tchain
Control Documents, and the Board will determine if any
modification or amendment are required to be made;
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* major issues arising from implementation and performance
of the New JIM Control Documents (Pre-Swap), the
Yunrong Control Documents or the Tchain Control
Documents, if any, will be reviewed by the Board on
a regular basis; the Board will determine, as part of its
periodic review process, whether legal advisers and/or
other professionals will need to be retained to assist the
Group to deal with specific issues arising from the New
JIM Control Documents (Pre-Swap), the Yunrong Control
Documents or the Tchain Control Documents;

e the Board will disclose the overall performance and
compliance with the New JIM Control Documents (Pre-
Swap), the Yunrong Control Documents or the Tchain
Control Documents in its annual report to update the
Shareholders and potential investors; and

e the Company shall comply with the conditions prescribed
under the waiver granted by the Stock Exchange in
connection with the continuing connected transactions
contemplated under the Yunrong Control Documents and
the New JIM Control Documents.

Material change

Save for the fact that Beijing Tchain Group was no longer
contractually controlled by the Company under the New
JIM Control Documents (Pre-Swap) through Chongging JIM
but through Beijing OPCO by way of the Tchain Control
Documents as disclosed in paragraph 3.1 above, there was no
material change of the Contractual Arrangements during the
year ended 31 December 2024.

Unwinding of Contractual Arrangements

As at the date of this annual report, there is no unwinding of
any of the Contractual Arrangements, nor failure to unwind
when the restrictions that led to the adoption of the Contractual
Arrangements are removed.
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BUSINESS OUTLOOK

In 2024, China’s economy strived for growth amidst “escalating
external pressures and rising internal challenges” with more
determining factors affecting the economic growth than ever before.
With the ongoing recovery of domestic demand, improvements in
external demand and enhancements in the quality of economic
development, China’s economy maintains its stability and retains
its long-term positive attributes. Looking ahead to 2025, we are
optimistic about achieving stable long-term development in China’s
economy, bolstered by its strong foundation, various competitive
edges, strong resilience, vast potential, and its long-term positive
attributes.

PAYMENT AND DIGITAL SERVICES

In 2024, we actively implemented the principle of “payment for
the people” by focusing on serving frequent small-value payment
transactions, and continued to advance our digital strategy. During
2024, the digital payment volume experienced significant growth,
achieving a year-on-year growth of more than 30%. Our Paa$S
platform continues to bring in new partners, covering multiple
business transactions across various sectors, including catering,
retail, second-hand car trading market, gas station, hotel, tourist
attraction, wet market, property management and campus payment.

Our cross-border business has consistently adhered to a
differentiation strategy, continuously exploring opportunities in new
regions, new businesses and new platforms. During the period, we
continued to establish differentiated service capabilities for local
platforms in overseas regions, such as South America, Southeast
Asia and the Middle East, while expanding the scope of our services
across various business sectors. In 2025, we will continue to invest
in cutting-edge technologies such as artificial intelligence, big data
and cloud computing. We aim to continuously build and refine
intelligent models to optimize and enhance risk identification,
capabilities across various business sectors. This will accelerate the
integration of digital technology and trade, enabling us to create a
more comprehensive, secure and efficient payment infrastructure
for enterprises, thereby promoting the steady development of cross-
border business.
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During the year, we have actively engaged in the “Further
Optimizing Payment Convenience for Foreigners in China” initiative
spearheaded by the People’s Bank of China. Our objective is to
provide foreign visitors with a better local payment experience
and address payment-related issues they may encounter. In field
of foreign card acceptance, we are committed to strengthening
cooperation with international payment card organizations in
domestic acquiring sector and actively exploring innovative models
to enhance the overall payment convenience for foreigners in
China. We have successfully obtained CNP (Card-Not-Present)
business licenses from three major international card organizations.
From now on, we are capable of connecting domestic enterprises
with global businesses in payments as an acquirer, unlocking
new opportunities for payments in international trade and also
empowering enterprises with more control in cross-border payment.
At the same time, we focus on addressing the challenges faced
by small and micro merchants when processing foreign cards
transactions. By leveraging a range of innovative products, we
strive to lower costs for merchants and empower small and micro
merchants to integrate into the international payment system that
enable them to share the benefits from in cross-border consumption,
and thus, bringing surging vitality into the diversification and
internationalization of the domestic business ecosystem.

Apart from utilizing our Paa$S platform in conjunction with software
service providers to offer offline customers with digital operation
services, we have continuously launched our self-developed
digital products to enhance our customers’ digital operation
strategies. Our digital operation products have penetrated the
retail, the used car dealership and catering industries. The digital
operation products we launched for the catering industry in 2024
have reached North America, Europe, Southeast Asia and China,
having secured contracts with 20,000 stores, and with more than
5,000 put into operation. From the outset, our products have been
positioned globally, serving a diverse clientele in the catering
industry, including renowned Chinese brands as well as prominent
international brands.
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FINTECH SERVICES

Suixin Cloud Chain Technology Service Platform continued to focus
on the corporate credit and data credit business, offering a diverse
range of products and services to meet various financing needs
in different scenarios. This aims to help SMEs obtain financing in
a faster and more efficient way. E-Finance ({588 E §%), a credit
product we launched in the first half of 2024, attained solid progress
on the issuance of asset-back securities under our E-Finance
business. In 2024, we realized the diversified development plans
in our asset securitization business, and introduced innovative note
products such as “1+N” model, “N+N" model and “E finance N+N”"
model to provide greater financial support to financing enterprises
through asset securitization. In 2024, the number of registered
enterprises on Suixin Cloud Chain Platform increased by more than
1,700, representing a year-on-year increase of more than over 60%.

PLATFORM OPERATION SOLUTIONS

In 2024, we have gained extensive customer and market
recognition through our persistent business development effort
in the operator market, as well as continuous improvements in
our delivery capabilities and service standards. Under the general
backdrop of cost-cutting across the operators, we have maintained
the overall business scale with stable income from our major
operation. The addition of customers from the financial and
telecommunications industries to the corporate WeChat marketing
agency operation has laid a solid foundation for growth in the next
year. This year, we continued to invest in technology research and
development, and optimized the underlying platforms, tools and
software to ensure the advancement and stability of technologies.
Looking ahead to the next year, operators are expected to further
reduce costs, and our existing market scale is anticipated to shrink.
In response to this market trend, we will maintain a prudent
business strategy by continuing to navigate and explore the existing
market, leverage multiple channels to expand our customer base,
continue to refine our products and enhance quality of services,
striving to capture certain market share amid competition, and
achieve business growth.
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FINANCIAL SOLUTIONS

BJ ABS has been committed to providing system services for
domestic financial institutions. In 2024, due to the impact of the
overall financial environment, there has been a certain degree
of reduction in the demands for system innovation, construction,
transformation and regular maintenance from financial customers.
At the same time, B] ABS focused on three major directions in
navigating of new business opportunities. First, we have increased
R&D investment in wealth management system and payment
business system in the Bay Area, continued to optimize system
functions to enhance system compatibility to better support our
customers’ business development, including cross-border wealth
management, FPS, Swift upgrade, BRICS currency bridge and CIPS
access, etc., which are the main growth points for the business.

In addition, we have made every effort to promote the upgrading
of IT application innovation on the customers’ end, including
comparison testing platform, business intermediary software,
database connector and batch scheduling tools. We have been
receiving orders for these technologies as they gained recognition
from customers. Moreover, we have made a concerted effort
to promote our core microservice product, IBS9.0, focusing on
developing urban and agricultural commercial bank customers,
where strong demands are expected in the future.

For overseas business, Shenzhen Hi Sun has established various
overseas offices to actively engaged in market expansion and
the research and development of new products, in addition to
supporting the delivery of existing customer projects. In terms of the
existing customer service, three core business systems for banks and
one IBM host migration project were commissioned and delivered
during the year. In terms of market expansion, while consolidating
the presence in the Southeast Asian market, we are in the process of
outlining the expansion plans in the Middle East and Africa markets.
As of now, we have made progress in certain business areas, with
significant potential for breakthroughs by 2025. Furthermore, in
the research and development of new product solutions, we have
conducted specific research and development of product solutions
and exchanged information with a number of bank customers in
response to the needs of traditional banks for digital transformation.
In view of the business opportunities presented by IBM’s mainframe
migration and the opportunity of completing the delivery of a
customer’s project in Thailand in 2024, we will continue to enhance
our products, which will be a key priority for us in the next year.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

A considerable portion of the Group’s revenue is derived from a
small number of customers in China. Failure to maintain good
relationships with these customers could materially and adversely
affect our financial results.

Our business operates in an industry that is subject to changes
in market conditions, technological advancements, developing
industry standards and changing customers’ needs and preferences
for our new products and/or services. Failure to promptly respond
to changes, continually enhance existing products and launch new
products to the market in a timely manner may adversely affect our
business performance. Also, any unauthorised use of our intellectual
property by third parties could harm our business and competitive
position.

The Group maintains significant amount of loan receivables, which
primarily comprise micro-lending and supply-chain financing
loans, under our Fintech services segment. Credit risk is the
Group’s primary risk exposure. It is the default risk presented by
loan borrowers and counterparties. Losses may arise if there are
shortfalls in the recovery amount received for defaulted loans.
Substantial defaults in these loan receivables could disrupt our
business operations and our financial position may be materially
and adversely affected.

The industries in which we operate in the PRC are subject to
extensive industry standards and government regulations, failing
compliance of which may adversely affect our operation and sales.
Regarding our payment and digital services business in the PRC,
we are currently operating under three main payment licenses,
namely national bank card acceptance, online payment and mobile
payment licenses. We successfully completed the renewal of the
licence, which will remain valid until June 2027.

The Group has been operating certain lines of business which adopt
contract-based arrangements and/or structures for the purpose of
enabling the Group, as foreign investor, to control and benefit from
the PRC operating companies in the foreign restricted businesses
in the PRC. However, such arrangements may not be as effective
in providing operational control as direct ownership. In addition,
there can be no assurance that the PRC government authority would
continue to regard these Contractual Arrangements as being in
compliance with the applicable PRC laws and regulations, or that
the legal requirements or policies that may be adopted in the future
would not affect the Contractual Arrangements and the relevant
business operations. Details of the Contractual Arrangements are
set out in section above titled “Information on the Contractual
Arrangements” in the Report of the Directors on page 39.
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Also, volatility in the securities market may affect the Company’s
shares investments. The Company is also subject to market risks,
such as currency fluctuations, volatility of interest rates, credit risks,
and liquidity risks in the normal course of the Group’s business.
Particulars of financial risk management of the Company are set out
in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES AND
ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of its
businesses and the communities with which it engages. We uphold
this business approach by managing our business prudently and
executing management decisions with due care and attention. The
Company regularly conducts review of, the Environmental, Social
and Governance issues, related approach and strategy, goals and
targets, and if appropriate takes necessary measures to enhance
and adjust, the Group’s Environmental, Social and Governance
performance, compliance with relevant laws and regulations,
key relationships with employees, customers and suppliers and
stakeholders having significant impact on the Group.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The followings outline the relevant laws and regulations which had
a significant impact on the Group’s business during the year.

Payment business license

Non-financial institutions acting as intermediaries between payees
and payers to provide online payment, issuance and acceptance
of prepaid cards, bankcard acquiring, and other payment services
determined by the PBOC shall obtain a “payment business license”.

Compliance Measures

Regulatory Relations Department and Compliance Department
of the Group directly communicate with relevant government
departments and review policy changes, and adopt measures to
regularly review and ensure that relevant business licenses are
validly maintained.

Regulations on online payment and bankcard acquiring
business

Payment institutions, when providing online payment services, shall
apply a real-name management system to register and take effective
measures to verify the real identity information of account holders,
and bankcard acquirers shall implement real-name management of
merchants and follow the “KYC” principle.
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Compliance Measures

The Group adopts relevant internal control rules and systems
to record customer information and keep transaction records.
In addition, the Group implements the regulations of the PBOC
regarding customer information protection (see “Regulations on the
Protection of Personal Information and Privacy” below for details).

Regulations on the management of customer reserves
Non-bank payment institutions shall (1) deposit the customer
reserves received directly to the centralized depository account
maintained with the PBOC; and (2) pay industry protection funds
to make up for specific losses of customer reserves or for other
purposes specified by the PBOC.

Compliance Measures
The Group has formulated supervision and review measures to
ensure compliance with the corresponding requirements.

Regulations on the administration of testing and
certification of the payment business system

Relevant laws and regulations set out the requirements for the
security management of payment business of third-party payment
institutions in respect of the business system and communication
system.

Compliance Measures

The Group adopts relevant internal control systems to ensure
compliance with the relevant management requirements and
regulations.

Regulations on the standards for the barcode payment
business

Relevant laws and regulations govern the application of barcode
technology by banking financial institutions or non-bank payment
institutions to engage in the monetary capital transfer business.

Compliance Measures

The Group adopts relevant internal control systems and regular
review measures to ensure compliance and that relevant business
licenses are maintained.

Regulations on the protection of financial consumers
Non-bank payment institutions shall establish protocols for the
protection of the rights and interests of financial consumers.

Compliance Measures

The Group formulates and enhance internal policies and measures
to disclose information to consumers, and perform fair customer
treatment responsibilities.
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Regulations on the micro-lending business
The establishment of a micro-lending company shall be approved
by the in-charge provincial government department.

Micro-lending companies established within the administrative
region of Jiangxi Province as a new type of financial organization
that provides micro-lending services for the development of
agriculture, rural areas, farmers. Online micro-lending companies
complete the entire business process from risk review, loan
application approval, lending and recovery through online platform.
Both of them shall not accept public deposits.

Compliance Measures

The Group holds an online micro-lending business license, and
has formulated guidelines, approvals and notifications measures to
strengthen supervision and management to ensure strict compliance
with operating conditions.

Regulations on the factoring business

Such regulations regulate commercial factoring companies’
provision of the businesses such as factoring financing, sales ledger
management, collection of accounts receivable, non-commercial
guarantee against bad debts, investigation and evaluation of
customers’ credits, and other relevant consulting services.

Compliance Measures

The Group has formulated internal monitoring and control
measures, and strictly abides by the relevant regulations, including
keeping customer identity information and transaction records.

Regulations on the issuance of asset-backed securities

The issuance of asset securities, its listing and trading on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange shall comply with the Business Guidelines
of Shanghai Stock Exchange on Asset Securitization and the
applicable rules of the Shanghai Stock Exchange. Relevant laws and
regulations standardize asset securitization business, maintain the
normal market order and protect the legal interests of investors.

Compliance Measures

The Group has formulated internal monitoring and control measures
to identify, evaluate and manage the risks in the development of
asset securitization business, formulate and implement risk control
measures, and coordinate and supervise other participating entities
to perform relevant responsibilities.
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Regulations on the restriction of foreign investment
Foreign-invested value-added telecommunication enterprises in the
PRC shall be established as sino-foreign equity joint ventures, and
foreign investors’ ultimate investment in the enterprise shall not
exceed 50%. Foreign investors shall also have good performance
and operational experience in relevant business.

Compliance Measures

The Group has formulated internal control measures, sought legal
opinions, and paid attention to changes in regulations to ensure
that the contractual arrangements and/or structure adopted to
operate business comply with laws and meet relevant operational
requirements.

Regulations on anti-money laundering and anti-terrorist
financing

Non-financial institutions shall fulfill their anti-money laundering
obligations, including the verification of customer identification,
reporting suspicious large-value transactions and keeping customer
information and transaction records.

Compliance Measures

Our “anti-money laundering department” and “anti-money
laundering system” screen suspicious transactions and enhance the
Group’s capability to identify suspicious transactions. Our large-
value and suspicious transaction monitoring system investigates
large-value suspicious transactions, so as to safeguard legitimate
rights and interests, and ensure information and transaction security.

Regulations on the protection of personal information and
privacy

Such regulations regulate the collection and use of personal
information in the provision of telecommunications services and
Internet information services in the PRC.

Compliance Measures

The Group has established a comprehensive mechanism of network
operation security and information security protection to maintain
operation and information security and confidentiality, and regularly
conduct data backups to ensure the integrity of information and
transaction security, and use personal information as required.

Value-added telecommunications business license
All telecommunications service providers shall obtain operating
licenses before the commencement of operation in the PRC.
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Compliance Measures

The Group holds the relevant business licenses. It also conducts
annual inspections and self-checks, and adopts regular review
measures to ensure the valid existence of the relevant business
licenses.

During the year, there was no violation or breach of relevant laws
and regulations that had a significant impact on the Group.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

Remuneration packages are generally structured with reference
to prevailing market terms and individual qualifications. Salaries
and wages are normally reviewed on an annual basis based on
performance appraisals and other relevant factors.

Apart from salary payments, there are other staff benefits including
mandatory provident fund, medical insurance and performance
related discretionary bonus. Share options and awards may also be
granted to eligible employees of the Group as incentives or rewards.

Relationship is the fundamental of business. The Group fully
understands this principle and thus maintains close relationship
with customers to fulfil their immediate and long-term needs.

Due to the Group’s nature of business, there is no major supplier
that may have significant influence on the Group’s operations.
However, the Group strives to maintain fair and co-operative
relationship with the suppliers.

DIVIDEND

The Board considers sustainable returns to shareholders whilst
retaining adequate reserves for the Group’s future development to
be an objective. Under the Company’s dividend policy, dividends
may be declared from time to time and be paid to shareholders
provided that the Group is profitable, without affecting the normal
operations of the Group. In summary, the declaration of dividends
and the dividend amount shall be determined at the sole and
absolute discretion of the Board taking into account the following
factors:

o the Group’s financial performance;

o the liquidity position and capital requirements of the Group;
and

e any other factors that the Board may consider appropriate.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2024 and up to
the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors:

XU Wensheng

KUI Man Chun

LI Wenjin

XU Changjun

Hui Lok Yan (Appointed on 14 March 2024)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
TAM Chun Fai

LEUNG Wai Man, Roger

LI Heguo

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, not less than one-third
of the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at annual general meeting, and every Director shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every 3 years.

Mr. Kui Man Chun, Mr. Xu Changjun and Mr. Li Heguo shall retire
from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting
in accordance with Bye-law 87(1). Being eligible, they will offer
themselves for re-election in accordance with Bye-law 87(2).

UPDATE ON INFORMATION OF DIRECTOR
PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B(1) OF LISTING RULES

Mr. Tam Chun Fai resigned as an executive director of Beijing
Enterprises Holding Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, with effect from 1 January 2025.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract with the Group
which is not determinable by the Group within 1 year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section titled “Share Capital, Share Options,
Share Awards and Equity-linked Agreements” of this annual report,
at no time during or at the end of the year was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisitions of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, and
none of the Directors, chief executive or their spouses or children
under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for securities of the
Company, or had exercised any such right during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

There was no transaction, arrangement or contract of significance
in which any Director or any entity connected with a Director is
or was materially interested directly or indirectly subsisted during
or at the end of the year, nor was there any contract of significance
between the Group and a controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries, or any contract of significance for the provision of
services to the Group by a controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management are set out on pages 4 to 6.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors
and officers of the Group was in force throughout the year and has
remained in force as at the date of this annual report.

Throughout the year, the Company maintained appropriate directors
and officers liability insurance cover providing indemnity against
liabilities, including liability in respect of legal actions against the
Directors and officers of the Group, thereby sustained or incurred
arising from or incidental to execution of duties of his/her offices,
subject to terms and conditions of the policy.
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DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2024, the interests and short positions of each
Director and Chief Executive in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Cap. 571) (“SFO")), as recorded in the register maintained by the
Company under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in
Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules (“Model Code”) were as follows:

EERBSTEA BN AERIRGR
M R R AA

RZZZNFE+ZA=+—R BEFRESTH
AERERBREEREE (ERREFRAERD

(B571%) (EEFRHERFRG) SEXVED) Z R 48
R R E#ETHEA B AR RBREES R
BIRAIFE3UFFE B MR E L HRAI M &
GPiz LT AEFETESRS ZRETH

(MR#ESFR)) BUEMB SRR B KRBT Z
BmioRBuT

Amount of issued/registered share
capital in associated corporation (RMB)

Number of ordinary Shares (of HK$0.0025 each) REBEENCELT/dRRseE
EERYE (BRERE05ET) (AEET)
Percentage of
equity interests
Personal Corporate Percentage of associated
interest interest Total shareholding ** Total corporation
iy 74 PERERN
Director g% ARz G5 s Bl by RiEaA
Kui Man Chun RE5 36,650,000 (L* 617,083,036 (L)* 053,733,636 (L)* 23.54% - -
(note (i)
(i)
Xu Wensheng ik 11,966,000 (L* S 11,966,000 (L)* 0.43% 1,965,455 (L* 3.29%**
(note (i)
(i)
550,000 (L* 2%+
(notei)
(i)
Xu Changjun GEES 23,958,000 (L} - 23,958,000 (L* 0.86% 1,768,909 (L)* 2.96%**
(note (i)
(ki)
550,000 (Lj* 29+
(notei)
(i)
Li Wenjin £y 13,800,000 (L* S 13,800,000 (L* 0.50% 550,000 (LJ* 20+
(notei)
(i)
Hui Lok Yan® B 2,100,000 (L - 2,100,000 (LJ* 0.08% 393,091 (L 0.66%**
(note (i)
(ki)
350,000 (L)* 1.27%*#
(notefif))
(i)
Notes: Vorz2

(i)  Representing Shares held by Mr. Kui Man Chun through (1) Hi Sun Limited,
a company in which he holds a 99.16% interest, and (2) Rich Global
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hi Sun Limited.

(i) Representing the personal interest in Megahunt.

(iii) Representing the personal interest in Shenzhen Hi Sun.

*  The Letter “L” denotes a long position.

**  Calculated based on the total number of issued Shares as at 31 December
2024, which was 2,776,833,835 ordinary shares.

***  Calculated based on the issued share capital of Megahunt as at 31
December 2024, which was RMB59,800,000.

**** Calculated based on the registered share capital of Shenzhen Hi Sun as at
31 December 2024, which was RMB27,500,000.

Ms. Hui Lok Yan was appointed as an Executive Director on 14 March 2024.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2024, the interests and short positions of
substantial Shareholders and other persons (other than a Director, or
the Chief Executive) in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and as recorded in
the register maintained by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO were as follows:

Ordinary share of HK$0.0025 each in the Company

Personal
interest
Name of shareholder
(e ey 2 BAEZ
Mr. Kui Man Chun (Note 1) 36,650,000 (L)*
REELE W)

Rich Global Limited (“RGL")*** -
Rich Global Limited (TRGLJ )+

Hi Sun Limited (“HSL")*** (Note 2) =
Hi Sun Limited (THSL 1 )*** (#7z22)

Ever Union Capital Limited (“Ever Union”) -
Ever Union Capital Limited (" Ever Union J)

Mr. Che Fung (Note 3) =
BT E Wat3)

Kopernik Global Investors, LLC -

Notes:

1 Representing (i) deemed interests in the Shares by virtue of control of
99.16% shareholding of HSL; and (ii) personal interests in 28,650,000
ordinary Shares.

2 Representing interests in the Shares by virtue of control of 100%
shareholding in RGL.

3 Representing interests in the Shares by virtue of control of 100%
shareholding in Ever Union.

*  The Letter “L” denotes a long position.

**  The percentage is calculated based on the total number of Shares as at 31
December 2024, which was 2,776,833,835 ordinary Shares.

Mr. Kui Man Chun and Mr. Li Wenjin are directors of RGL and Mr. Kui Man
Chun, Mr. Li Wenjin and Mr. Xu Wensheng are directors of HSL which
are deemed or taken to have interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which are required to be disclosed under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.
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Corporate Total number of Percentage of

interest ordinary shares shareholding**
gz

L 3 BERAH [Ep:dine
617,083,636 ()* 653,733,636 (L)* 23.54%
617,083,636 (L)* 617,083,636 (L)* 22.22%
617,083,636 ()* 617,083,636 (L)* 22.22%
334,314,000 (L)* 334,314,000 (L)* 12.04%
334,314,000 (L)* 334,314,000 (L)* 12.04%
195,141,000 (L)* 195,141,000 (L)* 7.03%

Hat

1 FE0)FEZEFIHSLZ99.16% MR EM R AR RN P A G ;
Ke(ii)£28,650,0000% & @A P iER 2 18 A o

2 IEREHIRGLZT00%BE M IRID R R 2 1 o

3 35EEZEHEver Union Z100%IG MR BN iR = s
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed as follows, there is no other connected transaction
or continuing connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules subject to disclosure requirement
during the year ended 31 December 2024:

Continuing Connected Transactions — Contractual
Arrangement

Yunrong Control Documents

In 2019, the Group implemented a restructuring involving Hunan
Yunrong and its subsidiaries (“Yunrong Group”). Upon completion
of the restructuring, Mr. Zhang and Mr. Wei became the registered
shareholders of Hunan Yunrong, holding 70% and 30% of Yunrong
Equity Interests respectively. Yunrong Control Documents were
entered into between Hunan Yunrong, Mr. Zhang, Mr. Wei and
Beijing Hi Sunsray to allow Beijing Hi Sunsray to contractually
control 100% Yunrong Equity Interests and the management of
Hunan Yunrong.

Beijing Hi Sunsray and Hunan Yunrong entered into the Yunrong
Master Exclusive Service Agreement, pursuant to which (i) Hunan
Yunrong has appointed and designated the Beijing Hi Sunsray as
its exclusive service provider to provide the technical and business
support services and (ii) Beijing Hi Sunsray has agreed to (to the
extent permissible under PRC law) provide financial support in
the form of interest-free loan, as permitted by PRC laws, to Hunan
Yunrong by separate agreements to be executed and performed by
the parties. The service fee payable for the said services shall be
equal to 100% of the audited consolidated net profits of Hunan
Yunrong; notwithstanding the foregoing the Beijing Hi Sunsray
may adjust the service fee at its sole discretion and in accordance
with the requirements of relevant governmental authorities, with
reference to the working capital requirements of Hunan Yunrong.

During the year, there were no service fee, dividends or other
distributions payable by Hunan Yunrong to the holders of the equity
interests of Hunan Yunrong and loan made by Beijing Hi Sunsray to
Hunan Yunrong.
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Each of Mr. Zhang and Mr. Wei is a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company and hence a connected person of the Company
at subsidiary level. The Yunrong Control Documents shall remain
effective save as otherwise terminated in accordance with their
respective terms and conditions. Therefore, the transactions
contemplated under the Yunrong Control Documents constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company with
connected persons at the subsidiary level under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules and are subject to the reporting, announcement
and annual review requirements and can be exempt from the
circular, independent financial advice and Shareholders’ approval
requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.101 of the Listing Rules.

Please also refer to details set out in the section above titled
“Information on the contractual arrangements” and the
announcement of the Company dated 21 May 2019.

Chongqing JIM VIE Restructuring

In 2019, Chongging JIM, VBill OPCO, Chongging JIM Shareholders
and each of Mr. Shen Zheng, Mr. Li Huimin, Mr. Xue Guangyu and
Ms. Ge Xiaoxia (collectively the “VBill Management Shareholders”)
entered into a share swap agreement, pursuant to which each of
the VBill Management Shareholders agreed to transfer all the equity
interests they respectively hold in VBill OPCO, representing an
aggregate of 19.96% equity interest in VBill OPCO, to Chongging
JIM upon completion of certain conditions. As consideration for
the transfer of the VBill OPCO equity interests, Chongging JIM
will increase its registered capital in the amount of RMB526,300
(representing an aggregate of approximately 5% of its the enlarged
registered capital), which shall be registered under the names of
the VBill Management Shareholders. As at the date of this annual
report, the Share Swap Agreement has not yet completed.

Chongging JIM, Chongqing JIM Shareholders and New WFOE
further entered into the New JIM Control Documents (Pre-Swap).

New WFOE and Chongging JIM also entered into the JIM Master
Exclusive Service Agreement (Pre-Swap), pursuant to which (i)
Chongging JIM has appointed and designated New WFOE as its
exclusive service provider to provide the technical and business
support services and (ii) New WFOE has agreed to provide financial
support in the form of interest-free loan, as permitted by PRC
laws, to Chongging JIM by separate agreements to be executed
and performed by the parties. The service fee payable for the said
services shall be equal to 100% of the audited consolidated net
profits of Chongging JIM; notwithstanding the foregoing New WFOE
may adjust the service fee at its sole discretion and in accordance
with the requirements of relevant governmental authorities, with
reference to the working capital requirements of Chongging JIM.
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During the year, there were no service fee, dividends or other
distributions payable by Chongging JIM to the holders of the equity
interests of Chongging JIM and loan made by New WFOE to
Chongging JIM.

Each of the VBill Management Shareholders and their respective
solely owned companies is a connected person of the Company
at subsidiary level. Each of the Chongging JIM Shareholders is
a director of certain insignificant subsidiaries of the Company.
Chongqging JIM Shareholders will cease to be exempted
as connected persons of the Company if the insignificant
subsidiary exemptions under Rule 14A.09 no longer apply. If
so, the transactions contemplated under the Chongging JIM VIE
Restructuring (except step (iv)) constitute connected transactions
and/or continuing connected transactions at subsidiary level under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and are subject to the reporting,
announcement and annual review requirements but can be exempt
from the circular, independent financial advice and Shareholders’
approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.101 of the Listing
Rules.

Please also refer to details set out in the section above titled
“Information on the contractual arrangements” and the
announcements of the Company dated 21 May 2019 and 24
October 2019.

Grant of waiver

The Company has applied for, and the Stock Exchange has granted a
waiver pursuant to Rule 14A.102 of the Listing Rules from (i) fixing
the term of the Yunrong Control Documents and New JIM Control
Documents for a period of not exceeding three years pursuant
to Rule 14A.52 of the Listing Rules, and (ii) setting a maximum
aggregate annual cap pursuant to Rule 14A.53 of the Listing Rules
for (x) the services fees payable by Hunan Yunrong to Beijing Hi
Sunsray and the amount of loans to be made available by Beijing
Hi Sunsray to Hunan Yunrong (as contemplated under the Yunrong
Control Documents), and (y) the services fees payable by Chongging
JIM to the New WFOE and the amount of loans to be made
available by the new WFOE to Chongging JIM (as contemplated
under the New JIM Control Documents). The waiver is subject to the
conditions as set out more particularly in the announcement of the
Company dated 21 May 2019.

Views of Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Independent Non-Executive Directors have reviewed the
Yunrong Control Documents and New JIM Control Documents and
confirmed that the transactions carried out during the year ended
31 December 2024 have been entered into (i) in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group; and (ii) on normal
commercial terms or better; and (iii) according to the Yunrong
Control Documents and New JIM Control Documents on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a
whole.
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31 December
2024 in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagement Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised) “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The Board confirms that the auditor has issued to the
Board an unqualified letter confirming the matters in accordance
with Rule T4A.56 of the Listing Rules in respect of the Group’s
continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31 December
2024 as being in order.

The Company has complied with the applicable requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with respect to the continuing
connected transactions and there was no other connected
transactions required to comply with any reporting, announcement
or independent shareholders” approval requirements under the
Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2024.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

A summary of the significant related party transactions is disclosed
in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements. None of
the related party transactions constituted connected transaction
or continuing connected transaction under the Listing Rules.
The Company confirms that it has complied with the applicable
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2024.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate amount of purchases attributable to the 5 largest
suppliers of items which are not of capital nature was less than 30%
of the total purchases of the Group for the year.

The aggregate amount of sales attributable to the 5 largest customers
was less than 30% of the total revenue of the Group for the year.
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SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Grant of options under the VBill (Cayman) Share Options
Scheme

On 7 March 2025, the board of directors of VBill (Cayman) resolved
to grant options (the “VBill (Cayman) Options”) to 9 eligible
participants (the “Grantees”) pursuant to the VBill (Cayman) Share
Option Scheme (the “Grant”). Such Grant is conditional upon the
Shareholders” approval at the special general meeting to be held
on 28 March 2025 (or such date to which the meeting may be
adjourned) (the “Special General Meeting”).

A total of 2,401 VBill (Cayman) Options,
approximately 29.998% of the issued share capital of VBill
(Cayman) as at the adoption date of the VBill (Cayman) Share
Options Scheme and also the date of grant, if exercised in full
were conditionally granted to the Grantees, including (i) Mr. Xu
Wensheng, Mr. Li Wenjin, Mr. Xu Changjun and Ms. Hui Lok Yan,
each an executive Director; (ii) Mr. Chen Dong, the senior vice

representing

president of the Company; and (iii) Mr. Shen Zheng, Mr. Li Bing,
Mr. Xue Guanyu and Ms. Ge Xiaoxia (collectively the “Relevant
Grantees”), being the directors and/or supervisors of members of
VBill (Cayman) Group and/or the Group.

Each VBill (Cayman) Option shall entitle the Grantees to subscribe
for one share of VBill (Cayman) at a subscription price (i.e. exercise
price) of HK$235,000, representing a premium of approximately
0.4% over the unaudited consolidated net asset value of VBill
(Cayman) as at 30 September 2024 (excluding the amount
attributable to the non-controlling interest in the VBill (Cayman)
Group)).

Approximately 40%, 30% and 30% of the VBill (Cayman) Options
shall vest on the first, second and third anniversary of the date of
grant respectively, and are exercisable immediately upon vesting
and until 7 March 2034 in single or multiple tranches.

Although there is no performance target attached to the VBill
(Cayman) Options, the VBill (Cayman) Options (to the extent
unvested or vested but not exercised) granted shall be subject to the
clawback mechanism stipulated in the scheme rules, including but
not limited to events such as fraud, misconduct and termination of
employment of the Grantee.

Since the Grant to each Grantee exceeds the 1% individual limit
(as defined in the Listing Rules) and to the Grantees in aggregate
exceeds the 10% scheme mandate limit (as defined in the Listing
Rules), the Grant is subject to the Shareholders’ approval at the
Special General Meeting.
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Pursuant to the Listing Rules, options granted under a share
scheme must be personal to the grantee and may not be transferred
or assigned. To facilitate a compliant structure for the Relevant
Grantees, all being PRC nationals, to exercise the options and
subsequently hold the shares of VBill (Cayman), the Company has
applied for a waiver and the Stock Exchange has granted a waiver
pursuant to the note to Rule 17.03(17) of the Listing Rules in
respect of the Relevant Grantees” assignment of their VBill (Cayman)
Options to their respective companies incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands (the “BVI Cos”).

To uphold the integrity of the VBill (Cayman) Share Option Scheme
and ensure that it continues to meet its purpose while allowing the
aforesaid assignment such that the Relevant Grantees can obtain
the benefits of their equity interest in VBill (Cayman), the Company
has imposed and adopted the following special conditions and
measures to safeguard the interest of the Shareholders, including
without limitation, restricting the legal and beneficial ownership of
the BVI Cos throughout the exercise period, requiring the Relevant
Grantees to prove their legal and beneficial ownership, and issuing
announcement to update the Shareholders in the event of change of
legal and beneficial ownership of the BVI Cos.

Further details can be found in the Company’s announcement and
circular both dated 7 March 2025.

PENSION SCHEME

The subsidiaries incorporated and operating in Hong Kong
participate in a defined contribution retirement scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) in accordance with the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance (Cap. 485) under which employer
and employees are each required to make regular mandatory
contributions calculated at 5% of the employee’s relevant income
(“Mandatory Contributions”) to the MPF Scheme, subject to the
minimum and maximum relevant income levels as prescribed by
law. Employees may also make voluntary contributions additional to
the Mandatory Contributions.

Any Mandatory Contributions paid for and in respect of an
employee are fully and immediately vested in the employee once
paid to the trustee of the MPF Scheme and any investment return
derived from the investment of the Mandatory Contributions is
also fully and immediately vested in the employee. The employees
are entitled to 100% of the accrued benefits derived from the
employer’s Mandatory Contributions upon retirement at the age of
65 years old, death or total incapacity, subject to other applicable
provisions of law.
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In addition, pursuant to the government regulations in the PRC,
the Group is required to contribute to certain retirement benefit
schemes in favour of the employees in the PRC an amount equal
to approximately 7% to 20% of their respective yearly wages. The
local municipal government undertakes to assume the retirement
benefits obligations of those workers of the Group.

There is no arrangement where contributions may be forfeited under
the defined contribution schemes of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors is interested in any business, apart from the
Group’s business, which competed or was likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly with the Group’s business.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of its Directors as at the date of this
annual report, the Directors confirm that the Company has
maintained at all times the sufficient public float as required under
the Listing Rules during the year.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who has remained as the Company’s auditor for each of the preceding
three years and will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

This Report of the Directors shall comprise all such cross-references
herein contained to other parts of this annual report.

On behalf of the Board

Xu Wensheng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 March 2025
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The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report
for the year ended 31 December 2024.

The Company wishes to highlight the importance of its Board
in ensuring effective leadership and control of the Company,
transparency and accountability of all operations and that its
business is conducted in accordance with applicable laws, rules
and regulations.

The Company also recognises the importance of good corporate
governance to the Group’s healthy growth and has devoted
considerable efforts to identifying and formulating corporate
governance practices appropriate to the Group’s needs.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles (the “Principles”) and code provisions (the “Code
Provisions”) in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) set
out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules.

In formulating and implementing its corporate governance practices
and standards, the Company has applied the Principles and
complied with all applicable Code Provisions for the year ended 31
December 2024.

The Board periodically reviews and monitors the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance or compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements and employees’ compliance
manual to ensure that the Group’s operations are conducted in
accordance with the standards of the CG Code and applicable
disclosure requirements. Directors and senior management are
provided with appropriate ongoing training, continuing professional
development for regular updates of the legal and regulatory
requirements relevant to their duties.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group has adopted a written code regulating Directors’ and
senior management’s securities transactions, on terms no less
exacting than the required standard as set out in the Model Code.

Specific enquiry had been made to all Directors and the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
and the Group’s code regarding securities transactions by Directors
throughout the year and up to the date of this annual report.
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The key corporate governance principles and practices of the
Company are summarised as follows:

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in
the Board, which assumes responsibility for leadership and control
of the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs.
All Directors make decisions objectively in the best interests of the
Company.

The Board reserves power for decisions concerning all major
matters which include, inter alia, the approval and monitoring of all
policy matters, overall strategies and budgeting, internal control and
risk management systems, material transactions (in particular those
which may involve conflict of interests of Director(s) or substantial
shareholder(s), appointment of Directors and other significant
financial and operational matters.

All Directors are provided with full and timely access to Board
papers and relevant information, as well as the advice and services
of the Company Secretary, with a view to ensuring that Board
procedures and all applicable laws, rules and regulations are
followed.

To assist the Directors in performing their duties, each Director may
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
to assist in the performance of directors duties at the Company’s
expense, upon making a timely request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the senior management. Clear directions
as to the senior management’s powers, the scope of delegations
and relevant arrangements are periodically reviewed to ensure
they remain appropriate to the Company’s needs. Reporting to
and obtaining prior approval of the Board are necessary before
the senior management enters into any material transactions and
assuming significant commitments on behalf of the Company.

The Board has the full support of the senior management to
discharge its responsibilities.

Composition
The Board have a balance of skills and experience appropriate to
the requirements of the business of the Company.

The Board currently comprises 8 members, consisting of 5 Executive
Directors and 3 Independent Non-Executive Directors. The
balanced composition of executive and independent non-executive
members upholds the effective exercise of independent judgement.
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The Board comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors:

Xu Wensheng (Chairman)

Kui Man Chun (Chief Executive Officer)

Li Wenjin

Xu Changjun

Hui Lok Yan (Appointed on 14 March 2024)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Tam Chun Fai

Leung Wai Man, Roger

Li Heguo

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing
Rules from time to time and an updated list of all directors
identifying their role and function is maintained on the Company’s
and the Stock Exchange’s websites.

The biographical information of the Directors and their relationship
among the members of the Board, if any, are provided in the section
titled “Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report.

In relation to Ms. Hui Lok Yan’s appointment as an executive
Director with effect from 14 March 2024, she obtained legal advice
referred to in Rule 3.09D of the Listing Rules on 23 February 2024.
She has confirmed that she understood her obligations as a director
of the Company.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors
The Company has established formal and transparent procedures for
the appointment and succession planning of Directors.

All Directors are appointed for specific tenures subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years and subject to re-election
at annual general meeting and the key terms and conditions are set
out in formal letters of appointment.

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company. Subject to retirement and re-election in
accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws and the Listing Rules, the
service contracts shall not exceed 3 years and may otherwise be
terminated in accordance with the terms of the respective service
contracts.

Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors has been
appointed for a fixed contract term of one year, subject to renewal
on a yearly basis and re-election in accordance with the Company’s
Bye-laws and the CG code and may otherwise be terminated in
accordance with the terms of the respective service agreement.
Further appointment of any Independent Non-Executive Director
having served for more than 9 years should be subject to a separate
resolution to be approved by the shareholders.
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Training for Directors

Newly appointed Directors receive induction on the occasion of
his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has an appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and
is fully aware of his/her responsibilities under applicable laws, rules
and regulations, and the Group’s governance and internal control
policies. The Company also arranges and funds suitable training,
placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions and duties
of a listed company director.

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
The Company has arranged and funded in-house trainings for the
Directors in the form of seminar and provision of training materials.
A summary of training received by the Directors during the
reporting period according to the records provided by the Directors
is as follows:

B

MEREENESZERER ?’tﬁﬁt/\f‘” R E
ETHMALRDEBREFLTE2NEERBRZE
=2 &i‘ﬁ&%ﬁm%&ﬁ%@ﬁ’]a/u MBRERIE R

TZHE -ARR TR ZIHEAES Hjﬂ’%ﬂ’ BEH
BFEETRABEFRZAE BAEHRE-

FRBRERHEFSUEGEFRE R LURERER
REZMH R - ARB BB BEITHFIERE

EFRRHMFINER AEFZHRENE MERR
KRB IRIBEFRM ZH > EFNRE A
RZIEEEWT

Training on corporate
governance, regulatory
development and
other relevant topics

ﬁ:\¥ B /|:| g%ﬁéﬁ&

Name of Directors BEEns HthERA EREIE
Executive Directors: HITES:

Xu Wensheng (F s v
Kui Man Chun RBE v
Li Wenjin ENE v
Xu Changjun mEE V
Hui Lok Yan (Appointed on 14 March 2024) FER (M ZZ2OF=B+MNEEED v
Independent Non-Executive Directors: BIFRTES:

Tam Chun Fai BIRIE v
Leung Wai Man, Roger ZRR f
Li Heguo FHE v

During the year, each of the joint company secretaries attended
no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training as required
under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

CULTURE AND VALUES

A healthy corporate culture across the Group is integral to attain its
vision and strategy. It is the Board’s role to foster a corporate culture
with the following core principles and to ensure that the Company’s
vision, values and business strategies are aligned to it.
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(i) Integrity and code of conduct

The Group strives to maintain high standards of business
ethics and corporate governance across all our activities
and operations. The Directors, management and staff are all
required to act lawfully, ethically and responsibly, and the
required standards and norms are explicitly set out in the
training materials for all new staff and embedded in various
policies such as the Group’s employee handbook (including
therein the Group’s code of conduct), anti-corruption policy
and whistleblowing policy. Trainings are conducted from time
to time to reinforce the required standards in respect of ethics
and integrity.

(ii) Commitment

The Group believes that the culture of commitment to
workforce development, workplace safety and health,
diversity, and sustainability is one which cultivates sense of
commitment among members of the Group and their emotional
engagement with the Group’s mission. This sets the tone for
a strong, productive workforce that attracts, develops, and
retains the best talent and produces the highest quality work
for the Group. Moreover, the Company’s strategy in business
development and management are to achieve long-term, steady
and sustainable growth, while giving due considerations of the
environment, social and governance aspects.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and achieving sustainable and development for the
Group. It also sets out the Board’s commitment to gender diversity
and other diversity aspects, with the ultimate goal of achieving
gender parity on the Board.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy and reviewed
on an annual basis (“Board Diversity Policy”), under which the
Company seeks to achieve board diversity through the consideration
of a number of factors in the Board members” selection process,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. All Board members’ appointments will be
based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on
the Board.

In March 2024, one female Director was appointed to join the
Board and the Board will take opportunities to increase the
proportion of female senior management over time as and when
suitable candidates are identified.
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In respect of the Group’s workforce, the male to female ratio
(including senior management) as at 31 December 2024 was
approximately 65%:35%. The Board considers that the gender
diversity in workforce is currently achieved. With the objective
of further optimising the gender diversity in mind, the Group
will continue to take gender diversity into account in its ongoing
recruitment process, in particular when recruiting staff at mid
to senior level so that we will have a pipeline of female senior
management and potential successors to the Board in due time to
ensure gender diversity of the Board and the workforce.

Board Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

Four regular Board meetings were held during the year for, among
others, reviewing and approving the financial and operating
performance and respectively the final results for the year ended
31 December 2023, results for the three months ended 31 March
2024, interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2024
and results for the nine months ended 30 September 2024, and
considering and approving the overall strategies and policies of the
Company.

The attendance of individual Directors at the four regular quarterly
Board meetings (not including other ad hoc meetings of the Board
held from time to time and any other meeting(s) of members of
the Board in compliance with the CG Code), committee meetings
and general meeting of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2024 is set out below:

MAEEEIMs R_E_MWE+_-_8F=+—H
ZEBULILH (BESHREIER) £9565%: 35%°E5
ZRE BRI EBRETEENMAZ - AT H#
— S BEERZ TN B A EERBETETT
RMBEEREZE EIER 2t (B R TR SE
BETH) HANMRETEENREEELMESRE
EENEREREEGRRETILE URREETR
ETEBMMRZ T

ESTERRESFHERBR
FREFTERBRESETH UEHPEEH B
Rt EMBREERE DM ERE_T_=F
TR =t+—HLEFEZRPER - BE_TN
FZR=+—HUE=ZERZFEE BE_T_NF
NE=THLERERZTHEERBEE—T _UF
NE=THIENERZ#&E  UEBRILEEAR
B BERS SRS R

EREENHE_Z_NF+_A=+—HLFE
PEARABNRERETEEETTGHE (FEEAMT
RB|TZAEREFTEERMNRBEEXERTRIZ
ERHMESTENEGH ZTETERMRRAE
ZECERESIWT

Attendance/Number of meetings*

BHELEBIRY
Risk
Audit Nomination ~ Remuneration ~ Management Regular
Committee Committee Committee Committee Board General
Meetings Meeting Meeting Meetings* Meeting Meeting
BREEE RAEEE FHZEEE ARER  EREFE
Name of Directors BERis a3 g3 g% ZEgEF g3 RRAE
Xu Wensheng s N/A N/A N/A 22 4/4 17
AER AER TER
Kui Man Chun EESH N/A N/A N/A N/A 4/4 m
AER AER TER TER
Li Wenjin E3E= N/A 22 202 202 4/4 m
AER
Xu Changjun ®EE N/A N/A N/A 2 4/4 17
AER AER TER
Hui Lok Yan SR N/A N/A N/A 202 4/4 ”m
AER TEH TER
Tam Chun Fai EiRiE 22 22 22 N/A 4/4 ”n
TER
Leung Wai Man, Roger RER 2 2 2 N/A 4/4 17
TER
Li Heguo FME 202 N/A N/A N/A 4/4 m
TEH TEH TER
Note: Wit
& Meetings may be attended in person or by electronic means including ~ * RS HFEESH IARAE 2 A EME A FFEES
telephone or video conferencing as allowed under the Company’s Bye- RIEEAEBFHLEESE-
laws.
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Practices and Conduct of Meetings
Board meeting schedules and agendas are made available to the
Directors in advance.

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at
least 14 days in advance, and agendas together with accompanying
board papers are disseminated to the Directors within reasonable
time before meetings. Reasonable notice is, as permitted by the
Company’s Bye-laws under relevant circumstances or otherwise
agreed, given for other Board and committee meetings.

The Company Secretary, as delegated by the Chairman, has been
responsible for preparing the agenda of board meetings, taking
into account any matters the Directors may propose to include,
ensuring that all Directors are given opportunity to include matters
in the agenda and approving the agenda. In order to enable the
Directors to make informed decision, agenda and accompanying
board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all Directors at least 3 days before each
Board meeting or committee meeting to keep the Directors
appraised of the latest developments and/or financial position of the
Company. The Board and the individual Directors also have separate
and independent access to the senior management to make further
enquires or when they require further information in addition to
those volunteered by the senior management.

The Company Secretary and senior management attend all regular
Board meetings and when necessary, other Board and committee
meetings to advise on, among others, business developments,
financial and accounting matters, statutory compliance, corporate
governance and other major aspects of the Company.

The Company Secretary is responsible for preparing and keeping the
minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings. The minutes
records sufficient details of matters considered, decisions reached,
concerns raised and any, dissenting views expressed. Draft and final
versions of minutes are circulated to the Directors for comment and
record within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final
version is open for the Directors” inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction,
which involves conflicting interests of a substantial shareholder or
Director are dealt with at a duly convened physical Board meeting,
at which Independent Non-Executive Directors having no material
interest in the transaction should be present. Any Directors or any
of their close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) having
material interests in the transactions shall abstain from voting and
not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving such
transactions.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles and responsibilities of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer are clearly defined. The clear division of management of the
Board and day-to-day management of business ensures a balanced
power and authority such that no concentration of power shall vest
in any one individual.

The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the
effective functioning of the Board in accordance with good
corporate governance practice and established corporate
governance procedures. With the support of the Company Secretary
and the senior management, the Chairman is also responsible for
ensuring that the Directors receive, in a timely manner, adequate
information, which must be accurate, clear, complete and reliable
and appropriate briefing on issues arising at Board meetings, and
that all key and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a
timely manner.

The Chairman also encourages the Directors to fully and actively
participate in the Board’s affairs, taking the lead to act in the best
interests of the Company. The Chairman also promotes a culture
to facilitate effective contributions and encourage the Directors
to express dissenting views and concerns and allow sufficient
discussion of issues before decisions are made.

The Chief Executive Officer focuses on implementing objectives,
policies and strategies approved and delegated by the Board.
He is in charge of the Company’s day-to-day management and
operations and is also responsible for developing strategic plans and
formulating the organisational structure, monitoring control systems
and internal control procedures and processes for the Board's
approval.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Independent Non-Executive Directors possess a wide range
of business and financial expertise, experiences and, through
participation in board meetings, offer independent judgment on
issues of strategy, policy, performance, accountability, resources, key
appointments and standard of conducts. Through taking the lead
where potential conflicts on interests arise, serving on the Board
committees, examining the Company’s performance in achieving
corporate goals and objectives and monitoring performance
reporting, the Independent Non-Executive Directors have become
an integral part of the healthy growth of the Company.
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During the year, each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors
attended the annual general meeting of the Company held during
his tenure, details of which are set out in page 84, enabling them to
develop a balanced understanding of the views of the Shareholders.

During the year, the Board at all times met the requirements of Rule
3.10(1), Rule 3.10(2) and Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three Independent Non-Executive
Directors, representing more than one-third of the Board and
with at least one Independent Non-Executive Director possessing
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

Confirmation of independence

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors a written annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to the requirements of Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and the Company considers all the Independent Non-Executive
Directors to be independent in accordance with the guidelines for
assessing independence set out thereunder.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established 4 committees, namely, the Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and Risk
Management Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of affairs.
All Board committees are established with defined written terms
of reference, setting out its authority and duties, and requiring the
Board committees to report back to the Board on their decisions or
recommendations (unless otherwise restricted by legal or regulatory
requirements). To provide transparency, the terms of reference of the
Board committees are available on the Company’s and the Stock
Exchange’s websites and hard copies of which are available to
Shareholders upon request.

All Board committees, save as the Risk Management Committee,
consist of a majority of Independent Non-Executive Directors.
Chairman and members of each Board committee as at the date of
this annual report are set out below:

Audit Committee

Tam Chun Fai (Chairman)*
Leung Wai Man, Roger*
Li Heguo*

Nomination Committee

Leung Wai Man, Roger (Chairman)*
Tam Chun Fai*

Li Wenjin®
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Remuneration Committee
Tam Chun Fai (Chairman)*
Leung Wai Man, Roger*

Li Wenjin®

Risk Management Committee
Xu Changjun (Chairman)”
Xu Wensheng”
Li Wenjin®
Hui Lok Yan®
(Appointed as an Executive Director on 14 March 2024)

*  Independent Non-Executive Director
Executive Director

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
perform their duties and, upon reasonable and timely request,
are able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-Executive
Directors (including one Independent Non-Executive Director who
possesses the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise). None of the members of
the Audit Committee is a former partner of the Company’s existing
external auditor.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the followings:

(@) to review the financial statements, reports, accounting policies
and practices and consider any significant or unusual items
raised by the company’s staff, compliance officers, qualified
accountant or external auditor before submission to the Board;

(b) to review the Company’s relationship with the external auditor
by reference to the work they performed, their fees and terms
of engagement, and make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor;

(c) to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, audit process, the Group’s financial
control, internal control system, risk management system and
associated procedures; and

(d) to cooperate with Risk Management Committee to ensure Risk
Management Committee has adequate resources and access to
information necessary to fulfil their duties and responsibilities
with respect to risk assessment and risk management.
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The written terms of reference describing the authority and duties of
the Audit Committee was prepared and adopted with reference to
the CG Code, “Principles of Auditor Independence and the Role of
Corporate Governance in Monitoring an Auditor’s Independence”
issued by the Technical Committee of the International Organization
of Securities Commissions and “A Guide for The Formation of An
Audit Committee” published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended
31 December 2024 to review the half-yearly and annual
financial results and reports, financial reporting and compliance
procedures, internal control and risk management systems,
effectiveness of internal audit function of the Group during 2023,
the auditor’s independence and objectivity. During the year, the
Audit Committee met with the Company’s auditor twice and
approved their remuneration and terms of engagement. The
Audit Committee has further recommended the re-appointment
of PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s auditor and the
Board confirms that it has taken no different view from the Audit
Committee in relation to its recommendations.

As at the end of 2024 and the date of this annual report, there are
no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December
2024 has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Nomination Committee

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee, as provided
under the terms of reference adopted in compliance with the
requirements under the CG Code, include reviewing the structure,
size and composition of the Board, developing and formulating
relevant procedures for nomination and appointment of Directors,
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and succession planning of Directors and assessment of the
independence of the Independent Non-Executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee carries out the process of selecting and
recommending candidates for directorships by making reference to
the balance of expertise, skills, experience, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of such individuals,
business requirements of the Group and other relevant statutory
requirements and regulations. External recruitment agency may also
be engaged to carry out the recruitment and selection process when
necessary.
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The Nomination Committee has also adopted a nomination policy
(the “Nomination Policy”) which sets out the selection criteria and
procedure of nominating, appointing and re-appointing a Director.
The selection criteria used in assessing the suitability of a candidate
include, inter alia, academic background and professional
qualifications, relevant industry experience, character and integrity
and whether he can contribute to the diversity of the Board as
detailed in the Board Diversity Policy, which is regularly reviewed
by the Nomination Committee with a view to achieve a diversified
spectrum of Directors to facilitate a balanced development of the
Company. The procedure of appointing and re-appointing a Director
is based on objective criteria and summarised as follows:—

1. The Nomination Committee and/or the Board may nominate
or invite a candidate for appointment as a Director for
consideration;

2. The Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall evaluate the
personal profile of each of the candidates based on the criteria
as set out under the above section;

3. The Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall undertake
adequate due diligence in respect of each candidate and make
recommendation for the Board’s consideration and approval;

4. (for candidate whom may be nominated as an Independent
Non-Executive Director) the Board should assess the
candidate’s independence under the relevant Code Provisions
and the Listing Rules;

5. (for a candidate whom may be elected as an Independent Non-
Executive Director at a general meeting) the Board should
consider the factors set out in the applicable Code Provision(s);

6. (in the context of re-appointment of retiring Directors) the
Board shall review the candidate’s overall contribution and
performance, including attendance of committees, board and
general meetings, and level of participation and performance
on the Board, and make recommendations to the Board for
consideration and to the Shareholders for re-election at general
meetings; and

7. the Board will convene a meeting for discussion of
appointment or re-appointment of the candidate as a Director.

Mr. Kui Man Chun and Mr. Xu Changjun both being, Executive
Director, Mr. Li Heguo, being an Independent Non-Executive
Directors, shall retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting in accordance with Bye-law 87(1). Being
eligible, they will offer themselves for re-election in accordance
with Bye-law 87(2).
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The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the
year to, amongst others, (i) review the structure, size, diversity
and composition of the Board; (ii) assess the independence
of the Independent Non-Executive Directors; (iii) consider the
appointment of new Director and her re-election; (iv) consider
the re-appointment of the retiring Directors; and (v) review the
Nomination Policy and Board Diversity Policy.

The requisite information of the Directors standing for re-election
are contained in the Company’s circular to the Shareholders for the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

Remuneration Committee

The primary objectives and duties of the Remuneration Committee
are set out in its terms of reference adopted in compliance with
the requirements under the CG Code, which include making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy and
structure and remuneration packages of the Directors and the senior
management, including but not limited to benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments and other related matters. The
Remuneration Committee is also responsible for establishing formal
and transparent procedures for developing such remuneration
policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his
associates will participate in deciding his own remuneration, whose
remuneration will be determined with reference to the performance
of the individual and the Company, market practice and conditions
as well as the Group’s goals and objectives.

The Human Resources Department is responsible for collection
and administration of the human resources data and making
recommendations on remuneration policy and structure and
remuneration packages to the Remuneration Committee for
consideration. The Remuneration Committee shall consider
and consult the Chairman and/or the Board about these
recommendations.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the
year ended 31 December 2024, among others, (i) review and
recommend the remuneration packages of the Directors and senior
management, with reference to including without limitation their
individual performance, corporate goals and market practices, (ii)
review and recommend the terms of the Executive Directors’ service
contracts, (i) review matters relating to the share schemes of the
Group, including, among others, their operation and maintenance,
(iv) review and access the Company’s remuneration policy and
practices.
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The remuneration, including employee incentive programmes of
subsidiaries, payable to the senior management (as identified in the
last annual report of the Company) by band for the year ended 31
December 2024 is set out below:

REE_ZS_NFE+_B=+—8 L FE%HA
AEIDZ ENSREER (WA AT L— R ERFTH
B) FHEN (BERE AR 2 RELERSHE) H2WT !

Number of individuals

Remuneration band M 4R B ANEL
HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 7t E2,000,0007 7T 4
HK$2,000,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 75 23,000,000 7T 1

Further particulars regarding Directors’ emoluments and the five
highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix D2 to the Listing Rules are set out in note 8 and note 37
to the consolidated financial statements.

Risk Management Committee
Main duties of the Risk Management Committee include the
followings:

(@) to review the Group's risk management and internal control
systems (including financial, operational and compliance
controls), internal audit function, Environmental, Social and
Governance Report, to ensure that effective and adequate risk
management and internal control systems are established and
maintained and that sufficient resources are in place for the
Group's internal audit function;

(b) to consider the effectiveness of the Group’s decision making
processes in crisis and emergency situations and to maintain
the Group’s risk management standards; and

(c) on an annual basis report to the Board on the effectiveness
of the risk management systems and internal control systems
(including financial, operational and compliance controls) for
the Group and Environmental, Social and Governance Report
and adequacy of resources of its internal audit functions.

The Risk Managements Committee held two meetings during
the year ended 31 December 2024 to review and assess the
effectiveness of the Group’s the risk management, internal control
system and internal audit function during the year and considered
them effective and adequate.
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Corporate Governance Function

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties of the Company, including (i) to develop and review the
Group’s policies and practices on corporate governance; (ii) to
review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and the senior management; (iii)
to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (iv) to develop,
review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual
(if any) applicable to employee and Directors and their compliance
of the same and (v) to review the Group’s compliance with the CG
Code and relevant disclosure obligations.

During the year, the Board, at the four regular Board meetings,
performed the corporate governance duties and reported no issues
which may had or might have significant impact on the Company.

RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board and the Directors

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment in annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and complying with other financial
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements.

The Directors also acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2024.

Auditor’s Statement

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 98 to 105.

Senior Management

The senior management provides the Board with sufficient
explanation and necessary information enabling the Board to make
an informed assessment of financial and other information put
before the Board for approval.

Monthly updates are also provided by the senior management
to all members of the Board to enable proper discharge of duties
by the Board as a whole or each member individually by giving
them balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s
performance, position and prospects in sufficient details.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has developed the Group’s internal control, risk
assessment and management systems and acknowledges its
overall responsibility for reviewing and maintaining an adequate
and effective risk management and internal control systems on
an ongoing basis to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders
and the assets of the Group. It evaluates the effectiveness of the
systems at least annually to ensure the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget
of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions and is kept apprised of significant risks that may impact
the performance of the Group.

Risk Management and Internal Control Systems

The Company’s risk management and internal control systems
are designed to manage and mitigate risks, rather than eliminate
risks, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. We have adopted a bottom-up
approach for identification, assessment and mitigation of risks at all
business unit levels and across functional areas.

Main Features of Risk Management and Internal Control
Systems

The key elements of the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems include the establishment of a risk register to keep
track of and record identified risks, the assessment and evaluation
of risks, the development and continuous updating of responsive
procedures, and the ongoing testing of internal control procedures
to ensure their effectiveness.

An ongoing risk management approach is adopted by the Company
for identifying and assessing the key inherent risks that affect the
achievements of its objectives. A risk matrix is adopted to determine
risk rating (L = low risk, M = medium risk, H = high risk) after
evaluation of the risk by likelihood of occurrence and the impact of
the risk event. The risk ratings determine the level of managements’
attention and risk treatment effort required.

Process used to identify, evaluate and manage significant
risks

During the process of risk assessment, each risk owner of
departments and major subsidiaries is required to capture and
identify the key inherent risks that affect the achievement of its
objectives. Each inherent risk is evaluated according to the risk
matrix. After taking into consideration the risk response, such as
control measures in place to mitigate the risk, the residual risk of
each inherent risk is evaluated again. The risk register with the risk
responses and residual risks is reported to the Risk Management
Committee. The Risk Management Committee evaluates the
effectiveness of the systems and reports to the Board. The highest
category of residual risks is subject to the Board’s oversight.
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Process used to review the effectiveness of the Risk
Management and Internal Control Systems and to resolve
material internal control defects

The Internal Control Department of the Company (the “Internal
Control Department”) has performed an ongoing review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems throughout the year (during which an external independent
consulting firm was engaged to offer assistance) covering the
Group’s material controls in financial, operational and compliance
aspects agreed and approved by the Risk Management Committee
and in compliance with the requirements under Code Provision
D.2.

The Internal Control Department reported the review results to
the Risk Management Committee and the Risk Management
Committee was satisfied that there had been no major deficiency
noted in the areas of the Group’s risk management and internal
controls systems, following the implementation of recommendations
against the internal control defects revealed. The Audit Committee
cooperates with the Risk Management Committee to ensure the Risk
Management Committee has access to information necessary to
fulfil their duties and responsibilities with respect to risk assessment
and risk management. Accordingly, the Audit Committee and the
Board considered the risk management and internal control systems
effective and had been implemented with adequate resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of
accounting, internal audit, financial reporting functions, as well as
those relating to ESG performance and reporting during the year.

Procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information

The Board adopts a policy for the handling and dissemination
of inside information. The policy stipulates the obligations of
the Group, in respect of the restriction on disseminating non-
public information, handling of rumours, unintentional selective
disclosure, exemption and wavier to the disclosure of inside
information, and also compliance and reporting procedures.
Senior management must take all reasonable measures to ensure
that proper safeguards exist to prevent any breach of disclosure
requirement from time to time. Employees are required to promptly
bring any possible leakage or divulgence of inside information
to the attention of the Chief Financial Officer, or his delegates,
who will notify the Board timely and accordingly for taking the
appropriate action promptly. The policy is subject to the regular
review of the Board. In case of material violation, the Board, or its
designated appropriate personnel, will decide the course of actions
for rectifying the problem and avoiding recurrence.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the external auditor of the Company
in respect of audit and non-audit services for the year ended
31 December 2024 amounted to approximately HK$4,007,000
and HK$2,296,000 respectively. The fees for non-audit services
comprise approximately HK$1,229,000 for interim review and
HK$1,067,000 for tax consulting services.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS
(a) Procedures for requisitioning a special general meeting

(b)

(c)

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

Shareholder(s) holding, as at the date of deposit of the
requisition for a special general meeting, not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
to vote at general meetings of the Company may, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary(ies) signed
and deposited in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws
and the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, require the Directors
to call a special general meeting for the transaction of business
specified in the requisition.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meetings

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-twentieth of the paid-
up capital of the Company carrying the right to vote at general
meetings of the Company or not less than 100 Shareholders
may, at their expense, provide a written request to the
attention of the Company Secretary(ies) signed and deposited
in accordance with the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 to put
forward proposals at general meeting.

Communication with Shareholders and investors
General Meetings

General meetings of the Company provide a direct forum
of communication between Shareholders and the Board.
The Company held one general meeting during the year.
Notice of the general meeting was sent in accordance with
the requirements under the Listing Rules, the Company’s
Bye-laws and other applicable laws. At the general meeting,
Directors were made available to answer questions, adequate
measures were taken to provide effective communication
with Shareholders, separate issues were proposed as separate
resolutions for the Shareholders’ approval, measures were in
place to familiarise Shareholders with the detailed procedures
for voting by poll and give them sufficient chances to raise
questions. The Company’s external auditor also attended the
Company’s annual general meeting held on 22 May 2024
to answer any questions about the conduct of audit, the
preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the accounting
policies applied and their independence.
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Other Communications
Shareholders may also contact the Company Secretary to direct
their written enquires to the Board.

The Company also maintains a website at www.hisun.com.hk
to provide Shareholders and the public with updates on the
Company’s business developments and operations, financial
information and other news.

The Company is committed to enhancing communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior management
maintains an open dialogue with institutional investors and
analysts to keep them abreast of the Company’s developments.
The Company'’s shareholders communication policy outlines,
among other things, the procedures and steps taken at general
meetings, the handling of enquiries received and the various
channels of communication and engagement in place.

The Board regularly reviews the shareholders communication
policy (which has been made available at the Company’s
website), to ensure that Shareholders and potential investors
at large are provided with ready, equal and timely access to
balanced and understandable information about the Company,
including its financial performance, strategic goals and plans,
to enable Shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed
manner, and to allow their active engagement with the
Company.

Based on the review undertaken, the Board considers that
the shareholders communication policy has been properly
implemented and effective during the year.
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There has been no change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year and up to the date of this annual report.
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To the Shareholders of Hi Sun Technology (China) Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Hi Sun Technology (China)
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which
are set out on pages 106 to 247, comprise:

e the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2024;

e the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

e the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended;
and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising
material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2024, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

The key audit matter identified in our audit is related to impairment
of loan receivables.
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Key Audit Matter
ke g
Impairment of loan receivables

PR ERURE

Refer to Note 3.1(b)(ii) (financial risk factors), Note 4(a)
(critical accounting estimates and judgements) and Note 18
(loan receivables) to the consohdated financial statements.

na/ﬁﬁﬁ?éﬁﬂ%iﬁﬁﬁﬁiw (i) A R EEAZR) Mt
a) (B G 5H& 5T K I K18 (FERE) -

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s gross loan
receivables amounted to HK$1,932,869,000, and
a provision for impairment of loan receivables of
HK$147,731,000 was recognised in the Group's
consolidated balance sheet. The impairment losses on loan
receivables in the Group’s consolidated income statement
for the year ended 31 December 2024 amounted to
HK$46,771,000.

A TENMFE+ZRB=+—H> SEENBHRERR
#8731,932,869,000/87T° F BEMKFGEERRRE
DA SRR E B A147,731 00087 EEME
BE_T_NE+—A=+—BILEENESKEST
MW ERIEERIERE 246,771,000 7T °

The provision for impairment of loan receivables represents
the management’s best estimates at the balance sheet
date of expected credit losses under Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standard 9: Financial Instruments.

BRETRERFERREEBRAEBYHREEDSE
9;)*5 SMTE AAEONERESERFLNRED

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
HAINEANAREMRRESER

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s
assessment on provision for impairment of loan receivables
included:

HPHERERE LSRR ERE B EFEE

—  Understood, evaluated and validated the key control

procedures over management’s estimation of expected
credit losses allowance and periodic review on
overdue receivables and assessed the inherent risk
of material misstatement by considering the degree
of estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent
risk factors in association with estimation of expected
credit losses;

— T ThREREEERE L TTRIREEBEREN TR
EDBRRIGRIENRRIEEIRR  LBEBE RBHEtHY
AEERENATEHREEEBERGESHERNEMES Rk
R SR KETHEEATERRMNVE S B ;

— Involved our credit risk specialist in evaluating the model

methodologies, significant judgements and assumptions,
data and key parameters used in the expected credit losses
measurement for loans receivables;

— BEMNEERRERZETHEKERAREERR
gzﬁﬁ@ﬂ%mﬁ””ﬁ/ﬁ BEAERRR  BERERES

- Understood and evaluated the modelling

methodologies for expected credit losses
measurement, assessed the reasonableness of the
model selection and key measurement parameters
determination;

— RMTRLHERIEEEEAENERES A B
BEENTIEN R E2HIHEE

—  For the historical information, we examined the
accuracy and completeness of historical and
measurement date data used in the expected credit
losses model on a sample basis;

— HRELER MR ERBEEREREERER
RS K5t 8 BB KRRV EERE 1S R e 2% 5

- Selected samples and assessed the appropriateness of
management’s staging classifications and judgements
used in determining significant increases in credit risk and
identification of default or credit-impaired assets based on the
borrower’s financial and non-financial information and other
external evidence provided by management;

— REERANMBRIFMBER U EEERHAE M
SNERSE IR  EEUR AW EERENRESERRERE
0L B R B S E ERIRE ER P L A RIFEER 0 48
RAEESEE ;
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Key Audit Matter
FAfEE st H1E
Impairment of loan receivables (Continued)

FEWETURE ()

Management assesses whether the credit risk of loan
receivables have increased significantly since their initial
recognition, and applies a three-stage impairment model
to calculate their expected credit losses. The measurement
models of expected credit losses involves significant
management judgments and assumptions, primarily
including the following:
EEENLRMERZEERBRENT EIEEDT AR
R =P RERES EHRREERE -7
EERBAERAMIRNEAREEBABNEBRRTIE
BETHEE !

—  Selection of appropriate model and determination
of relevant key measurement parameters, including
probability of default, loss given default and exposure
at default;

— ERNENSERE LREARNEESE 85
BAOME  BEOBRRRRENRERAE ;

—  Criteria for determining whether or not there was a
significant increase in credit risk or a default; and
— FERRESRELMIEIVFIEIRE ; &

—  Economic indicator for forward-looking measurement,
and the application of economic scenarios and
weightings

— ARFEMEENEEER KEBRKHEEEN
A

We focus on this area due to the magnitude of the loan
receivables and the significant estimates and judgement
involved in determining the expected credit losses
allowance on the loan receivables.

BRI HREEN BN ERNERHEE UK EE
TERWERTAMREERERRBREGBR S REXGETHH
i o

iy ey ' HNEEEEEEEEERERREC
Fgy o T T T I I
EEmEnm

- = = m W
o -

--.r._|li'
nil
IIIIIIII“l‘l:iI"
IIIIII--;:‘l. =u

Independent Auditor’s Report

B N7 A SR

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
HAINEANAREMRRESSEE

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s
assessment on provision for impairment losses of loan
receivables included: (Continued)
HPYEREERFLENERAEBRER ZEE
FEE: (8@

— For forward-looking measurement, assessed the
reasonableness of economic indicator selection,
economic scenarios and weightings application,
assessed the reasonableness of the estimation by
comparing with industry data. Performed sensitivity
analysis on the economic indicators and weightings
under different economic scenarios; and

— HREIEMSE FREEEREE KEBRKA
RARENGEN  BRETEHBRILERT GG
MEEM -HARLEBER THEERERREEE
TTHURMED T &

—  For loan receivables classified as stage 3 which were
relatively significant, we examined on a sample basis,
the forecasted cash flows prepared by management
based on the financial information of borrowers, latest
collateral valuations and other available information
used to support the computation of expect credit
losses.

- HRDERF=BREBEHERNEBRER &M
Lo A N EEEEERBERAMBERMAER
WEARERE RARFREEREMT AR
Rt REERESHRNEN -

Based on the above, we found that the estimates and
judgement made by management in respect of the
expected credit losses allowance and the collectability
of the loan receivables were supportable by the available
evidence.

ER EARE RMBEREBEFHEWERBIREER
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

e Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business units within the Group as a basis for
forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and review of
the audit work performed for purposes of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Hin Gay, Gabriel.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 20 March 2025
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For the year ended 31 December 2024

“HE+ZA=1+—HILEFE

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=t+—HiEE

2024 2023
11 -2 TR =F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
b FHET THAT
Revenue WA 5,6 2,340,040 2,709,164
Cost of sales THE A 7 (1,431,238) (1,716,987)
Gross profit EF 908,802 992,177
Other income Hang A 5 155,170 116,918
Other losses, net Hthgs5 18588 5 (8,804) (22,432)
Selling expenses HERX 7 (166,100) (134,484)
Administrative expenses THER 7 (832,887) (821,129)
Credit impairment loss EERERE 7 (49,638) (56,505)
Operating profit, before gain on disposals 4 &7 > REIFHE
of subsidiaries, net Mt AR Z W B R 6,543 74,545
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries, net HERB AR 2 W FEE 32 93,226 3,277
Operating profit, after gain on disposals of 4% &) @.E:’:HE
subsidiaries, net WE’L-\\_JZL& 99,769 77,822
Share of results of associated companies ~ FE{LEfE AT 20 213,160 402,949
Impairment of investment in an R—EEE AT
associated company S ERE 20 (141,307) =
Gain on deemed acquisition and HRUEE RS —R
dilution of interest of an associated i —p/NSIb v
company g 20 4,906 1,973
Finance costs R E A 9 (1,895) 3,757)
Profit before income tax FREFS TR AIE 174,633 478,987
Income tax credit TR mR 10 1,921 35,387
Profit for the year FREF 176,554 514,374
Profit attributable to: FEf&EF :
— Owners of the Company —RRBEEB A 157,605 463,432
— Non-controlling interests —JFERED 18,949 50,942
176,554 514,374
HKS$ per HK$ per
share share
BRET BRET
Earnings per share for profit attributable to Zs2A TG AL EFZ
the owners of the Company: sREF
Basic =¥N 12 0.057 0.169
Diluted #E 12 0.021 0.133
The notes on pages 114 to 247 are an integral part of these H114E247H 2 [T ZFL A M MK Z HAE

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

oy A I i

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_-ZT IT_EIEE‘T' B=1+—HLtHFE

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=t+—HiEE

2024 2023
“EIMEF B =
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Profit for the year FEREF 176,554 514,374
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax Htt2EASE (NRRIE)
ltems that may be subsequently reclassified HEFFE AT B =~
to profit or loss HH
Exchange differences on translation of MEBIINIBABIELZ
foreign subsidiaries PE D ERE (97,966) (89,383)
Reclassification of exchange reserve upon the LENBABRINEFBER
disposals of subsidiaries A (62,942) -
Share of other comprehensive loss of BLBE ARz Ht 2 HEEE
associated companies (78,498) (49,913)
Release of reserve upon dilution of interest e MR E A SRR
in an associated company R 2 #E (1,426) (2,981)
Item that will not be subsequently reclassified BEBTrEEN D BEEERZ
to profit or loss EH
Change in value of a financial asset at fair value ~ ZAFEFFAEMEE KGR Z
through other comprehensive income TRMEEZ AT EEE - (152,846)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year, F£RZME (§518) Ux
net of tax #8%8 (INRRMIR) (64,278) 219,251
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year ~ FE{LER2E (§518) Kz
attributable to: 48R -
— Owners of the Company - YNCIEZZSUN (63,957) 185,186
— Non-controlling interests —JEER T (321) 34,065
(64,278) 219,251

The notes on pages 114 to 247 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

wRo A AR

As at 31 December 2024 #HE_Z_NE+_A=+—HIEE

As at 31 December

w+=ZH=+—H
2024 2023
Note HK$000 HK$’000
IS F#ET TFAT
Assets BE
Non-current assets ERENEE
Investment properties BEYE 13 352 511
Property, plant and equipment L EN N Ed 14 44,824 77,660
Right-of-use assets EREEE 15 55,986 69,560
Intangible assets mELEE 16 8,304 2,834
Investments in associated companies REFE AR 2 KE 20 3,442,562 3,606,250
Financial asset at fair value through AT EFTABT@Z
profit or loss TREE 17 68,537 82,321
Other financial assets at amortised cost R At 22 2t
TREE 23 8,050 2,070
Long-term bank deposits REASRITIFRX 25 265,280 =
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 3,893,895 3,841,206
Current assets REEE
Inventories =8 21 872 19,474
Other current assets HhRsh&EE 24 36,247 27,245
Other financial assets at amortised cost HEIER At 22 2t
TREE 23 159,738 170,845
Amounts due from associated companies &R B A B) T IE 37 6,273 5,000
Loan receivables FEWE R 18 1,785,138 1,536,634
Trade and bills receivables JE W AR R R FE Wi 22 22 185,722 177,055
Financial assets at fair value through BATESABEZ
profit or loss TREE 17 878 226,885
Current income tax recoverable AU BN ERFT1E R 7,613 3,040
Short-term bank deposits FEHRSRIT 7K 25 177,207 =
Restricted bank balances ZIRHIIRITAS &R 25 2,593,913 3,542,318
Cash and cash equivalents BEMIREEEY 25 3,011,282 3,482,016
Total current assets RENE ELE 7,964,883 9,190,512
Total assets BERE 11,858,778 13,031,718
Equity R
Capital and reserves attributable to AR ANBILERRK
owners of the Company B
Share capital & 26 6,942 6,942
Reserves Egi] 27 7,124,249 7,183,993
7,131,191 7,190,935
Non-controlling interests JEITERRHE 591,685 587,083
Total equity g k] 7,722,876 7,778,018

The notes on pages 114 to 247 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

B14E247B Z A SR B MR R Z HHER

ﬁo



l‘ Ly | 'I'. LN | ... | N | ......-.l“ Y ¥
[ "t l::"'t::"l.::.."'lllll--lil-ll"'::::" :
A .'l‘;,"l. 'ny -: EEEEm IIIII.II'I!!:. gunnt® |
R PR = amccrEEEpEmEEEEEe T gan-t o
Consolidated Balance Sheet
» /_A\:H
R AfER
As at 31 December 2024 HE_ZE_FE+_HA=+—HIFE
As at 31 December
®+ZB=+—H
2024 2023
—EmE -
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
M FAET FET
Liabilities 8@
Non-current liabilities JEREIEE
Lease liabilities HEa® 15 14,982 21,545
Other payables HAth AT RRIE 28 691 -
Deferred income tax liabilities EIEFTISMAas 30 - 17
Total non-current liabilities JEmENE(E4EEE 15,673 21,562
Current liabilities Bt =R
Trade payables FEATERR 28 427,433 596,415
Payables for payment and digital services {9 & FLARTS
business ES ol INE0E] 28 2,623,537 3,591,920
Other payables and accruals H AP RIA R FE St RIE 28 924,754 932,745
Amounts due to associated companies FEIT B = AT FRIE 35 4,160 4,295
Current income tax liabilities BIRAFREMEE 37,327 42,136
Bank borrowings IRITER 29 82,130 42,688
Lease liabilities HEas 15 20,888 21,939
Total current liabilities BB RAAEE 4,120,229 5,232,138
Total liabilities BEH%E 4,135,902 5,253,700
Total equity and liabilities ERkaEEEE 11,858,778 13,031,718

F106E247BZ MHMRAEFTEN S -_1F=
B+ HELERERRES-

The financial statements on pages 106 to 247 were approved by
the Board of Directors on 20 March 2025 and were signed on its
behalf.

XU WENSHENG LI WENJIN
®mXE =EXE
Director Director
EE EE

B14E247B 2 MEETh A TR B MR R Z HHER
Ho

The notes on pages 114 to 247 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
BEEH (RE) BRAR

—z-magk 109



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

5 25 M s 52 ) 42

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HEZZPUFE+_A=+—HI-FE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

TARRE AL
Non-
Share Share Treasury ~ Contributed Other Exchange Retained  controlling
capital premium shares surplus reserves reserve earnings interests Total

kx  RfVEE  EERG  EARE  RtREE NERE  RERN kNS &%
HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TiEn TR TR TEn TiEn

Balance at 1 January 2024 RZBZME—-B—RZ&H 6942 1,063,153 (9,826) 168,434 (2,450,541)  (208,778) 8,621,551 587,083 7,778,018
Comprehensive income 2EWE
Profit for the year FRiat - - - - - - 157,605 18,949 176,554
Other comprehensive loss A2 EHSH
Exchange differences on translation o~ AREMNIBATEEZ

foreign subsidiaries EREE - - - - - (78,696) = (19,270) (97,966)
Reclassification of exchange reserve upon ~ HEH B AT ESMNER

the disposals of subsidiaries (Note 32) SHAE His2) s = S = s (62,942) S = (62,942)
Share of other comprehensive loss of BUEBEARZEMEERR

associated companies - - - - - (78,498) - - (78,498)
Release of reserve upon dilution of BA-ERE AT REREN

interest in an associated company A - - - - - (1,426) - - (1,426)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 20 (518) /W8 - - - S - (221562) 157,605 (321) (64,278)

Transaction with owners at their capacity %5 AMAELIER A5 T2

as owners 5
Share of other reserves of an associated ~ FEE—FEJE#E/A 5 2 H A f
company - - - - 10,560 - - - 10,560

Purchase of Company’s shares for the share A& 1352 E05t 2] (TR 1528
award scheme (“Share Award Scheme”)  5t%l)) BAKRERKI

(Note 26(a) (Hiat26(2) - - (6,837) S = S = = (6,837)
Grant of share options under share RE-FERBARERE

options scheme of a subsidiary SHEIE LR (-

(“Share Option Scheme of a Subsidiary’) it B2 5 & 51 21)

(Note 26(d) (326) - - - - 720 - - 694 1414
Deemed disposal of shares of a subsidiary - R{EHE—RIRBLE 2 K1 - - - - (230) - - 230 -
Disposals of subsidiaries (Note 32) HERBAR W) - = = = = = = 3,999 3,999

2 = (6,837) - 11,050 - - 4923 9,136
Balance at 31 December 2024 RZE-_ME+ZA=+-H
288 6942 1063153 (16663 168434 (439491  (430340) 8779156 591,685 7,722,876

The notes on pages 114 to 247 are an integral part of these  SB114E247BZ WD ZFHREMFHRER ZEHTER
consolidated financial statements. e
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

G e RSN 3

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HEZZ_PUF+_A=+—HI-FE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

KREER NEL

Non-
Share Share Treasury  Contributed Other Exchange Retained  controlling
capital premium shares surplus reserves reserve earnings interests Total
Bx  RAEE  EERG  BSERG  HtEE  SHEEE  RIRN FERRa a3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER T TET TEx TER TET TET THw TER

Balance at 1 January 2023 RZBZ=F-A—-RZ&Ek 6942 1,063,153 (30,0000 168434 (2,676471) (86,544) 8,173,081 935,687 7,554,282

Comprehensive income 2EWE
Profit for the year EREF - - - - -

463,432 50,942 514,374

Other comprehensive loss Hth2EEH
Exchange differences on translation of ~ AEEHNEATELZ

foreign subsidiaries EREE - - - - - (72,506) - (16,877) (89,383)
Share of other comprehensive loss of EUEBEAR ZEMEERR

associated companies - - - - - (49,913) - - (49,913)
Release of reserve upon dilution of BE-mREATEREEY

interest in an associated company ZhE - - - - - (2,981) = = (2,981)
Change in value of a financial asset at fair - A TE:F AEM2ENGZ

value through other comprehensive THEEEEED

income - - - - (152,846) - - - (152,846)

Total comprehensive (loss)/income 2 (58) /RhELE - - - - (152,846)  (125400) 463432 34,065 219,251

Transaction with owners at their capacity 5 AUEEE AR HETZ

as owners x5
Share of other reserves of an associated ~ FE{E—FEJEE /A Bl 2 At
company - - - = (73) - S = (73)

Purchase of Company’s shares for the share 717 2 B5tE] (T3 128
award scheme (“Share Award Scheme”)  5t#1)) B ARAGR(D

(Note 26(a)) (Hrzt26(2)) - - (9,826) - - = - - (9,826)
Issuance of shares under Share Award R AD R BT
Scheme (Note 26(a)) (Hizt26(2) = = 30,000 = = = (14,962) = 15,038
Capital injection from non-controlling ~ FFEHREREE
interests - - - - - - - 361 361
Deemed acquisition of shares of BIERERB AR ZRN
subsidiaries
- VBill Limited (“VBill (Cayman)") —FETRERERAT
(vBill (Cayman) 1) - - = = 381,304 3,252 - (384,556) -
- Other —Hfth - - - - 860) 59 - 801 =
Deemed disposal of shares of RIELE-RMBAR ZRG
asubsidiary (Note 31) (Hizt1) - - - - (1,595) 870 = 13,618 12,893
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 32) HE-BWEAR (as2) - = = = = (1,015) = = (1,015)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests  EFEERERRS - - - - = = = (12,893) (12,893)
- - 20,174 - 378,776 3,166 (14,962) (382,669) 4,485
Balance at 31 December 2023 RZBZ=%+-A=1+-H
2,%‘% 6,942 1,063,153 (9,826) 168,434 (2,450,541) (208,778) 8,621,551 587,083 7,778,018

The notes on pages 114 to 247 are an integral part of these  F114E2478 2 Mz hZ L e MBIz 2 H A
consolidated financial statements. Mo
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

o B i R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HEZZPUFE+_A=+—HI-FE

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=t+—HLEE

2024 2023
11 -2 T =F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
s FHET FHT
Cash flows from operating activities REFTFZRERE
Cash (used in)/generated from operations ~ #&%& (FTFE) /Fif8IRE 33(a) (474,018) 1,235,548
Interest paid BEHE (1,895) (3,757)
Income tax paid, net B FrISiR P48 (6,925) (25,949)
Net cash (used in)/generated from KREEE (FRA) Fris
operating activities REFHE (482,838) 1,205,842
Cash flows from investing activities RETHZHERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEBE¥)% « B = K i 15 (26,210) (32,490)
Addition of intangible assets WMEETEE (8,553) =
Addition of financial assets at fair value Mg AT ES ABR
through profit or loss (“FVPL") (MR AT Es ABI)
ZERMEE (310,909) (883,716)
Proceeds from disposals of financial assets HEZAFEABRZ
at FVPL TREEZFISRIR 536,956 657,986
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEME - BRERZEMS
plant and equipment I 33(b) 229 522
Cash inflow/(outflow) from disposals of HEWB AT Z
subsidiaries, net of cash disposed HEmA Crd) -
HERFTHE RS 32 29,970 (231)
Advance to an associated company ) — R B A B B (1,460) =
Dividend received from an associated BlR—EBE AT ZERE
company 20 171,080 145,600
Interest received BUF B 134,010 73,758
Increase in bank deposits RITERIG M (451,738) =
Net cash generated from/(used in) ’EEEFRF (FRA)
investing activities IREEEE 73,375 (38,571)

The notes on pages 114 to 247 are an integral part of these F114E2478 2 WEHZFLREWHIRKR 2 HAEL
consolidated financial statements. e

1 1 2 HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024



e ¥ e i B BB
My, "0y Ny Tapgy EEEEEEEEER aul
i .:':,:" tn:"ll..:.'liil------.--li"-::ullu
N "l';.,.'l..lll..l :' EEEE®m IIIII.IIII"."'I'I'
iy [ g e s i -u
|" LIS ® TAima i I--.__:,-. ."..!::_--I.'----

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

e Bl i A

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HEZZ_PUF+_A=+—HI-FE

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=t+—HiEE

2024 2023
o113 T =F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
By aE FHET FHT
Cash flows from financing activities METHZRERE
Settlement of written put option liability — #AH BN HIAEESE - (852,188)
Capital injection from non-controlling JEERERTE
interests - 361
Proceeds from deemed disposal of shares ~ fR{EH & —REHIBAE]
of a subsidiary IR 2 RS ARIE 31 - 12,893
Payments for purchase of the Company’s ~ SsEABAXRAT RN Z
shares by the trustee INE (6,837) (9,826)
Proceeds from transfer of asset-backed EHEEEERBEESF
securities, priority tranche &SP RIE 33(c) = 33,097
Repayments of asset-backed securities BESEXFHES 33(c) - (292,365)
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITERFTERIAE 33(c) 116,740 63,970
Repayment of bank borrowings BIRIRITER 33(c) (75,095) (75,520)
Principal elements of lease payments MEMRZAEEH D 33(c) (34,494) (31,908)
Decrease in bank deposits RITIFRORL - 969
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests ~ FIFFEARE LR AT 2 B B - (12,893)
Net cash generated from/(used in) RMEEEPIE (FF)
financing activities HeF® 0 314 (1,163,410)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash HERBEEEY
equivalents GRi) /18I EaE (409,149) 3,861
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FNRETRIRTEEY
of the year 3,482,016 3,537,506
Exchange loss on cash and cash equivalents 3R& MIREEEY 2
ER AR (61,585) (59,351)
Cash and cash equivalents at end FRZRERREEEY
of the year 25 3,011,282 3,482,016

The notes on pages 114 to 247 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

BEEH (RE) BRAR
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HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

GLAE RiEd (TS

GENERAL INFORMATION

Hi Sun Technology (China) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally engaged
in the provision of payment and digital services, provision of
fintech services, provision of platform operation solutions and
provision of financial solutions.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless otherwise
stated.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation
(i)  Compliance with HKFRS and HKCO

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance Cap. 622.

HKFRS comprise the following authoritative literature:
¢ Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
e Hong Kong Accounting Standards, and

e Interpretations developed by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

(ii) Historical cost convention
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a historical cost basis, except for financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL"),
which are measured at fair values.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(ifi) New and amended standards adopted by the Group

(iv)

The Group has applied the following standards,
amendments and interpretation for the first time for its
annual reporting period commencing 1 January 2024:

e Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current and Non-current liabilities with covenants
— Amendments to HKAS 1;

e Presentation of Financial Statements -
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause — Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (Revised);

e Lease Liability in Sale and Leaseback -
Amendments to HKFRS 16; and

e Supplier Finance Arrangements — Amendments to
HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7.

The amendments and interpretation listed above
did not have any material impact on the amounts
recognised in prior periods and are not expected to
significantly affect the current or future periods.

New and amended standards and interpretations not
yet adopted

Certain new accounting standards and amendments to
accounting standards have been published that are not
mandatory for 31 December 2024 reporting periods
and have not been early adopted by the Group.
The Group'’s assessment of the impact of these new
standards and amendments is set out below.

(@) Amendments to HKAS 21 -- Lack of
Exchangeability (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2025)

The HKICPA amended HKAS 21 to help entities
to determine whether a currency is exchangeable
into another currency, and which spot exchange
rate to use when it is not. The Group does not
expect these amendments to have a material
impact on its operations or financial statements.

a0 A 5w R BT
2 EREEREHBEED (0

2.1 RREE (B
(iii) K2 PR Z FT5T RASIESTZER)
REBERE_E_ME—B—HF
BFERS BB RERTIE
AMERT e aa g

s RBIIFABEEHIDERMTE
RERIERBRE-—BEBEE
A% (B5T ) 5

s MBWRERMZI-EMAHEE
REREBZEMERZ DE—
BBRREESM (B ;

o ERAMNMNEERRFE-BBME
HREERF169E BFTE) 5 K

o HEMMERI-—FBEER
F7RRBEBMBHREERE7R
(EETZ) o

EXFRFNERT K2 R E IR 1 BRI B SR
BT EEAEAZE  BRHAT
EHAHBERRABERNERT
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(iv) [ R ERANBIFTET R A NEETZE Al R,
PFE
HE_E_NE+_HA=+—HRE
B BETH gt Bl kgt
B2 KEMmE R RARHI B
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T

(@ BBGHERE215 (BFT %)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for 0 S 5 W R BT

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(iv) New and amended standards and interpretations not

yet adopted (Continued)

(b) Amendments to the Classification and

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

Measurement of Financial Instruments —
Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 (effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2026)

The HKICPA issued targeted amendments to
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 to respond to recent
questions arising in practice, and to include new
requirements not only for financial institutions but
also for corporate entities.

These amendments:

e clarify the date of recognition and
derecognition of some financial assets
and liabilities, with a new exception for
some financial liabilities settled through an
electronic cash transfer system;

e clarify and add further guidance for assessing
whether a financial asset meets the solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI)
criterion;

e add new disclosures for certain instruments
with contractual terms that can change cash
flows (such as some financial instruments
with features linked to the achievement of
environment, social and governance targets);
and

e update the disclosures for equity instruments
designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Group does not expect these amendments

to have a material impact on its operations or
financial statements.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(iv) New and amended standards and interpretations not

yet adopted (Continued)

(©)

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2027)

HKFRS 18 will replace HKAS 1 Presentation
of financial statements, introducing new
requirements that will help to achieve
comparability of the financial performance
of similar entities and provide more relevant
information and transparency to users.
Even though HKFRS 18 will not impact the
recognition or measurement of items in the
financial statements, its impacts on presentation
and disclosure are expected to be pervasive,
in particular those related to the statement
of financial performance and providing
management-defined performance measures
within the financial statements.

Management is currently assessing the detailed
implications of applying the new standard on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements. From
the high-level preliminary assessment performed,
the following potential impacts have been
identified:

e Although the adoption of HKFRS 18 will
have no impact on the Group’s net profit, the
Group expects that grouping items of income
and expenses in the statement of profit or
loss into the new categories will impact how
operating profit is calculated and reported.
From the high-level impact assessment that
the Group has performed, the following item
might potentially impact operating profit:

e Foreign exchange differences
currently aggregated in the line item
“administrative expenses” in operating
profit might need to be disaggregated,
with some foreign exchange gains or
losses presented below operating profit.

a0 A 5w R BT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for 0 S 5 W R BT

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN 2 iREBIEENSHEESS @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 REEE (@)
(iv) New and amended standards and interpretations not (iv) 18R FERANBIF 5T R AR5 T Bl Re
yet adopted (Continued) EFE ()

(c) HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in (© BBYHMESERF185EN
Financial Statements (effective for annual periods MHEBREINRIEE (N ZF
beginning on or after 1 January 2027) (Continued) “tHF-A—BIRZEREN

FEMRBER @)

e The line items presented on the primary o FEYUHWRFIZINIEER
financial statements might change as a result HERE T REBERE
of the application of the concept of “useful TR AR R ICE LR 35 R
structured summary” and the enhanced BB FE R A Fr®h o Lb5h -
principles on aggregation and disaggregation. AREERERGRSEER
In addition, since goodwill will be required BRTPEFEH RERF
to be separately presented in the consolidated HEsEkEMEBTLEEET
balance sheet, the Group will disaggregate DA MR EEERR
goodwill and other intangible assets and REBEY

present them separately in the consolidated
balance sheet.

e The Group does not expect there to be a o HRNEBEERERNRER
significant change in the information that is g AEEBEHEAN
currently disclosed in the notes because the MEAFENER SRS
requirement to disclose material information REF ; B2 DHEERNA
remains unchanged; however, the way in I BEEREELE, DR
which the information is grouped might BmnE A Esho thoh > IR A
change as a result of the aggregation/ HEEEFNEERERE !

disaggregation principles. In addition, there
will be significant new disclosures required

for:

e management-defined performance o EBEEAREMRFNE;
measures;

e a break-down of the nature of expenses o BT RKEE AL
for line items presented by function in BE2MIEENMZME
the operating category of the statement B —EETHERNR
of profit or loss — this break-down is only 7RTRMHEA ; K

required for certain nature expenses; and

e for the first annual period of application e MERABTBMBRSEE
of HKFRS 18, a reconciliation for each B8N B EEERR
line item in the statement of profit or loss MrE8aXRSEEEB
between the restated amounts presented BREASEMBRSE
by applying HKFRS 18 and the amounts A 185EPT2FIRIEE
previously presented applying HKAS 1. BB TRAES

BEHERIBISEATE S
SR ERHER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

a0 A 5w R BT

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN 2 {RBIBEEGESHETES @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 RHEE (@)
(iv) New and amended standards and interpretations not (iv) |5 K ERAET R 5T R ASE5 TRl B
yet adopted (Continued) FEFE (E
(c) HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in (0 BEBYUHMSEIF185HEN
Financial Statements (effective for annual periods MHBBRETNRKE (R _F
beginning on or after 1 January 2027) (Continued) “tF-A—HIZ BB
FEBRBER (@

e From a cash flow statement perspective, there e WNREREXRMBEMmMS
will be changes to how interest received BWMERENFIEHNZS
and interest paid are presented. Interest paid FRARERES - BLFE
will be presented as financing cash flows B2V ARMERTRE M
and interest received will continue to be EWFEREEZI BRE
presented investing cash flows, which is a ReEns WRERRKES
change from current presentation as part of ReReRe—HIHNE5
operating cash flows. BFrEE)-

The Group will apply the new standard from AEEER B R EE R SR H) £ 2 H A

its mandatory effective date of 1 January 2027. B tF-B—RRERANE

Retrospective application is required, and so the Ao RZEETTIEMIER > ALLE

comparative information for the financial year EIERFTZA=+—HL

ending 31 December 2026 will be restated in HHFENLERERKIRIEE S

accordance with HKFRS 18. MR EER 185 ETES

BERE (RED) BIRAS) T MEER
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HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, fair
value interest rate risk, cash flow and fair value interest rate
risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial
performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Board of Directors.
The directors identified and evaluated financial risks in
close co-operation with the operating units of the Group.

(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group's foreign currency transactions are
mainly denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”), HK$,
US dollars (“US$”), Euro (“EUR”) and British
pounds (“GBP”). The majority of assets and
liabilities are denominated in RMB and HK$
and there are no significant assets and liabilities
denominated in other currencies. The Group is
subject to foreign exchange rate risk arising from
future commercial transactions and recognised
assets and liabilities which are denominated in
a currency other than HK$ or RMB, which are
the functional currencies of the major operating
companies within the Group. The Group currently
does not hedge its foreign currency exposure.

As HKS$ is pegged to US$, management believes
that the exchange rate risk for translations
between HK$ and US$ do not have material
impact to the Group. RMB is subject to the rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government. The Group
manages its foreign currency risk by closely
monitoring the movement of the foreign currency
rates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for 0 S 5 W R BT

3

MR ERE

3.1 MBRKBREER

FEEZEHEHSBYHRER  HHRRE

(BIESNE R AT ENXER  IRER
ERAFENKAREBRRAR EERA
BEORENE TR

FrEBZERERREESNBFIVHETS
BUEAZEMN TESREHYHRERE
ZBEETNF

FEERAREE -EEEBHEAEH
BEUREAIE B R EMHER

(a) TEEE
(i) SMEE R B

KEFENIEXZTEFEUARE
(TARM)) B =Emx (I
7o) BT (TERTy) Reghss (M
#2)stE-BEEKRBBEAIDU
ANB¥KRAETE BuEUE
MEEHECEAEERARE:.
AEBBmHLIELBTHARKE
(BARERREBEBEBATZIY
FEET) sHEZ R KRB ERZ UM
ERIEERBBEEEZINER
B o 7 55 [ 3R B 0 4 9 0P HL AN BB
o

MR BTTEETTH N WEERE
R BTRRTETHREZER
BEERHAERTESEATZE A
RERABTZ ERAETHEK
FF 9816 2 S BE B 1 AR R e AR )
FERZEBRYEEIIEER Y
HEREEEIMERE



""lllllllnlllulll!--l..,l

Iy Eag LR
I W ny Ny IEEERNEEEEEEERE "L LA
A :'l‘l:..l]::..l ..:' EEEEm IIIII.IIII"""II'
Ky | . T . -
|" LIS ® TAima i I--.__:,. ."..!::_--I.'----

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

a0 A 5w R BT

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HMBEMERE®

3.1 BMBRABEE (&)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) THGEfE (#3)
(i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued) (i) SMNERFR (&)
For subsidiaries with HK$ as their functional MABTTAEHINEEEE 2 B
currency ANE]

At 31 December 2024, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the HK$ with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been approximately HK$1,274,000
(2023: HK$9,150,000) higher/lower, mainly as
a result of the foreign exchange difference on
translation of RMB denominated cash and cash
equivalents as well as current accounts with group
companies.

At 31 December 2024, if EUR had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the HK$ with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been approximately HK$1,852,000
(2023: HK$2,714,000) higher/lower, mainly as
a result of the foreign exchange difference on
translation of EUR denominated cash and cash
equivalents as well as current accounts with group
companies.

At 31 December 2024, if GBP had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the HK$ with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been approximately HK$729,000
(2023: HK$1,647,000) higher/lower, mainly as
a result of the foreign exchange difference on
translation of GBP denominated cash and cash
equivalents as well as current accounts with group
companies.

BEEH (RE) BRAR

RIZEZNFE+ZB=+—81"
BEARERBITEZEFHE%
mEMT A S HERTFE A
ERRGRRERR BN R LD
#91,274,0008 7T (CE - =£F .
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(i)

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

For subsidiaries with RMB as their functional
currency

At 31 December 2024, if HK$ had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the RMB with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year would have been approximately
HK$2,914,000 (2023: HK$2,909,000) higher/
lower, mainly as a result of the foreign exchange
difference on translation of HK$ denominated
current accounts with group companies.

At 31 December 2024, if US$ had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the RMB with all
other variables held constant, the impact to post-
tax profit for the year would be immaterial.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. Financial instruments at variable
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk. Financial instruments at fixed rates
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.
The Group’s interest rate risk arises mainly from
bank deposits, restricted bank balances, cash
and cash equivalents, loan receivables and bank
borrowings. Other financial assets and financial
liabilities are non-interest-bearing and are
measured at amortised cost.

At 31 December 2024, if interest rates on interest-
bearing bank deposits, restricted bank balances
and cash and cash equivalents had been 100
basis points higher/lower with all other variables
held constant, post-tax profit for the year of
the Group would have been approximately
HK$60,475,000 (2023: HK$70,241,000) higher/
lower due to interest income earned on market
interest rate.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MEREBERE®

3.1 BHERBREER (&)
@ THHREE (&)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(iii) Price risk
The Group's exposure to security price risk arises
from the equity investments held by the Group
and is classified in the consolidated balance sheet
as at fair value through profit or loss.

To manage its price risk arising from these
investments, the Group closely monitors the
performance and fundamentals of the portfolio
companies.

As at 31 December 2024, if the fair value of these
investments had increased/decreased by 5% with
all other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year and equity of the Group would have
been approximately HK$3,471,000 higher/lower
(2023: HK$15,460,000), respectively.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from other financial assets at
amortised cost, loan receivables, financial assets at
FVPL, amounts due from an associated company, trade
and bills receivables, bank deposits, restricted bank
balances and cash and cash equivalents .

The carrying amounts of other financial assets at
amortised cost, loan receivables, financial assets at
FVPL, amounts due from an associated company, trade
and bills receivables, bank deposits, restricted bank
balances and cash and cash equivalents represent the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to
financial assets.

(i) Risk management

To manage this risk, deposits of the Group are
mainly placed with reputable banks. The Group
has policies in place to ensure that sales are made
to reputable and creditworthy customers with
an appropriate financial strength, credit history
and appropriate percentage of down payments.
It also has other monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

Risk management (Continued)

In addition, the Group reviews regularly the
authorisation of credit limits to each individual
customer and recoverable amount of each
individual trade receivable to ensure the adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts.

The loan receivables of the Group were amounts
due from customers under the fintech services
segment in the ordinary course of business and
primarily denominated in RMB. The income from
the Group’s fintech services is mainly generated
from the micro-lending business and the supply
chain financing business (which are mainly
conducted in the form of factoring business).

The target customers of the Group’s micro-lending
business are individuals who have financial needs
of a small loan amount.

The Group conducts its micro-lending business
through an online platform. The whole loan
process is managed through a mobile application
(“App”) developed by the Group. Borrowers begin
by submitting their loan applications through
the App and are required to complete real-name
authentication and provide personal information
relating to their income level and other relevant
details. Upon receipt of the loan applications,
the Group undertakes a comprehensive credit
assessment process, including creditworthiness
evaluation of the borrowers, based on which
the Group either rejects the loan application
or approves it. For approved applications, a
maximum loan amount is determined for each
individual borrower, typically ranging from
RMB2,000 to RMB50,000). Once approved,
borrowers can access funds up to the prescribed
maximum loan amount through the App. All loans
are charged at a uniform fixed interest rate and
the term of the loans range from 3 months to 12
months.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Risk management (Continued)

To manage the risks of the micro-lending
business, the Group has put in place the
following post-grant risk management policy,
implemented through the following steps:- The
loan management department conducts periodic
assessments of the recoverability of the loans
granted. These assessment focus on evaluating the
creditworthiness of borrowers, taking into account
factors including but not limited to their history
of default, the ability to make timely payment
of interest during the tenure of the loans, where
applicable. These assessments ensure that any
necessary follow-up action is taken to mitigate
potential exposure to credit risks. To ensure
timely collection of loans, the loan management
department sends reminders to borrowers by way
of instant messages and via an automated phone
system five working days prior to the relevant due
date. If a loan becomes overdue for more than 90
days, the Group evaluates the circumstances and,
if necessary, may consider taking legal actions
to recover the outstanding amount. This step is
taken to further mitigate risks and ensure financial
stability of the Group.

The target customers of the Group’s supply-chain
financing business are enterprises.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

Risk management (Continued)

The Group acquires account receivables, and
on top of it, may also request a pledge of
notes receivables from the original creditors
under trading, service or other transaction
contracts and offers financing services to them
with recourse. The approval process for the
provision of financing begins with the project
personnel, who are responsible for preparing a
project report, gathering relevant information
from the borrower(s) and/or public domain.
This information includes without limitation the
financial conditions for the debtors of account or
notes receivables, and the nature of the financing
enterprises, their financial conditions, credit
rating and debt issuance status, in accordance
with internal guidelines and checklists. The
project report offers a general description of the
financing project, outlines the expected capital
needs, financial proposal, source(s) of repayment
of the borrower(s) and any credit enhancement
measure(s) in place, the debtors’ repayment
capabilities, etc. The project report, together with
other relevant information, is submitted to the
risk management department for review. If the
risk management department finds the project
report and the information complete and in full
compliance with the applicable rules, and that
both the borrower(s) and the financing project
concerned meet the applicable entry conditions,
the process advances to the due diligence process.
The designated due diligence manager conducts
assessment of the borrower(s). This includes
evaluating their qualifications, operating and
financial condition, credit history, repayment
ability, availability of third-party guarantee (if
any) and other relevant factors that deemed
appropriate by the due diligence manager.
Upon completion of the due diligence, the due
diligence manager prepares a due diligence
report summing up the findings. The report is then
submitted to the risk management and assessment
committee for its final review and approval.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Risk management (Continued)

The Group also maintains its own potential
clients database, which mainly comprises large
scale enterprises with high credit rating and
strong financial strengths. The Group will assess
these enterprises based on information publicly
available. The term of the loans is generally
ranging from 1 month to 12 months.

To manage the risks of the supply-chain financing
business, the Group has put in place postgrant
risk management policy to ensure the ongoing
assessment and management of the loans granted.
The Group conducts periodic assessments
to evaluate the recoverability of the loans
granted, taking into account factors including
but not limited to the financial condition,
creditworthiness, repayment capabilities, and any
history of default. These evaluations are designed
to identify any emerging risks early so that timely
follow-up actions can by taken to avoid potential
exposure to credit risks. Generally, a reminder
letter will be issued to the borrower 10 days
prior to the relevant due date. For loans that are
overdue by more than three months, the Group
may consider taking legal actions on a case-by-
case basis.

Management considers the credit risk for amount
due from an associated company to be minimal
after considering the financial position of the
entity. Management has performed assessment
over the recoverability of the balances and
management does not expect any losses from
non-performance by the entity.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

Risk management (Continued)

Other financial assets carried at amortised cost
are subject to the impairment requirement of
HKFRS 9. The credit risks on other financial assets
carried at amortised cost are minimal because
management has performed assessment over the
recoverability of these balances and management
does not expect any loss from non-performance
by related parties or counterparties, after taking
into account of their financial position and other
factors.

The Group has concentration of credit risk . Sales
of goods and provision of services to the largest
customer accounted for 5% (2023: 5%) for the
total revenue, and top five customers constituted
11% (2023: 10%) of the Group’s revenue for the
year ended 31 December 2024. They accounted
for approximately 70% of the gross trade
receivable balances as at 31 December 2024
(2023: 50%).

Collections of outstanding receivable balances
are closely monitored on an ongoing basis to
minimise such credit risk.

Impairment of financial assets

Trade receivables for sales of goods of the
Group and from the provision of services and
loan receivables are subject to the expected
credit losses (“ECL”) model. While cash and
cash equivalents, restricted bank balances,
bank deposits, amount due from an associated
company and other financial assets at amortised
cost are also subject to the impairment
requirements of HKFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

a0 A 5w R BT

MR EIR @

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MIBRAKEZE (&)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) b) EEEE #)
(ii) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (iiy =RUEERE @)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring ECL which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables.
The Group measures the ECL on a combination of
both individual and collective basis.

Receivables relating to customers with known
financial difficulties or significant doubt on
collection of receivables are assessed individually
for provision for impairment allowance. The
Group also estimates the provision for ECL on a
collective basis by grouping the trade receivables
based on shared credit loss risk characteristics
and collectively assessed for likelihood of
recovery, and applying ECL rates to respective
gross carrying amounts of the receivables.
The ECL rates are based on the external credit
ratings of individual customers with reference to
credit rating agencies or historical credit losses
experienced up to 3 years and are adjusted to
reflect current and forward-looking information
on factors affecting the ability of the customers
to settle the receivables. Credit ratings are
periodically monitored.

As at 31 December 2023, the ECL of the
collectively assessed receivable balances from
customers of the sales of electronic power meters
and solutions business was HK$9,545,000
based on expected loss rates up to 100%
calculated using the corresponding historical
credit losses experienced up to 3 years. As at
31 December 2024, there was no ECL of the
collectively assessed receivable balances from
these businesses since the Group has disposed
the subsidiaries which was principally engaged
in sales of electronic power meters and solutions
business during the year. The respective ECL of
the individually assessed receivable balances
from customers of payment and digital services
business, platform operation solutions business
and financial solutions business, which is based
on the external credit ratings of individual
customers with reference to credit rating agencies,
is immaterial as at 31 December 2024 (2023:
same).
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Impairment losses on trade receivables are
presented as “credit impairment loss” in the
consolidated income statement. When a
receivable is uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account for receivables.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against the same line item.

Loan receivables

The Group estimates the ECL under HKFRS 9
ECL models. The Group assesses whether the
credit risk of loan receivables have increased
significantly since their initial recognition, and
apply a three-stage impairment model to calculate
their ECL, the management assesses impairment
loss using the risk parameter modelling approach
that incorporates key measurement parameters,
including probability of default, loss given default
and exposure at default, with the consideration of
forward-looking information.

Loan receivables are categorised into the
following stages by the Group:

Stage 1
Loan receivables have not experienced a

significant increase in credit risk since origination
and impairment is recognised on the basis of 12
months ECL (12-month ECLs).

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HEEBEIER @
3.1 BMBRABEE (&)
b) EEER #)

(i) EMEERE (@)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(ii) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Loan receivables (Continued) EWE (@)
Stage 2 FIEE

The Group assesses whether or not the credit risk
of the relevant financial instruments has increased
significantly since the initial recognition at each
financial reporting date. While determining
whether the credit risk has significantly increased
since initial recognition or not, the Group takes
into account the reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost
or effort, including qualitative and quantitative
analysis based on the historical data and forward-
looking information. The Group compares the
risk of default occurring on the loan receivables
assessed at the reporting date with that assessed at
the date of initial recognition.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

— Significant adverse changes in debtor’s
operations or financial status; and

— the financial asset is past due 30 days or
above.

Stage 3

Loan receivables that are in default and
considered credit impaired (Lifetime ECLs credit
impaired).

The Group considers loan receivables as defaulted
when it is credit-impaired. The Group considers
that a credit-impaired event occurs when (i) the
borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to
the Group in full, without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising security (if any is held);
or (ii) the financial asset is past due for more than
90 days.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Loan receivables (Continued)

As at 31 December 2024, the provision
for impairment of loan receivables was
HK$147,731,000 (2023: HK$145,827,000) based
on expected loss rates applied to different stages
as follow:

Loan receivable (HK$'000) FEW B (F7&7T)
Provision for impairment  FEWE RURE # &

of loan receivables (F%&7T)
(HK$'000)
Expected loss rate FEERE IR X

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for 0 S 5 W R BT

3 MBEKREE®

3.1 HBAKEE (@)
b) EEEE (#)
(iiy EREBEERE @)
W ER (&)
RIEZNFE+ZA=+—8"
RIBFO T RESERFTER 28
HBFBEE BWERURERES
147,731,000 7T (ZE =4 :
145,827,0005E7T) :

As at 31 December 2024
R-E_NFE+"A=+—H
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
—PEER BREER BB w5t

1,780,001 - 152,868 1,932,869
8,247 - 139,484 147,731
0.46% - 91.2%

Loan receivable (HK$'000) FEWE = (F7E&7T)
Provision for impairment FEUEFUREE

of loan receivables (F#7T)
(HK$'000)
Expected loss rate TEHAEIRE

As at 31 December 2023
RIBE-_=F+"A=+—H
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
—MEE FPEER B=MEER wBEt

1,498,174 72,032 112,255 1,682,461

11,751 30,754 103,322 145,827
0.78% 42.7% 92.0%

Cash _and cash equivalents, restricted bank

balances, bank deposits, financial assets at FVPL,

bills receivables and other financial assets at

amortised cost.

Note 38.9 described the impairment policy
of cash and cash equivalents, restricted bank
balances, bank deposits, financial assets at FVPL,
bills receivables and other financial assets at
amortised cost. There is no loss allowance for
these assets at amortised cost as at 31 December
2024 (2023: same).

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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si o MR I aE
3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BERKERE®

3.1 BMBRABEE (&)
(c) TTEELERE

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk

With prudent liquidity risk management, the Group
aims to maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents
and ensure the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of available financing, including
short-term bank borrowings. Due to the dynamic
nature of the underlying businesses, the Group’s
finance department maintains flexibility in funding
by maintaining adequate amount of cash and cash
equivalents and flexibility in funding through having
available sources of financing.

Surplus cash held by the operating entities over
and above balance required for working capital
management are transferred to interest bearing bank
deposits with appropriate maturities to manage its
overall liquidity position. As at 31 December 2024,
the Group maintained cash and cash equivalents of
HK$3,011,282,000 (2023: HK$3,482,016,000) that
is expected to be readily available and sufficient to
meet the cash outflows of its financial liabilities, hence
management considers that the Group’s exposure to
liquidity risk is not significant.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s total banking
facilities amounted to approximately HK$213,823,000
(2023: HK$276,983,000), of which HK$82,130,000
has been utilised (2023: HK$42,688,000).

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
their contractual maturities for:

(a) all non-derivative financial liabilities, and
(b) a derivative financial instrument for which

the contractual maturities are essential for an
understanding of the timing of the cash flows.
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EE M o
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=t+—HR AEEZRERRESEE
1 73,011,282,00087T (CE =4 :
3,482,016,000787T) > TBEAE LARNBFFE
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MBERERE®
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 HBAKEE (@)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) € TREEZERE (B
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual R ESREASHNREIRFESR
= ARERIR Z R ER A MU 1218 3
WEIHAZ SRR ES N HARE AR

undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12
months equal their carrying balances, as the impact of
discounting is not significant.

134

Between  Between
Less than 1 and 2 2 and 5
1 year years years Total
LRR—F —E"ZF —ERE “aEt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FHET FHET
At 31 December 2024 M2 _MmE
+-B=+—H
Trade payables FEATERAR 427,433 = - 427,433
Payables for payment and TR FICARTE TS
digital services business ZENFRIE 2,623,537 = - 2,623,537
Other payables and accruals — E.{thf&({J T IE K
FESTFRIE 663,685 = - 663,685
Amounts due to associated FETH A B RUIE
companies 4,160 - - 4,160
Bank borrowings RITEM 82,130 - - 82,130
Lease liabilities HEaE 23,374 13,353 1,868 38,595
Total =i 3,824,319 13,353 1,868 3,839,540

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

a0 A 5w R BT

3 MBEKREE®

3.1

MBRRER (&)
€ HEHELEE (&

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as total debt divided by total capital.
Total debt includes bank borrowings and lease liabilities of
the Group. Total capital is calculated as “equity” as shown
in the consolidated balance sheet plus total debt.

BEEH (RE) BRAR

Between Between
Less than 1 and 2 2 and 5
1 year years years Total
DR —F —ZE-F _EALFE wast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET TFAT TFAT
At 31 December 2023 AR
+-B=+—H
Trade payables FEATERTR 596,415 - - 596,415
Payables for payment and ST R FICARTS TS
digital services business ZERRIE 3,591,920 - - 3,591,920
Other payables and accruals ~ EL &I TIE K
FE 5t RIB 637,506 = - 637,506
Amounts due to associated FET = AR IA
companies 4,295 - - 4,295
Bank borrowings RITER 42,688 = - 42,688
Lease liabilities HEAE 27,635 14,232 3,405 45,272
Total =L 4,900,459 14,232 3,405 4,918,096
3.2 Capital risk management 3.2 BEXEKERE

FEBEEEAZ BNARELAERRTE
REREES > URRREHEBIFRU R AE
A HEABRE & Wk F > MR REE R
EELUBIEE R
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IRREX MR EEEE  ARFREREIRE 2
TR S E B ELUR MER

FEBUEBEFERIEREAREEERZE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GLAE RiEd (TS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Capital risk management (Continued)

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the gearing ratio was

as follows:

MHEERER @

32 BEXEABER (&)

N TETMERTET
B EXafLExmT :

=F+ZRA=+—

As at 31 December

r+ZA=+—A8
2024 2023
—E-ME . .- S
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT
Bank borrowings (Note 29) RITERR (BaE29) 82,130 42,688
Lease liabilities (Note 15) HEas Batis) 35,870 43,484
Total debt SRR 118,000 86,172
Total equity T 4R %E 7,722,876 7,778,018
Total capital HER 7,840,876 7,864,190
Gearing ratio BEARBMELEX 1.5% 1.1%

3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 AF{EMLE
(a) Fair value hierarchy (a) L FEER

Ti‘%?ﬁtﬁg’\?fﬁzfﬁfﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁ
BWABBZER DHEAEER"E
TMERZFE=F+"A=1t—H
BATEIRZEM TR -ARHA
BRh R X m R AR TE
RIBNZ =R :

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
instruments carried at fair values as at 31 December
2024 and 2023 by level of the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair values. Such inputs
are categorised into three levels within a fair value
hierarchy as follows:

e Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for .
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

HRIBENEEN GRS RE
CRACHE) B—R) ©

e Inputs other than quoted prices included within .
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,

MREIRE—RZ®EN BEE
HEBEZAIHREERE BMER) 3
Bz BRBEERE) BARE B

is, derived from prices) (level 2). TR e

either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that

e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based .
on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).

WIFRE P BR TS EEMmEE
ZEEHBBRZHARE BIFH
BREZ2BARE E=R -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HMBEMERE®
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 X2FE MG @)
(@) Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (a) L FEER )
The following table presents the Group’s financial TREJAEERZN S _NFE+—
assets that were measured at fair values at 31 B=+—HAFEEZSREE-

December 2024.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—K B4R B=4 #ast
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAET FHET FHET

Financial assets ERMEE
Financial assets at FVPL BNTFESTAEBRZ
SREE
— Unlisted investment fund —FELTIREESE = = 68,537 68,537
— Listed equity securities — LR AES 878 = = 878
Total =111 878 = 68,537 69,415
The following table presents the Group’s financial TREFNAERRN _E_=F+_
assets that were measured at fair values at 31 B=+—HAFEtEZEMEE-
December 2023.
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—R Bk B =4 #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET FET FET
Financial assets ERMEE
Financial assets at FVPL BAFEESTAEBmZ
THBEE
— Unlisted investment fund —JELHREES = = 82,321 82,321
— Listed equity securities — EHRAE 834 - - 834
— Investments at FVPL — B AFEFAEG
s - 226,051 - 226,051
Total =518 834 226,051 82,321 309,206
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GLAE RiEd (TS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
(a) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

There were no significant transfers of financial
assets and financial liabilities between the fair value
hierarchy classifications during the year ended 31
December 2024.

Transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair values

At 31 December 2023
Transfer from Level 1 to Level 2

RE—RBEEE R

3

W_E-=%+-HA=+—H

MERAKREE @
3.3 AFE G @)
(a) ATFEER B
BEZFE+-B=+—HIE%F
E ATEBREBIESHEE
REmaEEAEE

B—BERE_FATEZEE

Assets

HE
Financial Financial Financial
asset asset asset
at FVPL at FVPL at FVOCI
— unlisted - listed - listed
investment equity equity
fund securities security
BATE
BATE BATE STAEAM
AT stAlEE 2HENE
ZEMEE ZEME ZER
—JE LTS —tH  EBEE-—LW
ki REEE BB 5
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
THT THT FHET
- - 22

Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy
are deemed to occur at the end of each reporting
period. Transfers into and out of levels of the fair
value hierarchy are primarily attributable to changes
in observability of valuation inputs and price
transparency of the period.

(i) Financial instruments in Level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives,
and trading and equity securities) is based on
quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.
The quoted market price used for financial assets
held by the Group is the current bid price. These
instruments are included in level 1.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

(ii) Financial instruments in level 2
The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market (for example,
over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by
using valuation techniques which maximise
the use of observable market data and rely as
little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If
all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in level 2.

(i) Financial instruments in level 3
If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument
is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted
equity security, unlisted investment fund and
unlisted convertible preference shares.

Valuation techniques used to determine fair values

The Group’s finance department includes a team that
performs the valuations of financial assets required
for financial reporting purposes, including level 3
fair values. As part of the valuation process, this team
reports directly to the chief financial officer (“CFO”)
and external valuers will be engaged, if necessary.

In applying the discounted cash flow technique,
management has taken into account the estimated
amount that the Group would receive to sell the
instrument at the balance sheet date, taking into
account current interest rates and the current credit
worthiness of the counterparties. Where discounted
cash flow techniques are used, estimated future cash
flows are based on management’s best estimates and
the discount rate is a market related rate for a similar
instrument at the balance sheet date.

a0 A 5w R BT

3 HBRREERE®

3.3 AFE MG (@)
(@) AFEER E)
(i) FE_MzEMITE

WIERERMERNEE /M T A
GNBIMTAE T R) UHERMTE

EAFE EESXRAERT

BB IRSERIVKBER

BEMst- B LRAZATFERSE

TRAIEE AR A SRS A THR

g BRAT AT ASE ke

(i) E=HzEMTAE
E—ERZEEAHAZIETIE
MUARR mRgEAREE 5
BMILAEBHASE=ZHR - LitEA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for 0 S 5 W R BT

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(c) Fair value measurements using significant

unobservable inputs (level 3)

Specific valuation techniques used to value level
3 financial instruments include techniques such as

discounted cash flow analysis and net asset value
model. There are no changes in valuation techniques

during the year (2023: same).

The following table presents the changes in level 3

financial instruments for the year ended 31 December

2024:

B E5 R

REIE @

3.3 XFE M @)
(c) EHEATETERMA BiEZ N\ F

B8 (F=4R)

BLmE =AM T AGEZRHEM
EERMEELERREREIMREE
FEBRLEFERN - FRAERMILE
88 (CT_=F 1R °

TREVWNBE_Z_NME+_A
=+ —HIFEF=ZHfEsMIE2E
e

Financial asset
at fair value

through
profit or loss
BAFEFA
BEZ2EREE
unlisted
investment
fund
JEET
KREES
HK$’000
FHET
Balance at 1 January 2024 RIZE_MFE—HF—HZHEER 82,321
Fair value loss on revaluation RIEmERZEHAFERE
recognised in profit or loss (11,415)
Exchange realignment PE R R (2,369)
Balance at 31 December 2024 R-E-WME+-BA=+—HzZ4&85% 68,537
Unrealised loss recognised in the profit REE B ARG 28w
or loss attributable to balance MRz REIRER
at the balance sheet date (11,415)

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
(c) Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3) (Continued)
The following table presents the changes in level 3
financial instruments for the year ended 31 December

2023:

Balance at 1 January 2023 RIEZ=

a0 A 5w R BT

3 MBRKREE®
3.3 2FE M @)

(c) EHEAT BTEEZRE N B35 2 2\ F
E5rE (F=4) (&)
TRENHEE_ZE_-_=+-"A4
=t+—HIEEESE=REmI B #
& .

Financial asset
at fair value
through

profit or loss
BAFEESTA
BRZSREE
unlisted
investment
fund

JEE™™
KEES
HK$'000
FHET

FE—R—HZ4% 93,077

Fair value loss on revaluation i
recognised in profit or loss

Exchange realignment

bR 2 EfEATEER

(8,159)
(2,597)

Balance at 31 December 2023

RIE_=F+"A=+—HzZ&&HK

82,321

Unrealised loss recognised in the profit
or loss attributable to balance
at the balance sheet date

RAEB BERREEZ B
MR 2 RE I ER

(8,159)

(i) Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss —
unlisted investment fund
The Group has determined that the audited net
asset value approximates fair value of the unlisted
investment fund after applying a portfolio discount
of 10% (2023: 10%).

(i) BRAFEFAEGNTHE
E-FFLmKREES
AEBEREE TERAREESTT
E10% CET=F 1 10%) B &
EZEEFERAELHREES
ZAFERE

BERE chE) BRAT —ECmEES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

GLAE RiEd (TS

3.4 Financial instruments by category

B E5 R

3.4 RERBNZEMIA

REIE @

As at 31 December

m+=ZH=+—H
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Financial assets at FVPL BATESABRZEMEE 69,415 309,206
Financial assets at amortised cost BBHENA ST EZ SREE
Other financial assets at BEHm A E 2 Hth Rt
amortised cost B5E 167,788 172,915
Bank deposits IRITIE 442,487 =
Amounts due from associated FEWE = A B FIE
companies 6,273 5,000
Loan receivables EWE™R 1,785,138 1,536,634
Trade and bills receivables FE U BR S R FE W 24 185,722 177,055
Restricted bank balances Z IR BRI TAGER 2,593,913 3,542,318
Cash and cash equivalents REMREEEY 3,011,282 3,482,016
Total &5t 8,262,018 9,225,144
Financial liabilities at amortised cost G IH AT E 2 EREE
Lease liabilities HEa’d 35,870 43,484
Trade payables FEAT BRR 427,433 596,415
Payables for payment and digital TN REBFIERBERZ
services business FETFRIE 2,623,537 3,591,920
Other payables and accruals ELAthFE T 7R I8 K fE 51 7R IB 663,685 637,506
Amounts due to associated FEN I E A BRIB
companies 4,160 4,295
Bank borrowings IRITERX 82,130 42,688
Total &t 3,836,815 4,916,308

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the consolidated
financial statements are evaluated and based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that may have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.

(a) Impairment of receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of receivables
based on assumption about risk of default and expected
credit loss rate. The Group use judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group’s past history, existing
market conditions as well as forwarding-looking estimates
at the balance sheet date. Management also assesses
whether the credit risk of receivables have increased
significantly since their initial recognition and apply a
three-stage impairment model to calculate their ECL.

Impairment loss on loan receivables represent
management’s best estimate of losses incurred in the
loan portfolio at the reporting date under ECL models.
Management assesses whether the credit risk of loan
receivables have increased significantly since their initial
recognition and apply a three-stage impairment model
to calculate their ECL. The Group is required to exercise
judgement in making assumptions and estimates when
calculating loan impairment loss, including any observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in
the estimated future cash flows from loans portfolio and
historical loss experience on the basis of the relevant
observable data that reflects current economic conditions.

a0 A 5w R BT

4 FRSEGEHEET Rk

ARRRGEMHRER A R THER
BEERREMEE  SEERARETARMB
MMREGEHRZ EHMIEL -

FEBFHAERRR A RRR BLEE
FrfEgstbstE LV BAEMBRERER A
EXRERAEER T EMBEENEERS
B2 REEFHERRAEZ G5 RRRETIN
To

(a) FEWCRIE
FERRBEAFAENEARKBRESHE
K2 BREHEEUBIRRZ B - AEE
FHZERRKEERES ERRARIE
RERBAEENGEEAZBEEE B
A T3 550 LA e A & M (e 5t 1F ) ) e o B EER AP
FITRETEFE MR TRBIE BRI BRI Ia RS
DR BERBEBIEGI WA =R ER
At EEEHEERE

RWERZ REBEREEERBRERNIE
EEERUNREARNEREGEEN
BEzREM -EREENLRKERZ
EERRBEVSERERSAELM.
WAER =R EBE A St EH TR EEE
B A BENREBER > NEFERET
Fih > R R b5t SEEARTRER
HEMEESIRRBESRE LR 8RD
2 IR BUE DU I R A AR IR B9 4
BIRTRRHIE S E N E R BRER

BERE chE) BRAT —ECmEES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for 0 S 5 W R BT

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

Impairment of receivables (Continued)

The measurement of the ECL involves significant
management judgments and assumptions, primarily
including the selection of appropriate models and
determination of relevant key measurement parameters,
criteria for determining whether or not there was a
significant increase in credit risk or a default was incurred,
economic indicators for forward-looking measurement,
and the application of economic scenarios and weightings,
management consideration due to significant uncertain
factors not covered in the models and the estimated future
cash flows in stage 3. Refer to Note 3.1 (b)(ii)).

Impairment of investment in an associated company
The Group conducts impairment reviews of investment
in an associated company whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts
may not be recoverable or tests for impairment annually
in accordance with the relevant accounting standards.
Determining whether an asset is impaired requires an
estimation of the recoverable amount, which is measured
at the higher of the value-in-use and the fair value less
costs of disposal, which requires the Group to estimate the
value in use which base on future cash flows and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value. Where
the actual future cash flows are less than expected, an
impairment loss may arise.

Fair value of the unlisted investment fund at FVPL

The fair value of the unlisted investment fund at FVPL that
is not traded in an active market are determined by using
valuation techniques. The Group uses its judgement to
select a variety of methods and make assumptions that are
mainly based on market conditions existing at each of the
balance sheet date. The Group has used net asset value
model for the unlisted investment fund at FVPL that is not
traded in active market (Note 3.3).

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

a0 A 5w R BT

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4 FRifEEsHhstRHE @
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(d) Income taxes and deferred taxation (d) FRIEREIEERIE

The Group is subject to income taxes in various
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income tax. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
determination is uncertain. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such difference will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provision in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers
to be probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences or tax losses can
be utilised. The outcome of their actual utilisation may be
different.

AEBETRAEEZEERDABMTE
1o BEFTSMBHR AL ERHE - R
ERG R EZREMBEEITCMAN
ZE-MREFENRKMBERRRS
ARERAER ARFEEBTEMFLA
R EHAR Z PRSI BB AEAR TR B

BRIETHRNEREKRRBEFEVIELIRE
BEEREEEDR R BIERRERREF
FA (R SH RS 2= RS IR IB B 1R RV 15 0 T
B HBRBSABERNERAIEAER

5 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER 5 URAEtigAREMESISEE
LOSSES, NET

Material accounting policy BEAGEEER
(a) Sales of goods @ HEEdm

The Group is engaged in sales of electronic power meters.
Sales are recognised when control of the products has
transferred, being when the products are delivered to the
customers, the customer has accepted the products, the
collection of the related consideration is probable and
there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
customer’s acceptance of the products.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered
as this is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is required
before the payment is due.

FEERFHEEEFEER EERE
HIEEEE AIRERINTER TRE
W ER DURFIsEWEIRRAE Bl
AR EERRRERNRBITERR) -5’

FEWGRIER XA & B M58 0 (R 43 54 B 2
ERREARERERRIRAM < ER
RHEREZ R

BERE chE) BRAT —ECmEES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for 0 S 5 W R BT

5 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER 5 WA ~EMgAREMEIESEE @

LOSSES, NET (Continued)

Material accounting policy (Continued) EREHEER B
(b) Provision of services (b) IEHRTE

The Group recognises revenue from its payment and
digital services business when services are rendered
which coincide with the verification of the underlying
transactions of the merchants (customers of the Group)
by the relevant banks and financial institutions. Revenue
from early settlement services is recognised when the
services are rendered, which generally coincide when the
settlement has been completed.

The Group is engaged in provision of platform operation
solutions services and financial solutions services. Revenue
from providing services is recognised in the accounting
period in which the services are rendered. For fixed-
price contracts, revenue is recognised based on the actual
service provided using the percentage of completion
method, because the customer receives and uses the
benefits simultaneously.

If circumstances arise that may change the original
estimates of revenues or costs, estimates are revised.
These revisions may result in increases or decreases
in estimated revenues or costs and are reflected in the
consolidated income statement in the period in which the
circumstances that give rise to the revision become known
by management.

Some contracts include multiple deliverables, such as the
provision of financial solutions and related maintenance
services. The related maintenance services are accounted
for as a separate performance obligation. Where the
contracts include multiple performance obligations, the
transaction price will be allocated to each performance
obligation based on the stand-alone selling prices. If
contracts include the maintenance services, revenue for
the maintenance services is recognised based on the actual
service provided, using the straight-line basis over the
terms of contracts, because the customer receives and uses
the benefit simultaneously.

If the contract includes a monthly fee, revenue is
recognised in the amount to which the Group has a right
to invoice. Customers are invoiced on a monthly basis and
consideration is payable when invoiced.

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER
LOSSES, NET (Continued)

Material accounting policy (Continued)

(c)

Interest revenue

The Group is also engaged in the provision of fintech
services. Interest income is recognised and accrued using
the effective interest method. When a loan receivable is
credit impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount
to its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash
flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of
the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as
interest income. Interest income on credit impaired loan
receivables are recognised using the original effective
interest rate.

(d) Contract liabilities — receipt in advances

(e)

A contract liability is recognised when a customer
pays consideration, or is contractually required to pay
consideration and the amount is already due, before
the Group recognises the related revenue. The Group
recognised its contract liabilities under other payables
and accruals as receipt in advance from customers in the
consolidated balance sheet.

Interest income

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost,
except loan receivables from the fintech services business,
calculated using the effective interest method is recognised
in the consolidated income statement as part of other
income.

a0 A 5w R BT

5 WA~ Bt AR E S EFEE @

EAGHEBER (8

(c)

()

(e)

BEEH (RE) BRAR

FSHA
AEBTREFRHESBBERE - F S
AUBBRRE LD R BEEWEMR
HIREERER  ~EE SR EIREER
EHAIROEEE MR TENRERFXR
WG RRIRERE) » ARBT R
BRERDBHBWA - EEREERKRERN
FBURATHIZ R B RF AT -

EAIBE— RSB
EERXMABIBENREINAER
TRRCIHE SN RENEEREE
B AR - AEBBHEHGNERES
FRWRER 2B G EERRRAN
HAMFE IR FE ST TIRIA NHERD ©

FE YA

BB A BB AR S/
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for 0 S 5 W R BT

5 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER 5 WA ~EMgAREMEIESEE @

LOSSES, NET (Continued)

Material accounting policy (Continued)

() Government grants
Grants from the government for high-tech companies are
recognised in “other income” in the consolidated income
statements at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the Group
will comply with all the attached conditions.

(g) Rental income
Rental income from properties letting under operating
leases is recognised in the consolidated income statement
on a straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Revenue, other income and other losses, net recognised
during the year are as follows:

EXREHHER (@)

@

(®

B iEE)
8 & RMRE U BT & B B AR B
TETHMEWS KL et E¥E K
FHBBEREATER GRS WE R TEAIR
AJFEER

TAZIRA
W&ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ‘fﬁ%ﬂ%%ﬁ’ﬁﬂ%%)\ e
BN EREN AW R TR

RERNFERZ WA~ M A K E 515
JRERIS

For the year ended
31 December

BE+_HA=+—HLFE

2024 2023
—E-mE = -=f
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Revenue from contracts with REHRER BN E
customers
Recognised over time PRI IF BT ST
Provision of services IREARTS 2,185,634 2,482,561
Recognised at a point in time TR [ i i 58
Sales of goods HES M 83,796 46,786
2,269,430 2,529,347
Revenue from other source kB H R IR UL S
Provision of fintech services (Note i)  I1R{HEERIR RS (B152Ei) 70,610 179,817
2,340,040 2,709,164
Other income H A
Interest income FBEUWA 141,520 73,758
Government grants (Note i) BT #EEN (07 a2ii) 11,708 39,859
Rental income WA 644 2,886
Others Hith 1,298 415
155,170 116,918

148 Hi SUNTECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

a0 A 5w R BT

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER 5 UtA ~EMUgAREMEIEFEE @
LOSSES, NET (Continued)

Material accounting policy (Continued) EREFHEER B
(g) Rental income (Continued) (g) FAZIHA (#B)

For the year ended
31 December

BE+_A=+—HLFE

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET THT
Other losses, net Hihgs51834%8
Fair values (losses)/gains on financial ZAFEtABRZ SREE
assets at FVPL ZATE (B8 W
— Unlisted investment fund —JEEHRERS (11,415) (8,159)
— Listed equity securities — L HRAES 45 (146)
— Investments at FVPL —BAFEFABRZRE 2,566 1,869
Derecognition of written put option RSN AN EE ABED
liability at FVPL B s A - 4,863
Impairment of intangible assets B EERE HE16)
(Note 16) - (20,837)
Impairment of investment in an R—EBERTZRERE
associated company - (22)
(8,804) (22,432)

Note i:  Revenue from provision of fintech services represented Miazi:  RESREHRRT WA BUERRZX
interest income recognised and accrued using the effective R REBIFSUA
interest method.

Note ii: Government grants represented value-added tax refund Mfzzii;  BRTEBN IR AR BB VIS AR R
from local tax bureau and grant from government in relation IR PRI R 3 B TSR T ER
to sales and research and development of self-developed BB A R o WA /BN I BT
software products in the PRC. There were no unfulfilled REMFREMSIAEER-

condition and other contingencies attached to the receipts of
those grants.

BB (hE) BRAR —z=-mEgE®R 149
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HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION

Material accounting policy

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision
maker. The chief operating decision maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the Executive
Directors that make strategic decisions.

Description of segments and principal activities
Management has determined the operating segments based on
the internal reports reviewed by the Board of Directors that are
used to make strategic decisions.

The Board of Directors considers the business of the Group
from a product perspective.

The Group is organised into four main operating segments in
these internal reports:

(@) Payment and digital services — principally engaged in
provision of payment processing services and related
digital products and solutions;

(b) Fintech services — principally engaged in provision of
micro-lending, supply chain financing, factoring business,
credit assessment services and related products and
solutions;

(c) Platform operation solutions — principally engaged in the
provision of telecommunication and mobile payment
platform operation services and operation value-added
services;

(d) Financial solutions — principally engaged in the provision
of information system consultancy, integration and
operation services and sales of information technology
products to financial institutions and banks.

The Board of Directors assesses the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of earnings/(losses)
before interest expense, taxes, depreciation and amortisation
(“EBITDA"), and segmental operating profit/(loss). EBITDA is
calculated by excluding interest expense, taxes, depreciation,
amortisation and fair value gain/(loss) on financial assets at
FVPL from segmental operating profit/(loss).

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R e B R N R

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 DHEN®

FERFRZIRAREERESED BRI T

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and results for the year by

operating segment is as follows:

Payment Platform
and digital Fintech operation Financial Total
services services solutions solutions Others Group
%tk SR TREE &
YF MRS PR AR P YES Hith EEH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TR TERT TERT TET TERT
Year ended 31 December 2024 ~ HE_Z-F
+ZA=+—-HLEE
Segment turnover DEEEE 1,749,898 91,458 146,353 285,043 83,796 2,356,548
Inter-segment turnover DEREERE (637) (3,659) (1,041) (11,171) = (16,508)
Turnover from external customers  SRESMPE R 2 EEEE 1,749,261 87,799 145,312 273,872 83,796 2,340,040
Segmental EBITDA (excluding fair ~ £}48EBITDA (R &1E
value gain/(loss) on financial BATES ABTmZ
assets at FVPL) EHMEEZRTE
W/ (8548)) 190,297 (20,631) (3,970) 14,891 (7,747) 172,840
Depreciation e (48,523) (5,850) (5,543) (5,717) (1,245) (66,878)
Amortisation i (343) - - - ) (352)
Fair value gain/(loss) on financial ~ &AFEFTABRZ
assets at FVPL EREECLTE
s/ (B2 = 2,566 (11,415) S S (8,849)
Segmental operating profit/(loss) DB ER]/ (§518) 141,431 (23,915) (20,928) 9,174 (9,001) 96,761
Unallocated other income FAREMUA 23,094
Unallocated corporate expenses  ROECTE %R (113,312)
Operating profit, before gainon ~ &&ER) REEHE
disposals of subsidiaries, net LhIEYNSIPAGver ] 6,543
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries, HEMBAB 2 KEFE
net 93,226
Operating profit, after gain on fgat) gERE
disposals of subsidiaries, net B ARGz WP 99,769
Share of results of associated i3l =YNSIE+
companies 213,160
Impairment of investment inan R —EBEATZ
associated company RERE (141,307)
Gain on deemed acquisition BRlEREE—ERE
and dilution of interest of an NEIEE 2 W E
associated company 4,906
Finance costs RMEMA (1,895)
Profit before income tax FRETSM AT R 174,633
Income tax credit FriSHigeR 1,921
Profit for the year FREA] 176,554
SRR (FED) BRAF T OEFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 AR (®
An analysis of the Group’s revenue and results for the year by K%IEWZH&U\&% BREE DN
operating segment is as follows: (Continued) )
Payment Platform
and digital Fintech operation Financial Total
services services solutions solutions Others Group
%Ik SRBE ToES i
AR % BARE BARE HAfth £/
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHRT THRT FHRT FHRT FHERT FHT
Year ended 31 December 2023 ~ HEZFZ=F
+ZRA=t+—-HLEE
Segment turnover NREXE 1,994,129 200,473 166,856 325,437 46,787 2,733,682
Inter-segment turnover DEEEER (690) 2,167) (845) (20,816) - (24,518)
Turnover from external customers  2RESMNIE R 2 EXER 1,993,439 198,306 166,011 304,621 46,787 2,709,164
Segmental EBITDA (excluding fair ~ 734BEBITDA (R 81E
value gain/(loss) on financial BATES ABGZ
assets at FV/PL) EMEEZATE
W,/ (§48) 297,203 47,748 (5,492) (13,515) (25,069) 300,875
Depreciation e (99,942) (5,898) (5,858) (6,352) 2,116) (120,166)
Amortisation By (722) (739) = = (23) (1,484)
Fair value gain/(loss) on financial ~ #£%3 ?fﬁuﬁ\?ﬂﬁz
assets at FVPL SRBEECATE
K&/ BB - 1,869 (8,159) - - (6,290)
Segmental operating profit/loss) S4B ERF],/ (518) 196,539 42,980 (19,509) (19,867) (27,208) 172,935
Unallocated other income RO ELEAMUA 24,696
Unallocated corporate expenses KA EH= (123,086)
Operating profit, before gainon 48 &EF) > REIEHE
disposals of subsidiaries, net B ARGz WP 74,545
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries,  HEMEAT 2 e EEE
net 3,277
Operating profit, after gain on LEar aELE
disposals of subsidiaries, net B ARGz WEFE 77,822
Share of results of associated BB ERAER
companies 402,949
Gain on deemed acquisition RAakEREE— S
and dilution of interest of an NEET 2 W
associated company 1,973
Finance costs BEMA (3,757)
Profit before income tax BRETBI AR 478,987
Income tax credit FiisiiiEe 35,387
Profit for the year EREF 514,374

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
=2 /N >3
on e B B aE
SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 NEEN@®
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2024 and TR CNEF+ R =+—HZOEEERS
additions to non-current assets for the year ended 31 December BERBEZZNF+_A=+—HLFEF
2024 are as follows: MEBEZARENT .
Platform
Payment and Fintech operation Financial
digital services services solutions solutions Others  Unallocated ~ Elimination  Total Group
Xtk ERHK FoiEE Ei:
HFRH it BARE EYES At AR it @AM
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HIKS'000 HKS 000 HIKS'000 HKS'000
TiEn T TiEn TR TiEn TEn TiEn T#n
As at 31 December 2024 RZZZME
+ZA=+-H
Segment assets DEEE 5771121 2423337 563,936 469,209 292,99 4940381 (2602200 11,858,778
Segment liabilities NEER (3984151)  (1,239,640) (334,301) (589,867) (107,744) (482,401 2602202 (4135902)
Year ended 31 December 2024 HE-_T-mE+ZR
Z+-ALEE
Additions to non-current assets (excluding  FEREIEEZRE
investments in associated companies, (FTEERBEARZ

financial assets at FVPL, other financial K& BATEH AER
assets at amortised costand long-term - Z BVEE  EHBMA
bank deposits) SEZEMERERER
EERITEDN 53,114 3111 1,063 161 271 5,832 = 63,552

BERE (RE BRAT —z-meER 153



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for 0 S 5 W R BT

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 DEEF @
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2023 and R_E=—F+"RB=+—HZOEEEHRS
additions to non-current assets for the year ended 31 December BRBECZC=F+"_A=+—HLFEF
2023 are as follows: MBBEEZARENT !
Platform
Payment and Fintech operation Financial
digital services services solutions solutions Others  Unallocated ~~ Elimination  Total Group

ik EHRER TaER E
B B BATE BAOR Hft AE B £EAH
HKSO00  HK$000  HKSO0D  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO0O
T TERL Tin TERL Tin TR T T

As at 31 December 2023 -
+ZR=+-H
Segment assels PEEE 6742579 2,357,488 603,153 470905 7551 5004890 (474848 13,031,718
Segment liabilities PEER (5,195,717) (944,593) (340,573) (594,618) (174,194) (478,853) 2474848 (5253,700)
Year ended 31 December 2023 HE-T-=F+ZH
=+-BLEFE
Additions to non-current assets (excluding  FEFEIEEZFE
investments in associated companies, (FEERBEARZ

financial asset at FVOC, other financial R & AFE AL
assets at amortised cost and financial 2ERE EHEE

assets at FVPL) HEERAE ZE M

SHEERZATEIA

RuZ2REER) 45,986 13,310 8,289 10,305 1,018 92 - 79,000
During the year, additions to non-current assets mainly FRNERDEEZAETECTEHNE K
comprise additions to property, plant and equipment, right- EhEZE CRAREERBEEEZFE CF
of-use assets and intangible assets (2023: property, plant and _=F IR -BERRE CHEEERER
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets). BEE) e
Information provided to the Board of Directors is measured BEEFREZEMRBRESMBERR X
in a manner consistent with that of the consolidated financial Z2HEEAH B REEENBRRSEIERED
statements. These assets and liabilities are allocated based on fice

the operations of the segment.

Sales between segments are carried out at normal commercial DB HER - REERRET - RNEEE
terms. The revenue from external parties reported to the Board Eiﬁ@%“ﬁ%ﬁfé?—%zuﬂlkﬁﬁﬁ R eI &
of Directors is measured in a manner consistent with that in the —HZHIEEEe

consolidated income statement.

1 54 HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 AR (@
The Group is principally domiciled in Mainland China and FEBIERERPEAKREREE (CEZ=
Hong Kong (2023: same). The Group's turnover by geographical F B c AEEIRME (RZEREES M
locations, which is determined by the locations in which the [REEE) Bl EERINT

turnover are generated from, is as follows:

For the year ended
31 December

BE+_HA=+—HLFE

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Mainland China e A P 2,113,413 2,555,657
Hong Kong 58 222,146 150,804
Others Hith 4,481 2,703
2,340,040 2,709,164
The Group’s non-current assets (excluding investments in AEERME (YR EEEHBENBET) 2
associated companies, other financial assets at amortised DNZIERBDEE (FSERBELNBZRE IR
cost, financial assets at FVPL and long-term bank deposits) MR AST B HMEMEE R TEFA
by geographical locations, which is determined by the B eMEERRRAIRITER ST :
geographical locations in which the asset is located, is as
follows:
As at 31 December
nr+-A=+—H
2024 2023
—EC-mE =&
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
Non-current assets FERBEE
Mainland China FRE A BE 103,472 148,415
Hong Kong B 5,994 2,150
109,466 150,565

Bl (F) ARAT —s=-—mEgE® 155



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for 0 S 5 W R BT

7 EXPENSES BY NATURE 7 UWEHEERZAX
Expenses included in cost of sales, selling expenses, STARHER A HERSI THRERNREER
administrative expenses and credit impairment loss are BEEEZEZORIT !

analysed as follows:

For the year ended
31 December

BE+_HA=+—HLFE

2024 2023
“EME EC=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THTT
Auditor’s remuneration 2 Gl

— audit services — RS 4,007 3,880

— non-audit services —IERZBRTS 2,296 3,583
Commission and incentives paid/payable  BE17,/ BT ¥R REGIFE

to business channel partners V1A & R 4L B 978,024 1,121,088
Interest expenses on asset-backed securities & & Sz ¥ 5855 M F) B 37 H = 9,778
Depreciation of property, plant and Y% BB s BT EE (Wt 14)

equipment (Note 14) 42,263 97,457
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERREEINE #i15)

(Note 15) 29,374 28,908
Depreciation of investment properties KEMEITE W5213)

(Note 13) 179 173
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 16) B & E#E (H2£16) 352 1,484
Employee benefit expenses (including EERMNEX (BEEEE)

directors’ emoluments) (Note 8) (H1£8) 946,907 945,914
Costs of inventories sold (including EHEFEENAN (BEFEEREER

reversal of provision for inventories (C2Z=F  76&H)

(2023: provision for inventories)) (Bizt21)

(Note 21) 75,567 57,785
Short-term leases of office premises WAIBPTAEHRIRSE (Hat15)

(Note 15) 13,890 10,448
Research and development costs B A (BEETHA)

(including staff cost) 345,677 303,079
Gains on disposals of property, plant and ~ HEY¥  BE K& EHZ W

equipment (Note 33(b)) (#fa£33(b)) (208) (103)
Write off of property, plant and equipment #8112 « Bk = K 548 (B75%14)

(Note 14) 88 6
Credit impairment loss EERERE

— trade and bills receivables (Note 22) — FEU AR RN R FE U R 4%

(Hyat22) 2,867 1,806

— loan receivables (Note 18) —ERER (Ha£18) 46,771 54,699
Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss SNEE (W m) B51873 %8 (3,458) 1,073

1 56 HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

a0 A 5w R BT

8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 8 EE&EFHX (QIFEEiME)
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

Material accounting policy BEREFFHER
(a) Employee leave entitlements (a) 1ESEEH KA

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet
date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

(b) Pension obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “Pension
Scheme”) set up pursuant to the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of its employees in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the
consolidated income statement as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the Pension Scheme. The
assets of the Pension Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administrated
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed to the Pension
Scheme, except for the Group’s employer voluntary
contributions, which are refunded to the Group when the
employee leaves employment prior to vesting fully in the
contributions, in accordance with the rules of the Pension
Scheme.

The Group has no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid. The contributions are
recognised as an employee benefit expense when they are
due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future
payments is available.

EEEZFERREREN ZARRE
RDeAEEEHRERERFELEHEAMRAR
ZEERREEAREFLEE-

EEZAZHRBREREERENRRZE
Valk=ti i

(b) BHZET

FEBBHMBEEBEEEF—HERER
HlME A B 5T BB 51 2 T §R AR
MERRERNEF B (BRIRETEL) o R
RESEAFEZREEILEAE AN
IRIFIR KT B RR B FE ST A R AR S IR
mERR-BUFABZEERFEREE
PHEFE THBUEEESRE AEE
2 & EHRIE BB IRE BUIF (R B
BEES EAERFHZEEBRHR
FERIRBR AR ZRAERENBREHER
YR BRI ERIROANER-

AEERZAHERBEEEMAREE
RN B HR R R B EEF T H - TR Y
BB EIIR T SN BAR SRR R 8 2
HE-

BERE chE) BRAT —ECmEES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS” EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

Material accounting policy (Continued)
(b) Pension obligations (Continued)

(©)

The Group companies in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC") participate in defined contribution retirement
benefit plans organised by relevant government authorities
for its employees in the PRC and contribute to these
plans based on certain percentage of the salaries of
the employees on a monthly basis, up to a maximum
fixed monetary amount, as stipulated by the relevant
government authorities. The government authorities
undertake to assume the retirement benefit obligations
of those employees under these plans. Contributions to
these retirement benefits schemes are charged to the
consolidated income statement as incurred.

Profit sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a formula that
takes into consideration the profit attributable to the
Company’s shareholders after certain adjustments. The
Group recognises a provision where contractually obliged
or where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.

(d) Long service payments

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long service
amounts payable on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance is the amount of future benefit that employees
have earned in return for their service in the current and
prior periods. The long service payment liabilities are
assessed by using the projected unit credit method. The
cost of providing the long service payment liabilities is
charged to profit or loss so as to spread the costs over
the service lives of employees. The long service payment
liabilities are discounted to determine the present value
and reduced by entitlements by employees accrued under
the Group’s defined contribution retirement scheme that is
attributable to contributions made by the Group. Actuarial
gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and
changes in actuarial assumptions are credited or charged to
other comprehensive income in the period in which they
arise, respectively. As a result of plan amendment, a past
service cost, arising from the change in the present value of
the defined benefit obligation for employee service in prior
periods on the date of plan amendment, is recognised as
an expense.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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EEEFRY (BEEEMD @

EXREHHER (@)
(b) BNZEEF (&

(c)

(d)

RepEARHENE (HhEL) NEBRES
INEEARRABUN A8 2 HE P BB R B AE 4

E MR RENE LRIEEEH
EHN—ELAIRARZSFEEHR &S

THENFAEMEMRENEEE B
B BN EBPIAGE IR B A F T8 R EZXT
EENRNKRENEME -ZFRNEF 5 E
2R EERBRE W@ Rk

BRI D ERIEAL5T 2
AEBREREESE D ERTEA R &R

PEEREERMX  ZAEH AR
ETHBRESALXRBRERIEET
EHRANEEIETESIBEEET
Ry > A S B RSO B

RHRE =
FERRBEE(REBEODEETERT
KILEREEMS N 2 RIRFEAITE
ZBEFE REEENTEEREER
It IR AR TS P R AN 2 SRR A8 A o REAAR
BEtRERBARANEMER AT G X
T RERFEEEZRAEHIRERFI0
bR LUER AR BE ZRBFHN#HD
FEERER RARBSAERAT LU
IR WHIBRE S EE T E HFRARE ST
NEERSBmTHAERMHRZ D
RBERARMEEZBERRE LUK
BRROES) TELERBAD RN EHAh
EEWmEF N BN EBERT  FE
BIEET HEIZ AT B B AR BBV R E =R
BEERES(CMAELE ZBERBRARER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

a0 A 5w R BT

8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 8 EEEMEX (EIFEEHD) @
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

Material accounting policy (Continued) EREFHEER B
(e) Share-based payments (e) LUfR17 AEF2HIT

The Group operates share option schemes and share award
schemes under which the Group receives services from its
employees in exchange of equity instruments (including
share options and awarded shares) of the Group to acquire
the shares of the Company at specified exercise prices.
The fair value of the services received in exchange for the
grant of the equity instruments to acquire the shares of the
Company is recognised as an expense in comprehensive
income with a corresponding increase in share based
compensation reserve under equity. For grant of share
options, the total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted by using
option-pricing model. For grant of award shares, the total
amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the
market price of the Company’s shares or the fair value of
the subsidiary’s shares at the grant date. The total expense
is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period
over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be
satisfied. At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options and awarded
shares that are expected to vest. It recognises the impact of
the revision to original estimates, if any, in comprehensive
income, with a corresponding adjustment to equity. When
the options are exercised, the proceeds received net of any
directly attributable transaction costs are credited to share
capital.

For cash-settled share-based payment transactions, the
Group shall measure the goods or services acquired and
the liability incurred at the fair value of the liability. Until
the liability is settled, the Group shall remeasure the fair
value of the liability at the end of each reporting period
and at the date of settlement, with any changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss for the year.

FEBRABRES B KRN RS
Bt A EERESHESNRB UG
EEEET A (BEBRERERRD)
DI ETEERBAERT RN 7333
Rt T AR AT IR PR UREAR
BRATEREEREPER A I
It as T AR RGN LABRAR 4 BBV H7 B 8
o MREBREMS > T IHVAEEETS
2EFRAECERAEHNERENA
TEEE IR BERIRMNME » /T8
RS ERHEH A ABRMNHER
MBABRMNZATEETE BXHNE
B HA (NP 55 T BY 57 B8 15 1 1 BB BRRS)
PIBET o RIS RIR > NEEIEFT EL 45t
TR R BRI B R R R R EE - I
REmBREERETHRMEZE (N
B) > UHRAIFRERE - R BREET
R ARBEHITHR - RBREETE
B > PR R B3R IR (G 52 5 Al 4 P UK ER B9
FRSRRIESt AR ©

MERREEENUARN BERHEZAR
5> AEERREREN AT ESEFMERS
NEmBBBRFAEENEE - REES
ER AEBRARSREBRNGEEHE
M BRENATE A TENERNES
PR AR

BERE chE) BRAT —ECmEES
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8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 8 {EEEMEX (BIFEEHD) @
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

Material accounting policy (Continued) EREHEER B

For the year ended
31 December

BE+_A=+—HLFE

2024 2023
—E-mE | —=-=f
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
Wages and salaries TEKE 773,318 772,352
Pension costs and social security costs RIRE ARt B IRER A 171,440 158,524
Share-based payment under Share Award & {7 #2 B 51818 ™8I IZD A
Scheme (Note 26(a)) (H13%26(a)) = 15,038
Share-based payment under Share Option —fEififi 8 A B] FE A& #E 51 &I
Scheme of a Subsidiary (Note 26(d) HTHRMD 2T HzE26(d) 2,149 =
946,907 945,914
Five highest paid individuals TREREHALT
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in FEREE"TMFE+"A=+—HLFE
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024 included TREEHRALTEERE(CE=F: E%)§
five (2023: four) directors whose emoluments are reflected in FoWEZINEEEM3 7R R -EE
the analysis shown in Note 37. The emoluments payable to B_=F+"A=1T—HLEERWUHT—%
the remaining one individual for the year ended 31 December ALZBEaT

2023 are as follows:

For the year ended
31 December

BE+_A=+—HLFE

2024 2023

—EME T =F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHT FHETT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ~ #r& ~ 2SR EYIF % - 2,080

Pension cost — defined contribution plan Bk E A — BB TE - 18

Discretionary bonuses BIBTEAL - 1,700
Share-based payment under Share Award %17 #2 B 51818 ™8I I1D X A

Scheme (Note 26(a)) (H13%26(a)) = 846

- 4,644

160 Hi SUNTECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS” EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

Five highest paid individuals (Continued)
The emoluments fall within the following bands:

a0 A 5w R BT
8 (REEFIM: @EEEHD @

IRBEEHAL @
= THIARR!

Number of individuals
A
For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=t+—HiEE

2024 2023
—E-mE ==
HK$4,500,001 — HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 775 — 5,000,000 7T - 1

9 FINANCE COSTS

9 RAEMZ

For the year ended
31 December

B@E+-A=t+—HiEE

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Finance costs MERK
- Bank borrowings —IRTTERK 179 1,886
— Lease liabilities (Note 15) —HE&aE #atis) 1,716 1,871
1,895 3,757

10 INCOME TAX CREDIT

Material accounting policy

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

10 FRiSiRER

EREFHER

MRS RAX IR R B IRER B A RIS
R SMME N E R RRERRUIA ST EE
NIRE > WIRN R =R AR BBREER
BUIESERRIAE E K B RE B T LA -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for 0 S 5 W R BT

10 INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued)

Material accounting policy (Continued)
(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company’s
subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation and considers
whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept
an uncertain tax treatment. The Group measures its tax
balances either based on the most likely amount or the
expected value, depending on which method provides a
better prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.

(b) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
income tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from
the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is
also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantially enacted at the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available to
utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred income tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign operations
where the Group is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that
the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

10 INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued)

Material accounting policy (Continued)

(c) Offsetting
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances
relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets
and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.
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BAGHEEK (B

(c) 1
ERAEAEGFITRNEEHRRESE
HEERE > BIRIERIBA RS AR
PR Bl RIEIEFT S BEERBER
HEIRIH - BB A S A R A AT E
ERNEEERRESERE I RZ
FHEEELFINRREREEREHEE
B RO R ERREBEEERRIESELNE
Y ©

B R RSERR TR R TP e 30 > WA B EAth
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FEEFERD o

For the year ended 31 December

HE+-H=t+—BLEE

2024 2023
b1 - 3 T =F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FET

Current income tax BIHEAPR1S R
— Hong Kong profits tax (Note (a)) —EBBNER @) (1,290) -
— PRC corporate income tax (Note (a)) —hE (S EFRER (W5Ea) (21,413) (51,635)
— Over-provision in prior year (Note (b)) —RFBEREE b)) 24,618 84,653
Deferred income tax RIEPRISTR 6 2,369
Income tax credit FrigiRifk e 1,921 35,387

Note (a)

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2023: 16.5%)
on the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation on overseas profits
has been calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the
rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Subsidiaries in the PRC are subject to corporate income tax (“CIT”) in
accordance with the PRC CIT Law. According to the PRC CIT Law and the
relevant regulations, the CIT tax rate applicable is 25% unless preferential
rates are applicable in the cities where the subsidiaries are located. If a
subsidiary is qualified as High and New Technology Enterprise (“HNTE”),
the applicable CIT tax rate is 15% for three years. If a subsidiary is engaged
in Encouraged Industries in the Western Region (“EIWR”), the applicable CIT
tax rate is 15%. If a subsidiary is qualified as Software and Integrated Circuit
Enterprise (“SICE”), the applicable CIT tax rate is 0% for the first two years of
being qualified and 12.5% for the next three years.

izt

EHEMNEGRUENGES BRI aF 2RE16.5% (T2
T =5 116.5%) 5tE < BINGEFTRIERILIF A fE 5 ERIR
wH) A EEEERERRER MK E

RARENHEB AT BIREPE SR (REFRER)
SR EEFTSIR o IRIR P E S EFTSRA RABRERR
FRIFEEREBRNMB AR AR T TR EME
RBAREA25% o H—EH B AT S ERRAS MM
¥ (MEHEMes)  N=FEBRtEMERKRESL
15% o fis — RSP @ A B B a St @ BB E X (TFESPH
EEEEES))  ABRACEMERMRER15%  H—RH
WEBASDGERRARERERBREE B4 RER
BEEE)) AREERNEMEEREERESRRES
0% BEB = F R E212.5%°

BERE chE) BRAT —ECmEES
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HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

WA 5 #h A B ke

INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued)

Applicable corporate income tax rates of principal
subsidiaries

B AT

Subsidiaries

Beijing Hi Sun Advanced Business
Solutions Information Technology
Limited (“BJ ABS”)

BEITI A RAE (“VBill OPCO”)

EESEMBTHNEERAR
(“Chongging Xinlian”)

EREEREARAF
(“Vintelligence Beijing”)

(TEEEM)

(I—jb /li_l'l\lnl:l %J)

BINXNABERAE (HETH)
EEEMBTHNEERAR

BREEREARAF

10 FRiGHIESR @

TEMBARZBRAEEMBRIRE

Applicable corporate income
tax rate
BREEMERKRE
For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=t+—HLEE

IREGEEEERMAERAT
(HEmBEBEE)

Note (b)

The over-provision of current income tax in prior year during the year ended
31 December 2023 and 2024 is mainly attributable to Vintelligence Beijing.

Pursuant to Caishui Circular 49 of 2016 jointly released by the Ministry of
Finance, the State Administration of Taxation, the National Development
and Reform Commission and the Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology of the PRC and the amendments of the relevant tax rules and
requirements of the eligibility for the tax incentives, management performed
self-assessment for Vintelligence Beijing on the eligibility of tax incentives.

In prior years, Vintelligence Beijing was accredited as SICE with the first
effective period being the year ended 31 December 2022 and is entitled
to a preferential tax rate of 0% for the first two years of being qualified and
12.5% for the next three years. As a result of the accreditation, Vintelligence
Beijing received a tax refund in relation to corporate income tax paid during
the year ended 31 December 2023 of HK$20,695,000, and recognised
an over-provision for income tax expense of HK$71,322,000, which was
calculated at the applicable tax rate of 15% when Vintelligence Beijing
was qualified as HNTE during the year ended 31 December 2022, in the
consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 December 2023.
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2024 2023
—E-mE ==
15% 15%
25% 25%
15% 15%
15% 15%
At
HE-S-=HR-PNE+-A=+—BLEEY

BEFERAFSRNBERFEIERRINIERES

RIFHEM B ARG RE ERERNAEEES
BT EMEBCEBAEMN T —REMRE495EX

URABRBESERNNB R REZRNET BEE
HIRERHINBERERETERT G

REEFE IREZERTEANHREMBREE
BHESNBABE _SE-__F+_BA=+—HLEE"
TWEBRNESERNEMEZTE0RRNER=ZFZ
B12.5%NEERE - RN ELILRE  ERE 2 EIFLE
EIETF+ A=+ HIEFEZNHNEEMSR
HBRERH20,695,0008C TREEZSE_=F+"4
=—t+—HIEFEZGEWERERMSRE BEaEE
71,322,0008 70 WAEREE - —F+_H=+—
HIEFEILREBEREA MM EERSERMN15%R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

10 INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued)

Note (b) (Continued)

In July 2023, the Chinese tax authority published the version 2.0 of the
policy implementation guidelines for research and development (“R&D*)
expenditures super deduction (“Guidelines 2.0”), which provided additional
clarity on the different kinds of R&D expenses that are eligible for
deductions, as well as more details on the types of activity that are deemed
to be R&D. In view of the more stringent requirements and implementation
measures in granting the preferential tax rate of SICE resulted from
Guidelines 2.0, management applied the corporate income tax rate of 15%
for the year ended 31 December 2023 when Vintelligence Beijing was
qualified as HNTE.

In May 2024, Vintelligence Beijing continued to be accredited as SICE
with the second effective period being the year ended 31 December 2023
and is entitled to a preferential tax rate of 0%. During the year ended 31
December 2024, Vintelligence Beijing received a tax refund in relation to
corporate income tax paid during the year ended 31 December 2023 of
HK$20,524,000 and recognised an over-provision for income tax expense
of HK$23,004,000, which was calculated at the applicable tax rate of 15%
when Vintelligence Beijing was qualified as HNTE during the year ended 31
December 2023, in the consolidated income statement for the year ended
31 December 2024.

a0 A 5w R BT

10 FRiSMHRIESR @

Histm) (&)

RIZZ=Ft > RERFHEPIZM T HE (HE) &
At NBREEREMHE512.06k ((45512.01) » E— AR
FamsHRETNOSRMEERR  URKRESHEE
BNE S5 ENIES 2.0 TR R ERBRIEEE
BEREDENEZRMNBRERESEE REEZT =
F+ZAZT—HLEFER BIREET M Rird
EEER EREEA15%NEHERE-

RIBIMFERA I REREBERTEARNHRERES
BihFE FEANPABEZE=F+RB=+—
BILEE T & EREZH0%NEERE -HE_T _UF
+ZRB=+—HLEE IRGEEWRIMBE_S "=
F+ZA=+—HIFEZANCEMSHRNAERER
20,524,000 0 THEBEE_S_WF+_B=+—HL
FEZ R E W R BATISH FE 2 BB R 523,004,000
o WA EREE S =F+_A=+—HILFELR
GEEERTABMEMEERFBRANI %R RSN EEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for 0 S 5 W R BT

10 INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued)

The taxation on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average
tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated entities in the
respective jurisdictions as follows:

10 FRiGHIESR @

REBRRRANEF 2 RBEBRE AR ERAS
ARRE BRI 2 MEFIER It E 18R
REE ZREOT ¢

For the year ended
31 December

BE+_A=+—HLFE

2024 2023
—E-mE S -=f
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT
Profit before income tax BRPTSIRATEF 174,633 478,987
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates EREERREE N Z
applicable to profit in the respective EHIRKAEZINIEA
countries 17,931 57,402
Tax effects of: MERE .
Share of results of associated companies A {hEtE A Bl 2 2£4& (35,172) (66,202)
Income not subject to taxation HARBUA (66,999) (17,296)
Expenses not deductible for tax LRI S A AR 2 B
purposes 36,818 25,395
Utilisation of previously unrecognised ~— BIiB{ERER 2 HIBRIE
tax losses (13,132) (3,889)
Tax losses for which no deferred SR EFT S IR IE RS 2
income tax was recognised RIEE1E 83,251 53,856
Over-provision in prior years BEFEEBEEE (24,618) (84,653)
Income tax credit FRISIMIE % (1,921) (35,387)

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 10.3% for the
year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: 12.0%). The change
is caused by a change in the profitability mix of the Group’s
subsidiaries in the respective countries.

11 DIVIDENDS

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE

a0 A 5w R BT

12 BiREF

Material accounting policy BEAGEEER
(i) Basic earnings per share (i) EREXREZF
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing: BREREFNFENT

(i)

the profit attributable to owners of the Company,
excluding any costs of servicing equity other than
ordinary shares

by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for
bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during the
year and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the
determination of basic earnings per share to take into
account:

the after-income tax effect of interest and other
financing costs associated with dilutive potential
ordinary shares; and

o AAEEAAELEF (NFREE
SN AR TR A FREL

BRI

s MBFEHTHENSERINETS
BOoMFNBETEERNANER
(FEfEEERD) EITRHE-

(i) EREEGET
ERBEENAEANEESRELETR
e LEE

o HBTEEIE: ’LHx$ﬁ%§E’J%'J SR EAth
MERANPISNETE

e the weighted average number of additional ordinary e REFIEETHIZEEREEEH
shares that would have been outstanding assuming the BEITEIMEME BRI NETY
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. e

(a) Basic @@ E=&

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to the owners of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

E}HR%ZIKE%'JE&Z!K“T B \REhER
BRUFEAEHITEBRIIE TS E -

For the year ended
31 December

BE+_A=+—HLFE

2024 2023
—EomE —Z-=fF
Profit attributable to the owners of the ~ KA BB ABMLREHN (FET)
Company (HK$'000) 157,605 463,432
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ B2 1T & B INE TR0
shares in issue less shares held for AR BB ET B P RF AR 1D
Share Award Scheme (thousands (F52)
shares) 2,753,405 2,745,494
Basic earnings per share attributable to ~ ZNA B R AELEREAR
the owners of the Company &BA (BB
(HKS$ per share) 0.057 0.169
BB (hE) BRAR —z-mEsg 167
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HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

(b) Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
net profit and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding to assume conversion of all potentially
dilutive shares.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group has
three categories (2023: three) of potentially dilutive shares:
share options issued by an associated company — PAX
Global Technology Limited (“PAX Global”), share options
issued by a subsidiary — VBill OPCO and share options
issued by a subsidiary — Shenzhen Hi Sun FinTech Global
Limited (“Shenzhen Hi Sun”) (2023: share options issued
by PAX Global, share options issued by VBill OPCO and
a written put option liability issued by a subsidiary — VBill
(Cayman).

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the exercise of the
outstanding share options in PAX Global, VBill OPCO and
Shenzhen Hi Sun (2023: PAX Global and VBill OPCO)
would have a dilutive effect. The exercise of the share
options in PAX Global, VBill OPCO and Shenzhen Hi Sun
(2023: PAX Global and VBill OPCO) would be dilutive if
the net profit attributable to the owners of the Company
will decrease. A calculation is performed to determine
the number of shares that could have been acquired at
fair value (determined as the average annual fair value
of the associated company’s shares and the subsidiaries’
shares (2023: the associated company’s shares and the
subsidiary’s shares) based on the monetary value of the
subscription rights attached to outstanding share options of
PAX Global, VBill OPCO and Shenzhen Hi Sun (2023: PAX
Global and VBill OPCO). The number of shares calculated
as above is compared with the number of shares that
would have been issued assuming the exercise of the share
options of PAX Global, VBill OPCO and Shenzhen Hi Sun
(2023: PAX Global and VBill OPCO).

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the calculation of
diluted earnings per share does not assume the exercise of
the written put option liability issued by VBill (Cayman) as
it would have an anti-dilutive impact to the basic earnings
per share.
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BERMEBTZERE -BITUETZE
[ LUK — R B 2 B — VBIll (Cayman)gZ
TZzEHLEERR) -

BE_ZHNF+_RA=+—HLEE"

ﬁ@"ETEEIaiX BT RFEIIEE (CF
T=F  BERMABEITN 2R TEER
HESEE A AT E - HARBER AR
EAEFIRRL  RIFTE B SRR BETT &
FERE CEZ=F  AERKKMETHY
ZERESEAREEEE -BEEIRAT
BERBZRMNEE (EHE QT RMNKME
NERG CEZ=F | BEARRM KM
BRERD) 2 THEEATEEE HE
BEEERR BITNRFRIEE CE2=
F | AEIRMKREEITN) ZRITEBRIER
Mz RBREEREBESE  EXMAFEZ
RMNBEDRBRBERK BITHAR
gk (CE-=F  BERKKEITN Z
BREETEZEETROBBFLLR.

BE_Z_="F+_"A=+—8HLF
B st ESREE AT ILRBRVBIll
(Cayman)217 2 BHSLEAE S EETTRE
RRAAESEHEREABANELR#E
B4 o

=



L, “SEEEEEEEEEEERERERRRTTC

'
:’l "l":::l.:::'ll....... EEEEm ....‘..'!!:::::.'.‘l
Nt e T e m e -~
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
=2 /N >3
on e B B aE
12 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 12 SREF @
(b) Diluted (Continued) (b) #5E ()
For the year ended
31 December
BE+_-_A=+—HLEE
2024 2023
“TTME T =F
Profit attributable to the owners of NREEBR NEGRT
the Company (HK$'000) (F#E7m) 157,605 463,432
Assuming exercise of all outstanding BRESRKETZFIE
dilutive share options issued by B ARAT R E R R T
PAX Global (HK$'000) (F#7m)
— Decrease in share of profit — R —ERE QS ER
of an associated company b (3,402) (7,837)
— Loss on dilution of an associated — S —EME AR 218
company (95,706) (86,790)
Assuming exercise of all outstanding BRBEITHETZFRERR
dilutive share options issued by VABill TEEERE A T
OPCO (HK$'000) (F#E70
— Decrease in profit attributable to — KRR BEEB AEEER
the owners of the Company b (50) (2,664)
Assuming exercise of all outstanding BERFRISHETZFIE R K
dilutive share options issued by T EEERE R EITE
Shenzhen Hi Sun (HK$'000) SR
— Decrease in profit attributable to the —RREHEB ANELET
owners of the Company P (80) -
Adjusted profit attributable to the owners A EESKREERHN
of the Company used to determine RABER NEEK
diluted earnings per share (HK$'000) @Al (FA&7T) 58,367 366,141
Weighted average number of ordinary SREERANZBEITRMHH
shares in issue less shares held for Share NN 9EURL (7 BN ET
Award Scheme for diluted earnings per  BIFFIFRIARD (FAR)
share (thousands shares) 2,753,405 2,745,494
Diluted earnings per share attributable ~ AAB#EA ABLEKREE
to the owners of the Company &R (Bk#ET)
(HKS$ per share) 0.021 0.133
EEEE (FE) BIRAE “E_UFEFR
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13 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

13 REYE

Buildings
gF
HK$'000
FHET
At 1 January 2023 R-IE_=%—H—H
Cost DS 3,457
Accumulated depreciation E i (2,773)
Net book amount EEFE 684
Year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z_=—H+"_RA=1+—HLEE
Opening net book amount FYREFE 684
Depreciation e (173)
Closing net book amount FRIREFE 511
At 31 December 2023 RZE_=%+"A=+—H
Cost (DS 3,457
Accumulated depreciation 2 E (2,946)
Net book amount IRENEE 511
Year ended 31 December 2024 HE_E_ME+_BA=+—BLtEE
Opening net book amount FYREFE 511
Transfer from property, plant and equipment BREYE BB KRRE 20
Depreciation e (179)
Closing net book amount FRIREFE 352
At 31 December 2024 R-E_MFE+"HA=+—H
Cost DS 3,587
Accumulated depreciation REHTE (3,235)
Net book amount REFE 352

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had no unprovided
contractual obligations for future repairs and maintenance
(2023: same).

All depreciation expense during the year has been charged to
administrative expenses (2023: same).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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13 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 13 KEWE ®

The following amounts have been recognised in the UF£3ERGRaRmRAMER
consolidated income statement:

For the year ended
31 December

BE+_A=+—HLFE

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Rental income e N 644 2,886
Direct operating expenses arising from BHETWAZKREYEFREL
investment properties that generated ZEEKERX
rental income 472) 211)

There were no direct operating expenses arising from
investment properties that did not generate rental income
during the year (2023: same).

The period of leases whereby the Group leases out its
investment properties under operating leases were 1 year
(2023: 1 year).

The investment properties are leased to tenants under operating
leases with rentals payable monthly. There are no other variable
lease payments that depend on an index or rate.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2024, the future aggregate
minimum rentals receivables under non-cancellable operating
leases are as follows:

FRAHERSRAZKREYETEEEE
MEZCERX CE=F R -

AERRFEERERHEREYEZARA
FCEBEI=F 1)

SEYFRCEHEETHR  BAXMEE-
W EMBUR I B ROV P] SR E R

A =ERTE_NE+_BA=+—H"
RIS E 2 KRR EEWRS4E
B0

As at 31 December

nR+-A=+—H
2024 2023
—E-MmE TEC=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHETT
Not later than 1 year NiBiE1 4 186 1,037

BEEH (RE) BRAR

—TFEFR
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14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 ¥ -BERKZE
Office
Leasehold  furniture and Plant and Motor
Buildings  improvements equipment equipment vehicles Total
HE MAZE
BF MERE RERRE BERRHE AE A%
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR FERT FERT FERT FERT FERT

At 1 January 2023 WZE-=%—RA—H
Cost (D% 39,019 27,944 218,956 694,944 33,634 1,014,497
Accumulated depreciation RetinE (26,805) (26,651) (191,791) (586,198) (29,873) (861,318)
Accumulated impairment loss ZEtRERE - - - (6,383) - (6,383)
Net book amount REFE 12,214 1,293 27,165 102,363 3,761 146,796
Year ended 31 December 2023 BE-ZT-=F+-B=1+—H

HEE
Opening net book amount FREZE 12,214 1,293 27,165 102,363 3,761 146,796
Additions NE - 74 10,556 19,637 2,223 32,490
Disposals (Note 33(b)) & Frit33b) = = (1) (12) (406) (419)
Written off i - - (6) - - (6)
Depreciation e (1,099) (635) (16,173) (77,986) (1,564) (97,457)
Exchange realignment EREE 331) (29 (747) (2,530) (107) (3,744)
Closing net book amount EREREFE 10,784 703 20,794 41,472 3,907 77,660
At 31 December 2023 RZZ2Z=F+-A=+—8H
Cost B 37,956 27,378 215,951 694,709 31,585 1,007,579
Accumulated depreciation REHINE (27,172) (26,675) (195,157) (647,036) (27,678) (923,718)
Accumulated impairment loss KEtREBE - - S (6,201) = (6,201)
Net book amount REZE 10,784 703 20,794 41,472 3,907 77,660
Year ended 31 December 2024 HE_Z-_ME+-B=+—H

LFE
Opening net book amount FVREREE 10,784 703 20,794 41,472 3,907 77,660
Additions HE 3,200 = 1,067 21,551 392 26,210
Transfer to investment properties BREREME (20) - - - - (20)
Disposals (Note 33(b)) & Frat33b) - - 107 (128) - (1)
Disposals of subsidiaries (Note 32) HENB AR #at32) (9,687) S (654) (4,331) (20) (14,692)
Written off b6 - - (88) - - (88)
Depreciation e (789) (624) (12,765) (26,898) (1,187) (42,263)
Exchange realignment ERARE (254) 9) (422) (1,170) (107) (1,962)
Closing net book amount ERREFE 3,234 70 8,039 30,496 2,985 44,824
At 31 December 2024 RIE-mE+=B=+—H
Cost D% 4,704 25,455 185,591 652,556 26,198 894,504
Accumulated depreciation REtiNE (1,470) (25,385) (177,552) (622,060) (23,213) (849,680)
Net book amount REVEE 3,234 70 8,039 30,496 2,985 44,824

1 72 HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Depreciation expense included in cost of sales, selling
expenses and administrative expenses are analysed as follows:

R e B R N R

14 YE - -BERKERE @

HEMA HEERAKRITHRERTRSIMRE
BRDRWT :

For the year ended
31 December

BE+_A=+—HLFE

2024 2023

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHT

Cost of sales THE R A 26,581 77,348
Selling expenses HERX 79 66
Administrative expenses THRER 15,603 20,043
42,263 97,457

Note:

As at 31 December 2024, no banking facility was secured by the property,
plant and equipment.

As at 31 December 2023, banking facilities of approximately
HK$23,860,000 were secured by buildings with a net book amount
of HK$2,580,000 and a right-of-use asset with net carrying value of
HK$2,582,000 (Note 15(a)).

Wiz :

RIZBZEE+ZA=+—H  TERITRMEUDE K
B R R o

RIZZ=F+ZA=+—0 RITREEAY23,860,0007
T BRE$1E2,580,00078 7T 2 #EF K EREFE2,582,000
BT EREEEERR (FF150)

BRI (FE) BRAS —z-mEsg 173
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wro W55 R B aE
15 LEASES 15 A8

@ NEEEERRRESNEHE

(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance

sheet

The consolidated balance sheet shows the following
amounts relating to leases in respect of office premises and
factory:

REEBEERRRBTUTERAEYER
TRIEEAMIEE

As at 31 December

®W+—-—B=+—H
2024 2023
—E-mE —EB=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Right-of-use assets FREEE
— Office premises —WREYE 55,986 61,701
— Factory —I& = 7,859
55,986 69,560
Lease liabilities HEaE
— Non-current —JERE 14,982 21,545
— Current — & 20,888 21,939
35,870 43,484

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the year
ended 31 December 2024 were HK$28,789,000 (2023:
HK$46,512,000).

As at 31 December 2024, no banking facility was secured
by right-of-use asset.

Same as disclosed in Note 14, as at 31 December 2023,
banking facilities of approximately HK$23,860,000
were secured by buildings with a net book amount of
HK$2,580,000 and a right-of-use asset with net carrying
value of HK$2,582,000 (Note 14).

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024

REE_Z_NE+_RA=+—HLEE
RIEREE ERE %428,789,000/8 7T (&
T =14 : 46,512,00057T) ©

RZZB-ME+"A=+—Q1> LERT
BB E R

PREEE14FTIREEEIN R - =F+ =
B=+—8>R{TRE%923,860,00078 7T A
AR {E2,580,000/8 T Z I8 F K AREFE
2,582,000/8 T2 F R EEEIRTF (s
14) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

15 LEASES (Continued)

(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated income

(c)

statement

The consolidated income statement shows the following
amounts relating to leases in respect of office premises and
factory:

Depreciation of right-of-use assets
(Note 7)

Interest expense (included in
finance costs) (Note 9)

Expenses relating to leases of
short-term leases (Note 7)

(%13£9)

(Htst7)

ERREENE (Wiz7)

BRI Gt AREME)

a0 A 5w R BT

15 HHE @

(b) REREWRmREDNEE

frEWaE KRBT TRBRAEY ER T K
HEARTE

For the year ended
31 December

BE+_A=+—HLFE

BIERRTEE 2 HE BRI

2024 2023
—E-mE B E
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
29,374 28,908
1,716 1,871
13,890 10,448

Depreciation expense included in cost of sales,
administrative expenses and selling expenses are analysed
as follows:

STASHE A T E AR &R
EBROMIT

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=t+—HiEE

2024 2023

—EME e S

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHETT

Cost of sales THE AL AS 5,309 6,195
Administrative expenses THER 20,450 18,527
Selling expenses HER 3,615 4,186
29,374 28,908

The total cash outflow for leases in the year ended
31 December 2024 is HK$50,100,000 (2023:
HK$42,356,000).

The Group’s leasing activities

The Group leases various office premises. Rental contracts
are typically made for 1 to 8 years (2023: same). The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants.

REBEE_Z_NE+_B=+—HLEE
WAE Z IR &M HARZE450,100,0008 7T
(ZEZ=4 : 42,356,0005&7T) °

(0 TEEMAEEH
AEFMHELEPRAEYE -THESLNE
HATIFSE (CE-=4F : AR S
BNk EE S

BERE chE) BRAT B MEER
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for 0 S 5 W R BT

16 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

6 B EE

Patents and

capitalised
Customer software
listand ~ development ~ Computer
Goodwill  Brand name contracts costs software Total
2R
ERLER BEREFZ
BHE  REeE B BARERE  BEHRH At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TET TERT
At 1 January 2023 RZZ2Z=£—-F-AH
Cost EEZ'S 116,228 4511 12,273 30,594 30,980 194,586
Accumulated amortisation By - (4,511) (5,911) (24,035) (30,980) (65,437)
Accumulated impairment loss RetESE (103,412) - - - - (103,412)
Net book amount REFE 12,816 - 6,362 6,559 - 25,737
Year ended 31 December 2023 HE-Z-=FE+ZA=1+-H
LLEE
Opening net book amount FRERE 12,816 - 6,362 6,559 = 25,737
Amortisation jid - - (739) (745) - (1,484)
Impairment (Note) AE (3 (12,536) - (5,483) 2,818) - (20,837)
Exchange realignment EREE (280) - (140) (162) = (582)
Closing net book amount FREEFE - - - 2,834 - 2,834
At 31 December 2023 RZBZ=%+"A=+-H
Cost A 112,539 4,383 11,922 29,722 30,975 189,541
Accumulated amortisation Rt - (4,383) (6,476) (24,090) (30,975) (65,924)
Accumulated impairment loss RitAESE (112,539) - (5,446) (2,798) - (120,783)
Net book amount REFE - - - 2,834 - 2,834
Year ended 31 December 2024 HE_E-_ME+-A=1+-AH
ILFE
Opening net book amount EMREFE = = = 2,834 = 2,834
Addition RE - - - 8,553 - 8,553
Amortisation i - - - (352) = (352)
Disposals of subsidiaries (Note 32) Hj‘ﬂﬁ% al (fs#32) - - - (2,531) = (2,531)
Exchange realignment REE - - - (200) - (200)
Closing net book amount EXREFE = = = 8,304 = 8,304
At 31 December 2024 —E_mE+"RA=1+-H
Cost 13,572 - 7,301 12,136 30,969 63,978
Accumulated amortisation = = (2,028) (1,122) (30,969) (34,119)
Accumulated impairment loss (13,572) - (5,273) (2,710 - (21,555)
Net book amount REFE = = = 8,304 = 8,304
Note: Bzt
Due to the change in market condition and operating environment, goodwill HECZT=F+"A=1+—HILEE ANTRREE

and customer list and contacts amounted to HK$16,371,000 arising from

the acquisition of Good Chain (Chongging) Technology Co., Ltd. under the

fintech services business segment and goodwill and patents amounted to

HK$4,466,000 arising from the acquisition of Beijing Xuanjia Technology Co.
Ltd under the payment and digital services segment were considered to be

fully impaired by management during the year ended 31 December 2023.

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

IR SRS IRBER D BUIETE EB) RS
RABIFTEENEmERERBEKRERN16,371,00077T
UEEZ N RBFIERB D BUEILRZRREERAR
FTEE R A K EF)4,466,000/8 70 MW EEERAEE
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16 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 16 BMILEE @
Amortisation expense included in cost of sales and STABER AR THERNEEE BN T

administrative expenses are analysed as follow:

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=t+—RiLEE

2024 2023

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET TET

Cost of sales SHE R A 9 23
Administrative expenses TIHER 343 1,461
352 1,484

17 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 17 AT EHABSZESREE
PROFIT OR LOSS

As of 31 December
BE+=-A=+—H

2024 2023
—EME —E=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THT
Non-current asset IEREBEE
Unlisted investment fund outside BEARIINZIFFLTRERS
Hong Kong (Note (a)) (Hyz2(a)) 68,537 82,321
Current assets MBEE
Listed equity securities in Hong Kong REBN EHRAES
(Note (b)) (Hraz)) 878 834
Investments at FVPL outside Hong Kong ~ &BEIMZATEF AETmZ
(Note (c)) K& (et () - 226,051
69,415 309,206
Notes: Mzt :
(@) Unlisted investment fund outside Hong Kong (@ BBRIZIELHREES
The carrying amount of the unlisted investment fund is denominated in FEHREESZIREEDUARBHE
RMB.
(b) Listed equity securities in Hong Kong (b) REBHLHRAES
The fair value of the listed equity securities is based on their current bid EHRAESNATHEREEIERT B ZIRT
prices in an active market and their carrying amount is denominated in BABHE EEREENETIIE.
HKS$.
(©) Investments at FVPL outside Hong Kong (0 BERIMEATEAEBEZIEE
The carrying amount of the investments at FVPL is denominated in BRATES ABm 2 REZREEUARKEE-
RMB.
Changes in fair value of financial assets at FVPL are recorded in WAL EFABESHEED AT EEE]
“other losses, net” in the consolidated income statement. Ao Al 26 2 5 TEL BT 3855248 | TR 51 B o
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18 LOAN RECEIVABLES

18

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

Material accounting policy

Loan receivables are recognised initially at fair value. The fair
value of a financial asset at initial recognition is normally the
transaction price.

The Group classifies loan receivables as subsequently measured
at amortised cost because both of the following conditions are
met:

e the loan receivable is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms of the loan receivables give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

When a loan receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against
“credit impairment loss” in the consolidated income statement.

Loan receivables are amounts due from customers in the
ordinary course of the fintech services business and primarily
denominated in RMB.

(a) Aging analysis of loan receivables
The aging analysis of loan receivables based on the
payment due date is as follows:

BEREFHER
W ERN T B AT EEST - =REBER B
BENAFEEERZZERK-

ARG U TmEES > ZEEREWERD
SBAITEHR ET BT E

o BWERNRUFATREEMNEIREH
REREHERVEBRATHA, &

s BUWERZENFERNIEERREEZR
EREBEAINEERKREELEZR
/%\O

ERWERE ARG B UERTR R RS
Hifi 84 - H 2 URBIRY ST AT HEH SRR ET AR S IR
mROMEEREBRIET-

BWERSNEMBRRBEBNAEESB
BPERERIRER BEEREBEIZUARKE
H(E -

@ BWERZEIREDHR
RBEEI R B 2 FEIRETRARES DTN T

As at 31 December

R+ZB=+—H
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Current BHEA 1,780,001 1,498,174
1 to 3 months past due BMHA—E =14 - 72,032
Over 3 months past due BmHA=EA M L 152,868 112,255
Loan receivables, gross FEW & R 4B 2B 1,932,869 1,682,461
Less: provision for impairment of B RN ERURE R
loan receivables (147,731) (145,827)
1,785,138 1,536,634

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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18 LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued) 18 FEWERR (@
(@) Aging analysis of loan receivables (Continued) (@ FBWRERZIREDR (&)
The analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount AR S AR AREE R AER R EFURL
and the corresponding provision for impairment of loan BEREEEZDRIT

receivables in relation to loan receivables are as follows:

As at 31 December 2024
R-ZE_MFE+_A=+—H
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
B FIREER F=MEE a5t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FHET

Loan receivables = EN 1,780,001 - 152,868 1,932,869
Less: Provision for impairment of & | FEWERURE R E

loan receivables (8,247) - (139,484) (147,731)
Loan receivables, net FEWE R F 5 1,771,754 = 13,384 1,785,138

As at 31 December 2023
N2 _F+ZHA=+—H

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BB FIMRE B=MEER Amst

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
THRAT TART TAERT  TER

Loan receivables ERER 1,498,174 72,032 112,255 1,682,461
Less: Provision for impairment of & | FEWERURE R E

loan receivables (11,751) (30,754) (103,322) (145,827)
Loan receivables, net W EZFEE 1,486,423 41,278 8,933 1,536,634

BB (hE) BRAR —=-mEgE®R 179
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18 LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued) 18 FEERR (@
(a) Aging analysis of loan receivables (Continued) (@ FBWERZIREDH (&)
Movements for gross carrying amount of loan receivables: FEWERRERMEARERE NI T ¢
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

F—ME SR F=REER st
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TExT FAxT FERT TFTER

As at 1 January 2023 NZE-_=F—H—H 2,637,486 26,579 143,806 2,807,871
Addition RE 2,519,635 - - 2,519,635
Net transfer EEOEER (345,175) 260,715 84,460 =
Repayment B (3,245,912) (213,631)  (49,727) (3,509,270)
Written off b/ 6= - - (67,588)  (67,588)
Recovery of loan receivables s [o] 5% A 4 55 B9

previously written off W E R = (119 4,390 4,271
Exchange realignment PE SR oA EE (67,860) (1,512) (3,086)  (72,458)
As at 31 December 2023 N_E_=F+_H

=+—H 1,498,174 72,032 112,255 1,682,461

As at 1 January 2024 RIZEZWE—F—H 1,498,174 72,032 112,255 1,682,461
Addition NE 3,471,177 = - 3,471,177
Net transfer EEOEER (22,787)  (70,024) 92,811 =
Repayment BN (3,112,306) (1,189) (7,605) (3,121,100
Written off WisH - - (47,452)  (47,452)
Recovery of loan receivables Y [B] S BT 38 B9

previously written off EWERR = = 7,332 7,332
Exchange realignment bE SR SR EE (54,257) (819) (4,473)  (59,549)
As at 31 December 2024 N2 ZWHE+"A

=+—H 1,780,001 - 152,868 1,932,869

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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18 LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued) 18 FEWRERR (@

(@) Aging analysis of loan receivables (Continued) @ RWERZEIREEDH (&)
Movements for provision for impairment of loan FEWETR EREEZBNT
receivables are as follows:

(b)

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
—PEER ZPEEE E=PEER st
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET
As at 1 January 2023 A B =F—F—H 21,985 20,005 118,256 160,246
Addition/(reduction), net RE/ (BL) FEE 2,914 (9,764) 61,549 54,699
Net transfer HEEOREE (12,588) 21,491 (8,903) -
Written off b6 = = (67,588)  (67,588)
Recovery of loan receivables W [B1 S A EE B9
previously written off FEUE = - - 4,661 4,661
Exchange realignment PE 2 A (560) (978) (4,653) (6,191)
As at 31 December 2023 A B _=F+_H
=+—H 11,751 30,754 103,322 145,827
As at 1 January 2024 RIE_m&E—H—H 11,751 30,754 103,322 145,827
(Reduction)/addition, net ORL) /B PEE (2,555) (1,016) 50,342 46,771
Net transfer BEREORER (643)  (29,388) 30,031 =
Written off b G| - - (47,452) (47,452)
Recovery of loan receivables & [B] 5 BT 36 B9
previously written off WG - - 7,332 7,332
Exchange realignment B R sREE (306) (350) (4,091) (4,747)
As at 31 December 2024 N _E_NFE+_H
=+—H 8,247 - 139,484 147,731

Effective interest rates on loan receivables
As at 31 December 2024, the total number of borrowers

(b) BRERZERFER

A TETME+"A=+—H 2R

of the fintech services business was 20,830 (2023:
69,818). The effective interest rates on the loan receivables
are normally 4% to 24% per annum (2023: same).
As at 31 December 2024, the gross amount of loan
receivables was approximately HK$1,932,869,000 (2023:
HK$1,682,461,000), comprising gross loan receivables of
approximately HK$52,458,000 (2023: HK$302,372,000)
and HK$1,880,411,000 (2023: HK$1,380,089,000)
under the micro-lending business and the supply-chain
financing business respectively. Among the gross amount
of loan receivables, approximately HK$88,973,000 (2023:
HK$136,400,000) was guaranteed. The gross amount
of the loan receivables from the five largest borrowers,
which were all from supply chain financing business, was
approximately HK$310,236,000 (2023: HK$210,200,000),
representing approximately 16.1% (2023: 12.5%) of the
gross loan receivables and approximately 2.6% (2023:
1.6%) of the total assets of the Group as at 31 December
2024.

BEEH (RE) BRAR

RRBEBNETALEHA20,830A (=
T =4 169,818N) -EWRETRNER
ENRBEB4%E24% (T _=4F 1 1/
@) G:%E_EfﬁJr_)%,wL H> &
W E R 4EEE421,932,869,00058 T (&
— =% :1,682,461,000% 1) ’@}E.‘/J\%Eié
MEBMEEERE BN R ERE
FE BI#52,458,0008 T (ZE =4 :
302,372,00077T) K21,880,411,00078 7T (Z
T — =4 1,380,089,000587T) o EFEWRE
FHEZEN > £4988,973,000/870 (CE =4 :
136,400,000787T) AHEEFR KB R AE
TMANERERAEEE 9k B HEERE
#55) 4973310,236,000 5 (B ==
210,200,000 75) > hAERER ZZT =Y
F£+= ﬁ +—HEWERAEEE4916.1%
(CBZ=1F:12.5%) REEREL2.6%
(:g__i 1.6%) °

—TFEFR
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HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

GLAE RiEd (TS

SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 31

December 2023 and 2024:

Name type of legal entity place of operation
AL R R
g2t EERREER TEERRERME
BJ ABS The PRC, limited liability  Provision of financial solutions, services and
company* related products in the PRC
IrEkEE & BRAT EHERMEERBARR RERERER

Hunan Hisun Mobile Pay IT Limited*

HHeREREERMBRAR:

Place of incorporation/
establishment and

The PRC, limited liability
company

8 ERAF

Principal activities and

Provision of platform operation solutions
in the PRC
TPERETREERARE

VBill OPCO* The PRC, limited liability ~ Provision of payment and digital services
company and fintech services in the PRC
BT e BRAE) ERERHS I RAFEREUR

SRNERE

A — i — —

19 MIBAT

R—=—

ER-E-ME+-A=+—0>
TEMBATZLENT

Registered as wholly foreign owned enterprises.

Hunan Hisun Mobile Pay IT Limited is the subsidiary of J#iF8 Z 745
ERMAMRAT (“Hunan Yunrong”). The Company does not have
legal ownership in equity of Hunan Yunrong. Nevertheless, under
certain contractual agreements enacted among the registered owners
of Hunan Yunrong, the Company and a subsidiary of the Company, the
Company controls Hunan Yunrong by way of controlling more than
one half of the voting rights of it, governing its financial and operating
policies and appointing or removing the majority of the members of its
controlling authorities, and casting the majority of votes at meetings of
such authorities. In addition, such contractual agreements also transfer
the risks and rewards of Hunan Yunrong to the Company. As a result, it
is regarded as the subsidiary of the Company.

VBill OPCO is the subsidiary of EEMEITRHZARAF (formerly
known as EEETREEHBARAE) (“Chongqing JIM"). The
Company does not have legal ownership in equity of Chongging JIM.
Nevertheless, under certain contractual agreements enacted among the
registered owners of Chongging JIM, the Company and a subsidiary
of the Company, the Company controls Chongging JIM by way of
controlling more than one half of the voting rights of it, governing
its financial and operating policies and appointing or removing the
majority of the members of its controlling authorities, and casting
the majority of votes at meetings of such authorities. In addition,
such contractual agreements also transfer the risks and rewards of
Chongging JIM to the Company. As a result, it is regarded as the
subsidiary of the Company.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

Proportion
Particulars of ordinary
of issued Proportion shares held
share capital/ of ordinary by non-
registered shares held by controlling
capital the Group interests
(%) (%)
BT/ FEARRZ FREREHEREZ
HMEAEE EERLA EZERLL)
(%) (%)
HK$100,000,000 100% S
(2023: same) (2023: same)
100,000,003 7% 100% =
CEZ=%:R)  CEZ=%.6R)
RMB100,000,000 100% -
(2023: same) (2023: same)
E100,000,0007C 100% -
(CBZZF8F) (CBZZF 18R
RMB199,900,000 80.04% 19.96%
(2023: 80.04%) (2023: 19.96%)
E#199,900,0007 80.04% 19.96%
(CEZ=F:8004%) (CEZZF11996%)

BRI EEERE-

MBS SRITARAT A NEERE SR
HATRAR) (WRER) 2 WEAR  AASLERE
MRS AR AT IR B
HEMEE A AADREAD—BHEATRT L
TETANGS A ATEBEHNEERE LS
i RHERBREERE EREEAERY X
BAME URREEAEHEE LB ASUE 4
TSR - 15N RIS B R
2 ABRREREBF AL REMEAEARS
HBAT

BITNRERGETRRARAR GIBEERGTES
BHEARAT) (BEEET) ZWBAT - AARIL
iﬂt%ﬁﬁ%%“ TREmZAERER AT RIFEE

BETEMBERE A ERBRERE B RBFT
J_/_Z%:FAﬁ’Jij P RAR)BBEHEEETE
FRER EREMBEREERR TREERER
ZREDME > URNZEREREE LRAEH
R REMEFRIEEGT LI BRESNHRTRE
BET2 AR KR EREE T AT  EIt - BR5IE
KRBIZEEHB AR
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19 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 19 MBAE (@

(a) Material non-controlling interest @ EAIFZRERE
The total non-controlling interest as at 31 December 2024 AT TME+ B =+—BHZIFERE
is HK$591,685,000 (2023: HK$587,083,000), of which

HABRE/A591,685,00008 7 (CE =4 :

HK$432,806,000 (2023: HK$600,940,000) is attributed
to VBIll (Cayman) (an intermediate holding company of
VBill OPCO) and its subsidiaries (“VBill Group”), which is
considered to be material to the Group.

Significant restrictions of subsidiaries with material non-
controlling interests

Cash and cash equivalents of HK$956,351,000 (2023:
HK$1,915,461,000) of VBill Group are held in the PRC
and are subject to local exchange control regulations.
These local exchange control regulations provide for
restrictions on exporting capital from the country, other
than through normal dividends.

Set out below are the summarised financial information for
the VBill Group.

Summarised balance sheet:

587,083,000787T) » EH432,806,00078 7T

(ZZT =4 : 600,940,00078 7T) EAVBIll
(Cayman) (BB1T(IBIRREIERR AR B EHKY
BT (THEITIER) AR HRAEREE
EEBEK

HEBBA IR Em Z /B L5 2R

ER#
BONEBR2RERESEEBY
956,351,0008 7 (Z & - =& :

1,915,461,000/ 70) JHEFEIFE L Z R
EHINEEHEIR o IEE ZEHINEBEHIE
HRERZERHER (LIFEBEER
B) Z Rl

MFEHIBEIT TRz M AR E

EEARRME:

As at 31 December

w+=ZBA=+—H

2024 2023

—E-mE S -=f

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Non-current assets ERMEEE 585,393 112,263
Non-current liabilities JEmEaE (5,640) (9,378)
Non-current net assets ERBEERLE 579,753 102,885
Current assets TMENE E 5,518,856 7,881,867
Current liabilities mENaE (3,859,290) (5,003,046)
Current net assets MENEERE 1,659,566 2,878,821
Net assets BEFE 2,239,319 2,981,706
Accumulated non-controlling interests R sHIEIZRE 432,806 600,940

BEEH (RE) BRAR
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19 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 19 MIEAT @

@ EXRIFEZRRED (&)
W R

(a) Material non-controlling interest (Continued)
Summarised income statement:

For the year ended
31 December

BE+_A=+—HLFE

2024 2023
ZEZWE =5
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHETT
Revenue WA 1,800,130 2,202,474
Profit before income tax FRETSMR AT EF 101,302 233,592
Profit for the year FNiaF 104,744 268,981
Other comprehensive income/(loss), Hittzma (B8
net of tax Sl (84,652) (85,115)
Total comprehensive income for the year, FAZEUN 488 FNPRTRIE)
net of tax 20,092 183,866
Total comprehensive (loss)income for  FEFERREmEEFAREZE
the year attributable to non-controlling  (§538) W zi48%8
interests 9,141) 9,778

Summarised cash flows:

RENEME

For the year ended
31 December

#E+_"_A=+—HLEFE

2024 2023
—E-NE B =5F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TFHET
Cash (used in)/generated from wsEE) (FrA) P

operating activities Be (279,900) 1,318,625
Cash used in investing activities BRI FTAIRE (574,490) (15,085)
Cash used in financing activities MEEEFTARE (11,102) (978,903)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and HERRESHEY RL)
cash equivalents YN EE (865,492) 324,637

The information above is before inter-company

eliminations.

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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20 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES 20 REVEARIZIRE

EXREHEER

(a) BELNA

Material accounting policy
(a) Associated companies

Associated companies are all entities over which the
Group has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the Group holds
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in
associated companies are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting (see (b) below), after initially being
recognised at cost.

(b) Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments
are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
profits or losses of the investee in the consolidated
income statement, and the Group’s share of movements
in other comprehensive income of the investee in other
comprehensive income. Dividends received or receivable
from associated companies are recognised as a reduction
in the carrying amount of the investment.

Where the Group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted
investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity,
including any other unsecured long-term receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and
its associated companies are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of equity accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments
is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in Note 38.8.

BEEH (RE) BRAR

BEARIEAERNEAEEARENME
ERENHRIEREZ A ER - AEE
BERB20%E50%Z TR IR AT
KRB RMERR ZRELREDS
SHEARR (RTXD)) ©

(b) #m%

RIEEEE L REV T RAERER B
BETREUN GRS WS RN ER
DEEHREH RO G SR MU
RREMEEEEREDAERDGRES
SEMEEWEAEE - B UEIE IS
NENRBED A EREENR

EREEDEREEESHAARNRERS
BERHBBAGZER B (BEER
HithE g RIAEWGTRIR) K> AEETH
E—IHEER RIEAERAEMERE
EEE AR

FAEREHBENRETIZHNREHFNR
mF LIRS UAERN RS ERNER
IR REIFEFIEI G TLURE > FRIFARE
R BRI FERE ERRERE D
FEEARNKRENREFAHRER L E
P AETT T » DURE (R B2 7 &2 [ P £ 2 I

=

REH—-

m g shA AR REREERRM
38. 8P BURETTRE R

—TFEFR
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20 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES 20 PEAEATZIRE @
(Continued)

The balance recognised in the consolidated balance sheet is as RiReEEGBERER ZEHIT
follows:

As at 31 December

R+ZB=+—H
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Associated companies: /NI
— PAX Global (Note (a)) —BEIRX #ata) 3,090,237 3,046,010
— Megahunt Technologies Inc —IKRBER L RH B IRAE
(“Megahunt”) (Note (b)) (TIKERIBE) (Ham)) 322,878 529,835
— Beijing Fangyun Technology Co., Ltd —IERBERARAF
(“Beijing Fangyun”) (Note (c)) (MERAEN W) - -
— Beijing Zhongjin Yunchuang Software.,, ~—3ERHPEERIEHFHRAE
Ltd (“Beijing Zhongjin”) (Note (d)) (b)) (#ratd) 23,746 24,489
— Beijing Suiyun Technology Co., Ltd —IRBEERRBRAE
(“Beijing Suiyun”) (MERBEED) 2,549 2,644
— Shenzhen Guofu Yunlian Technology — R EE R ARAE
Co., Ltd (“Shenzhen Guofu”) (MERYIEE]) 3,152 3,272
— Cloopen (Note (e)) —Cloopen (ftz#(e)) = =
— Changsha Jiehang Diansansan Shuzi —RVEITH==FRE
Technology Limited (“Diansansan”) BR2RA (#==)
(Note (f)) (Htztm) - -
3,442,562 3,606,250
The amount of share of results recognised in the consolidated R e U R EESD 2 PSRBT R T ¢

income statement is as follows:

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=t+—RAi&EE

2024 2023

—EME BT

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHETT

Associated companies: BERE :

— PAX Global (Note (a)) —B BRI (Wita) 242,855 390,321
— Megahunt (Note (b)) —JKERIBE (H7aEb) (29,698) 15,971
- Beijing Zhongjin (Note (d) —IERPE #52d) 31 (3,284)
— Beijing Suiyun —IREE n (58)
— Shenzhen Guofu —#x=YIEE (17) (1)
213,160 402,949

186 Hi SUNTECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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20 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES 20 FEAEATIZIRE @
(Continued)

The amount of gain on deemed acquisition and dilution of PR e W RATESS Z RIS S s 2
interest recognised in the consolidated income statement is as e PRBUD T -
follows:

For the year ended
31 December

BE+_HA=+—HLFE

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THT
Associated company: BEATE
— PAX Global (Note (a)) —EBETIBIK (B3a) 4,906 1,973
(a) Investment in PAX Global (@ MREERKZEE
Set out below is an associated company of the Group as TN B _=FR_T_ME+_
at 31 December 2023 and 2024, which, in the opinion B=1+—HEE=RAHEAEEMSBEKX
of the directors, is material to the Group — PAX Global. ZAEEBMEANR -BERK - ABIRK
PAX Global has share capital consisting solely of ordinary BERAEEERFAEEUAEBERBENZ
shares, which are held directly by the Group; its principal fe7 > HX EE MR hE - &8 EF)
places of business are in the PRC, Hong Kong, the United BERE R EARF]
States of America and ltaly.
Place of incorporation Nature of Effective Measurement
Name and kind of legal entity ~Particular of issued share capital relationship interest held method
SRR IE K FifEZ
&8 EEERER BETRAHE MRMEE EREE SERE
PAX Global (Note /) Bermuda, limited 1,061,704,000 (2023: 1,070,214,000) ordinary Associated  34.29% (2023: Equity
liability company shares of HK$0.1 each company 34.01%) method
BRI (32) BRE BRAF 1,061,704,0008% (ZZ = =4 : 1,070,214,000 VNS 34.29% 1k
R sREEIETZEER CE=%:
34.01%)

Bl (F) ARAT —s-mesg 187
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20 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
(Continued)

(a) Investment in PAX Global (Continued)

On 20 December 2010, as a result of the Group’s spinoff
of PAX Global to be separately listed on the Stock
Exchange, PAX Global became an associated company
of the Group. On the date when control ceased, the
Group's retained interest in PAX Global was fair valued,
and this give rise to the recognition of goodwill being the
difference between the fair value of the investment in PAX
Global and its share of net identifiable assets value of PAX
Global. As at 31 December 2024, difference between the
carrying value of the investment in PAX Global and its
share of net assets value of PAX Global mainly included
goodwill of HK$530,420,000 (2023: HK$530,420,000)
and adjustments to eliminate unrealised profits and losses
on transactions between the Group and PAX Global.

The movement on interest in PAX Global is as follows:

20 MEATZIRE (&

@ MREERKZKE (@

RIZ—ZF+-AZ+H BAREER
DRI L2 BERK B
ERIAAFEBZBEQT B LLE
FIEE R FEEREERRFRE 2B
MrFEstE BRESmE BINEeE
BRRKREZATEREBGEEERKEE
FEZER R _EMFE+_"_BA=+—
B REERKZRERAELZHEG
BERNEEFEZEZRTIZOERE
530,420,000/ 7T (ZZ Z=4F : 530,420,000
BT WETREMUIRHEAEERFEIR
KR 5 PR E IR K 58

RESRMEE 2 EFIT !

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=t+—RAILEE

2024 2023
ZETME TET=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
At 1 January nw—AB—H 3,046,010 2,846,550
Share of profit P4k & ) 242,855 390,321
Share of other comprehensive loss EhEME IR (41,587) (44,180)
Share of other reserves e B At 10,559 73)
Gain/(loss) on deemed acquisition RIEWEE R ERE R 2 W E,
and dilution of interest, (B548) 338 (W atii)
net (Note ii) 3,480 (1,008)
Dividend received B R (171,080) (145,600)
At 31 December B+ZHA=+—H 3,090,237 3,046,010

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

(a) Investment in PAX Global (Continued)

Impairment test for interest in PAX Global

As at 31 December 2024, the fair value of the investment
calculated based on the current bid price of PAX Global
at the balance sheet date is less than its carrying value. An
impairment test is performed to determine the recoverable
amount of the investment. The recoverable amount, which
was assessed by an independent valuer on a value-in-use
basis calculated by a discounted cash flow model, exceeds
the carrying value as at 31 December 2024.

There are no contingent liabilities and commitments to
provide funding relating to the Group’s interest in PAX
Global (2023: same).

Note i: PAX Global is principally engaged in the development and
sales of electronic funds transfer point-of-sales (“E-payment
Terminals”) products, provision of maintenance and
installation services (collectively, the “E-payment Terminals
solution business”).

Note ii: ~ During the year ended 31 December 2024, PAX Global
repurchased a total of 10,388,000 ordinary shares (2023:
13,759,000) on the Stock Exchange, of which 10,388,000
(2023: 13,355,000) ordinary shares were subsequently
cancelled during the year. Certain employees of PAX
Global exercised their share options granted pursuant to
a share option scheme set up on 2 May 2019. A gain on
deemed acquisition and dilution of interest of an associated
company of HK$4,906,000 (2023: HK$1,973,000) (which
includes a release of reserve credited (2023: credited)
to the consolidated income statement of HK$1,426,000
(2023: HK$2,981,000)) were recognised in the consolidated
income statement. The Group's interest in PAX Global
increased from 34.01% to 34.29% accordingly.

a0 A 5w R BT
20 RPEATIZIEE 60

@ REERKZKE (@

B EIRIKZ B 2 A E A

A ZEMEF—_A=t+—H REZA
TEREEHAERRZEAMBE A BT
B ORHEEREE - ETRENSSEETE
BREZWEIEE- N2 _NE+_A
=+—H HBIAEMREEEERE
SHELRARIRIR S RERE A BT 2 I
Ol 2R EARE E

BERAEENESRIK ERRRHES
ZRABEREE CEZ=F 1 8F) -

Mzt EERREBNEMERFEEBTRAH
Erh (METRAHRIR) B URIR A%
T ZEERRTS (W8 B T (T RIRRR S R
E7%) ©

M. REE_SE_NE+-_BA=+—H1%F

B BEIRIKIC I 2 PRl 5 3£10,388,000
B @R (T =4 13,759,0008%) » &
710,388,000 & (ZZ = =4 : 13,355,000
B EERAEBERAFENGZH AR
HETRESERE_-_ZS—HLERRACZ
Btz BB B ER L 2 B 1R
EBE RS —RBE A Em 2 A
4,906,00078 7 (ZZ = =4 : 1,973,000/ 7T)
(HPeERGRaRaRstA (CEZ=
5 A) Z BB BEE,426,0008 7T (T
=14 :2,981,00087T)) RirEREmRA
R AL AEENBERKZ #Em B
34.01%8234.29%©

BEEH (RE) BRAR —EMEFR
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20 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
(Continued)

20 KEHEATZIKE @

(a) Investment in PAX Global (Continued)
Extracted financial information set out below are the

(@ REERKZEE @&
TXFrE B ERIREAS MR A AR
summarised consolidated financial information of PAX ZEBRIGEVHEERBE

Global which is accounted for using the equity method.

As at 31 December

m+=ZHA=+—H
2024 2023
—EomE —EI=E
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#T FHT
Current REn
Cash and cash equivalents BeEMIREEEY 3,083,598 2,863,597
Other current assets HEMREHEE 4,562,521 4,689,624
Total current assets BB EAE 7,646,119 7,553,221
Trade payables FEATBRTR (937,211) (888,621)
Other payables and accruals H At AT 7R IE K FE 517018 (540,768) (563,338)
Other current liabilities Htnsas (37,180) (36,856)
Total current liabilities BB EHEER (1,515,159) (1,488,815)
Non-current JERED
Assets BE 1,523,386 1,522,108
Liabilities a8E& (89,759) (100,340)
Net assets BEEFE 7,564,587 7,486,174

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Investment in PAX Global (Continued)

a0 A 5w R BT

20 MBEAT)ZIRE (@

@ REERKZKE (@

For the year ended
31 December

BE+_A=+—HLFE

2024 2023
—E-mE = =f
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FHET
Revenue A 6,044,878 6,709,324
Profit for the year F R F 720,922 1,165,103
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax ~ E 2 EEIE (G0FRIRIE) (123,556) (128,042)
Total comprehensive income FRLEWmAEEE (OFRIRIE)
for the year, net of tax 597,366 1,037,061
Dividends received from the BWEE B ZRKRE
associated company 171,080 145,600

Investment in Megahunt

The Group accounts for its interests in Megahunt as an
investment in an associated company initially at fair value
and will share the results of Megahunt as an investment in
an associated company using the equity method.

As disclosed in the interim report for the period ended
30 June 2024, the application for listing of Megahunt
on the Science and Technology Innovation Board of the
Shanghai Stock Exchange had been withdrawn in light of
the strategic planning of Megahunt and the recent capital
market environment. In view of this, management prepared
an impairment assessment on the investment in Megahunt
as at 30 June 2024.

(b) HIAEEZRE
AEBGHPIIEZEZ R FRI—RE
BERRZRE  f1F UATEAR KU
REHERN —BEE R ZRENEIKER
IBIEREE-

BUBE—ZT_NFARA=THILEHEZ
FRHRIR S AT IR EE - AR RIEIE 2 BRR R
BIRAAZ BATIHZIRE KA BHIE
JREIBZR LiBEHFXZFARAIR EHRY

s AN I ERER ZZ ZIMEIR
A=+AMIKIKRIEE 2 R EREAET
flo

BEEH (RE) BRAR —E_MEFR
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20 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES 20 PEAEATZIRE @

(Continued)

(b) Investment in Megahunt (Continued) (b) RIKAEEZLRE @B

The recoverable amount of Megahunt had been
determined based on the higher of the fair value less cost
of disposal and value-in-use. The recoverable amount
of Megahunt as at 30 June 2024 was HK$342,597,000
based on the fair value less costs of disposal calculation
determined under a market approach performed by an
independent professional valuer, which is lower than its
carrying amount. The shortfall of HK$141,307,000 was
recognised as impairment of investment in an associated
company in the consolidated income statement for the
period then ended. Management has determined the
enterprise value to sales multiple of 2.56 and the discount
for lack of marketability of 20.5% as at 30 June 2024 to be
the key assumptions.

As at 31 December 2024, an impairment test is performed
to determine the recoverable amount of the investment.
The recoverable amount, which was assessed by an
independent valuer on a value-in-use basis calculated by a
discounted cash flow model, exceeds the carrying value as
at 31 December 2024.

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024

KB T Y £ BT IR IR A FE R
HERTAFERAEBEZBSEETE N
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HEMZET S AETHEESHNATEER
HERATMEE  Hri ol BER ER
H{E B EEHIE#RE > 141,307,000%8 7T
HEERGENGERABI AR —BEHE
NENBRERE- EEEBEEEEN_Z
“MmEASB=ZTHNEXEEHERS
A2 56 R Z I RBEENITEES
20.5%AFEREK -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Investment in Beijing Fangyun

As at 31 December 2024, the Group holds 23.1% (2023:
23.1%) equity interest in Beijing Fangyun, which is
principally engaged in the provision of business analysis
services. The interest in Beijing Fangyun was initially
measured at cost. The carrying amount was increased
or decreased to recognise the Group’s share of the profit
or loss and movements in other comprehensive income
or loss of the interest in Beijing Fangyun to the extent
the carrying amount of the interest in Beijing Fangyun
reduced to nil due to losses, after the initial recognition.
As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s share of losses
of Beijing Fangyun exceeded its interest in the ordinary
shares of Beijing Fangyun. As at 31 December 2024,
the unrecognised share of loss of the interests in Beijing
Fangyun is HK$2,947,000 (2023: HK$3,086,000).

Investment in Beijing Zhongjin

As at 31 December 2024, the Group holds 20% (2023:
20%) equity interest in Beijing Zhongjin, which is
principally engaged in the provision of fintech services.
A representative from the Group has been appointed to
serve on the board of directors of Beijing Zhongjin. The
Group accounted for its interest in Beijing Zhongjin as
an investment in an associated company using the equity
method.

20 HEEHE

(o)

(d)

BEEH (RE) BRAR

a0 A 5w R BT

NBEIZIE @

RIERAEZRE

ATETUE+ZA=+—H AEEF
BFXrENERERESNRBHNIERAE
23.1% (CTEZ=F123.1% ) RiE-Ib= A
ENRERP TR E  IGRREEU
HERAEREEIIRAERRNBERE
HEEmWREIEEE) > WwEE T ER
BIEFRAFERDZNEREEREGERAS
RIE_ME+-_B=+—H8 ~EEE
GHIERAENGEEBEERIEIRAFEE
BRNEE R _E_MFE+ B =+—

H KR Eﬁﬂ’éfﬁibaﬁfﬁ% SE51E A
2,947,0005 75 (— =4F ! 3,086,0007
7T) ©

RIEEFREZRE

RIE2E-WFE+ZB=+—8> A£8F
BXrENERESRBERBNIERTE
20% (CZB =4 20%) RRHE - ANEE @AY
—ZREREEZTAILRTENERTZ AN
BoAEEFAEDZBERIIRFEN
BN —EEE AR 2 E AR
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IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

(Continued)

(e) Investment in Cloopen

()

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

As at 31 December 2024, the Group holds 55,677,341
(2023: 55,677,341) Class A ordinary shares of Cloopen,
which is principally engaged in the provision of cloud-
based communications solutions service. During the
year ended 31 December 2023, two of the Group’s
representatives were appointed to serve on the board of
directors of Cloopen. Upon the appointment effective
from 30 November 2023, the Group ceased to recognise
its interest in Cloopen as FVOCI. On the same date,
the Group accounted for its interest in Cloopen as an
investment in an associated company using the equity
method going forward.

Investment in Diansansan

As disclosed in Note 32(b), Diansansan ceased to be a
subsidiary of the Company and was accounted for as
an associated company of the Company. Consequently,
the financial results of Diansansan will no longer be
consolidated into the consolidated financial statements
of the Group and its assets and liabilities will be
deconsolidated from the Group’s consolidated financial
statements. The Group accounts for its interests in
Diansansan as an investment in an associated company
initially at fair value and will share the results of
Diansansan as an investment in an associated company
using the equity method going forward.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

20 FAHEGE

BREIZIRE &

(e) FCloopenZi&&

AT NE+ B +—H AERF
BEXENSREZIRBABRRAL EZRE
#ICloopen#955,677,3418% (_$::
55,677 341 ) AMMEE B - BE S "=
+ZB=+—HILEFE> $$ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%€
EEZERCloopenNEEEM B - ZE1TFH
T =+ —RB=+HEERE K&
EREBRER CloopenfV i R A 12/ AT
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21 INVENTORIES 21 £8
As at 31 December
®W+=ZB=+—H
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Raw materials EM - 8,524
Work in progress TS - 9,030
Finished goods S 872 1,920
872 19,474
The cost of inventories recognised in cost of sales amounted P& A FERR 2 F B A A #75,567,0008 7T
to HK$75,567,000 (2023: HK$57,785,000), which included —E/ T =4 :57,785,000/87T) * BFEFE &
reversal of provision for inventories of HK$686,000 (2023: F#EO686,0008 T (CE_=F | 75 &%E
provision for inventories of HK$1,942,000). 1,942,000787T) ©
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HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

22 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

Material accounting policy

Trade and bills receivables including retention money
receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise
sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business.
If collection of trade and other receivables is expected in one
year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business
if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are recognised
at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables with the
objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less provision for impairment.

When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against
“credit impairment loss” in the consolidated income statement.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for 0 S 5 W R BT

22 FEARTR R PRI R 15

EREHER

FEWERFR EW R (BB WRES) DN H
BEEBEETHEEERARHRBMERS
P 2 7RI o i FE U AR AR R ELth FE W R IR TR 511
E—FHLUN EEXBEBEEBRRAN MR
RERE)) ADERARBEE TR 255
IEREEE-

ERATERDFE EEFRGBRAERYY
HEREWARR (B2 EARRMERDRIRIN - A&
B ARYERT SEREIENRERE ALt
Hig G U BRM R A BN AR ER H

=
==

2 FE YRR ART AT UR OB > 5% s BRAE MR R IR AR B
HERP M - H2 WD R RIS ERAIET A
e WmRPNIEERERER

As at 31 December

®+-A=+—H
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FHET
Trade receivables (Note (a)) FEURBR TR (B75E@) 189,586 187,243
Bills receivables (Note (b)) FEUR SR (BaEb)) = 5,830

Less: provision for impairment of trade B EWEARTUBE R E ()

receivables (Note (c)) (3,864) (16,018)
185,722 177,055

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

a0 A 5w R BT

The carrying amounts approximate their fair values. The
carrying amounts of the trade and bills receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

22 FEWERFR B FEIREE @

SREEEAEATERS - BUCRR KBRS

ZIREEDUTIIERSIE

As at 31 December

nr+-A=+—H
2024 2023
—EEFE TET=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TFHET
HK$ T 30,290 12,880
RMB AR 134,359 139,285
Us$ ETT 13,530 22,946
Macanese pataca (“MOP”) HPTHE (DRFPIE) 7,422 1,920
Singapore dollar (“SGD”) i o (TFrAnTTl) 121 24
185,722 177,055
Notes: bzt
(@) Trade receivables (@ FEUERRR

FEBMBTEZEFAZEEH—KRBOE180EF
%o TRIRET A MIFH Z FEWERFRERE DT ¢

The Group’s credit terms to trade debtors normally range from 0 to 180
days. The ageing analysis of the trade receivables primarily based on
invoice date was as follows:

As at 31 December

®w+=ZB=+—H
2024 2023
T ME T =F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET
Current to 90 days ENEAZE90H 164,853 145,541
91 to 180 days 912180H 16,135 13,989
181 to 365 days 181E365H 2,810 3,463
Over 365 days 365HLL E 5,788 24,250
189,586 187,243

RIBE-_=F+"A=+—01  BWRIRZIEIEEI
RE3,191,0008 7T (ERFETHREEFHERE
KIFIBLI10%E20% > % E7I8 2 RE AR — A —
F-RIE_=ZF+_A=1t—H T ELHZHY
STHEERER 73365 H U 2 FEUWRElE 231,337,000

JG°

As at 31 December 2023, trade receivables included retention money
receivables of HK$3,191,000, which represents approximately 10%
to 20% of the relevant contract sum granted to certain customers in
the PRC that have a retention period of normally one year. As at 31
December 2023, the retention money receivables aged over 365 days
primarily based on invoice date amounted to HK$1,337,000.

RIB-FE+ B =+—HLBEWRRE L

There were no retention money receivables as at 31 December 2024.
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22 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b) Bills receivables

The balance represents bank acceptance notes with maturity dates
within six months. The maturity profile of the bills receivables of the

Group is as follows:

(©

22 FEWERFR B FEIREE @

=)
b FEREE

ZAEFIEEIER AL RSNERZRITERRRIE A&
EERERBEZFEBEROT

As at 31 December

R+-B=+—8H
2024 2023
—ETIME —B=HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Falling within 90 days 908 A - 588
Falling within 91 to 180 days 91E180H - 5,242
- 5,830

Impairment and risk exposure

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring ECL
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade receivables.
The Group measures the ECL at a combination of both individual and
collective basis.

Movement on the provision for impairment of trade receivables are as
follows:

© RERER
FEREAEBYHREERIBERMES A ER
HE SRR pLPT A FEURBR R A 2 B TR EAAS 1R 1
o AEELUER R BEEEGETAIMEEER

FEUERFURERREFIT :

For the year ended
31 December

HE+-A=+—HLEE

2024 2023

ZEIME B =HF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FAET FET

At 1 January w—A—H 16,018 16,497
Credit impairment loss EERERE 2,867 1,806
Written off i gH (5,379) (2,106)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMRBAR 9,599) =
Exchange realignment PERHEE 43) (179)
At 31 December R+=ZB=+—H 3,864 16,018

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
carrying value of each class of receivable mentioned above. The Group
does not hold any collateral as security.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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23 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED 23 ¥#tHiAstE2zHithSmEE
COST
As at 31 December
®W+=ZBA=+—H
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FHET
Current portion ik kb
Deposits and other receivables ¥ <o Ko Efh FE U Fh I8 159,738 170,845
Non-current portion FERBNER S
Deposits and other receivables ¥ <o Ko ELfh FE U R I8 8,050 2,070
167,788 172,915

The carrying amounts approximate their fair values. The

discounting impact of non-current portion is insignificant. The

carrying amounts of other financial assets at amortised cost are

denominated in following currencies:

REEREAFERE R ORSY
BUAERN-ZHERASHBEZEMEMEE

ZIREESDUTIIERSIE

As at 31 December

m+ZR=+—H
2024 2023
—EME —E=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
HK$ BT 3,171 2,328
RMB AR 127,248 133,168
uUs$ =T 5,070 32,107
EUR BT 2,964 -
Japanese Yen (“JPY”) BHE (THEL) 13,341 3,803
GBP HEE 9,574 =
Brazilian Real (“BRL") EAERH (EAEEE) 4,690 =
Others Hith 1,730 1,509
167,788 172,915

As at 31 December 2024, the impact of ECL is immaterial to

the Group (2023: same).

R TE_NFE+_B=+—H  EREEEE
N EHAERTRER (CEZ=F (HF) °

BEEH (RE) BRAR

ZEZEFR

|
I
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for 0 S 5 W R BT

24 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

24 HiURHHEE

As at 31 December

m+=ZHA=+—H
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$/OOO
FHET FHET
Prepayments FAftRIA 27,278 24,347
Value added tax receivables JE YU {E 7R 8,969 2,898
36,247 27,245

25 BANK DEPOSITS, RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES 25 $R{T
AND CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Material accounting policy

In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with
banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less.

Long-term bank deposits
Short-term bank deposits
Restricted bank balances
(Note (i), (Note (ii)
Cash and cash equivalents (Note (iii))

FHZIRFIRITERUARIRE

RREEEY

EARHIKE

REAIRITER
FHRIR1TIERR
ZIREERITASBR
(H1a£a)) ~ (Hta2ai))
B RIREFEBY B a#ii)

,\fmiﬁﬁﬁii‘%qﬂﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁfﬁw BIEFE
REIRITERER EFHEA=ERE
LX_FZE{‘W}_\L/H\H[EE/)IL &:§°

As at 31 December

®W+-—B=+—H
2024 2023
—EME B
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
265,280 -
177,207 -
2,593,913 3,542,318
3,011,282 3,482,016

Notes:

sz -

() In accordance with the notice issued by the Payment and Settlement U
Department of the People’s Bank of China (“PBOC"), effective from 14
January 2019, all customer reserve accounts held by the third-party

payment institutions were to be cancelled and the customer reserves
were to be deposited in a dedicated deposit account maintained
centrally by a designated agency. Transfers of funds under this bank
account are governed under certain measures implemented by the
PBOC and hence these customer reserves are restricted in nature. As

at 31 December 2024, the relevant amount under the restricted bank
balances was HK$2,183,542,000 (2023: HK$3,332,241,000) and are

denominated in RMB.

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

RIBFPEARET (PEARRT) ZGEEFE
HHEN B NE—A+mER F=AH%
B AENAR P RESRA WA BR
Pt AERERRIEERENERERRA
o ZIRTTIRP PN ESERES T EARIRITER
NETHEBES AIEREREHESLE LFR
HleRZB_WE+—_B=+—H ZRHIRTL
BRAVAEREEEE2,183,542,00087T (CE =4 :
3,332,241,000787T) » WA AR HEF|(E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

25 BANK DEPOSITS, RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES
AND CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

Material accounting policy (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(i) The remaining amount under the restricted bank balances as at
31 December 2024 of HK$410,371,000 (2023: HK$210,077,000)
represents funds deposited in bank accounts designated for operating
the Group’s cross-border payment business.

Restricted bank balances are denominated in the following currencies:

a0 A 5w R BT

25 $R1T7ER - RIRBIIRITEFUKRRE
RREFEY @

EXEHHER (8
Kyt - (@)

iy RITB_WE+—B=+—H0  ZREIIRITERN
BR T2%8410,371,000787T (ZZ =4 : 210,077,000
B EFIEERTIRA T ARNCEREEER
TEBNE R
ZIRGIIRITARIEIU T EIESIME !

As at 31 December

®w+=ZB=+—H
2024 2023
o 111 23 TEI=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHExT
HK$ BT 18,337 3,727
RMB AR 2,183,542 3,340,911
us$ E7T 347,725 101,534
EUR BT 34,003 54,195
GBP HEE 3,991 32,394
JPY H 5,204 6,534
Czech Koruny (“CZK”) R (TREmsEhAl) 288 1,952
Others Hih 823 1,071
2,593,913 3,542,318

(iii) As at 31 December 2024, funds of the Group amounting to
approximately HK$1,665,038,000 (2023: HK$2,268,469,000) are
kept in the bank accounts opened with banks in the PRC where the
remittance of funds is subject to foreign exchange control.

Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following

il RZBEZNFE+ZA=+—H xEBEZNA
1,665,038,00078 7T (ZZ " =4F ! 2,268,469,00075 7T)
FRRPEIRTRARZIRTIRS  BEHESBZI

EEH -

REFFEEEYEUTEREIIE:

currencies:

As at 31 December

®w+=ZB=+—H
2024 2023
o 111 -3 2T =HF
HK$/000 HK$'000
FET FHExT
HK$ BT 635,664 569,390
RMB AR 1,732,685 2,452,654
us$ EP 635,607 456,668
GBP HiE 1,012 547
SGP N T 3,226 2,411
Canadian dollar (“CAD”) mEAT (MIEXRTT) 2,783 =
Others Hith 305 346
3,011,282 3,482,016

BEEH (RE) BRAR
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26 SHARE CAPITAL

26 B&7s

Ordinary shares of HK$0.0025 each
SREE0.0025BTZ HiER

No. of shares HK$'000
e FET
Authorised: EE
At 1 January 2023, 31 December 2023, \’:\Zgi:ﬁ—ﬁ —H-~
1 January 2024 and 31 December 2024 B =F+ZH=+—8">
“ETNUFE—B—HK
“EIMF+ZB=+—H 4,000,000,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: BRITRHR:
At 1 January 2023, 31 December 2023, T:gi_ﬁ A—8-
1 January 2024 and 31 December 2024 B =-F+”"A=+—H-
—EFE—HB—HK
“EINFE+ZA=+—H 2,776,833,835 6,942
Notes: et :
(@) Share award scheme (@ BRIDLZENETEY
The Company operates the Share Award Scheme for the purpose ANBIEFE—BRMEEE SEHETEER

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

of recognising and rewarding the contribution of certain eligible
participants to the growth and development of the Group and
providing incentives in order to retain them for continual operation and
development of the Group and attracting suitable personnel for further
development of the Group. Eligible participants of the Share Award
Scheme include the Group’s full-time employees, and Executive and
non-Executive Directors. The Share Award Scheme became effective
on 29 June 2021 and unless otherwise amended or terminated, will
remain valid and effective for a period of 10 years from that date.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, a total of 18,561,000
ordinary shares (2023: 18,339,000) were purchased by the trustee on
the Stock Exchange by utilising the funds allocated by the Board out of
the Company’s resources and be held in trust for the relevant eligible
participants until such shares are vested in accordance with the rules
of the Share Award Scheme. The aggregate purchase consideration is
of HK$6,815,000 (2023: HK$9,793,000) and the related expenses is
of HK$22,000 (2023: HK$33,000). No shares purchased by the trustee
have been cancelled during year ended 31 December 2024 (2023:
Nil).

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

2REDAEANRRRERIEERTUSER
RE WRERBLUISBZFAL SAEEERE
BEREE REPRIIGBEASKSEAERE -
TER - ZRNEBHIZEERSHEVRELE
B 2HESURRTRIFNTES - ZRHER
SRR B —FAAZTNBEXN BRIEZRH
BRI B ST R L BRI HZ B RS +F
AR B R E R

HEZZNE+ZA=1+—HIEE TTASE
BENA EWAT@T%E&E’J%%F P A S
18,561,00002 &8s (CTZ =4 18,339,000/ 7T)
jﬁu%?&ﬁﬁ%*a%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂ%hﬁ CBEEAM
RADRBERDREERIEBE AL EEERE
#36,815,000787T (& — =4 1 9,793,00078 7t) K AHRE
Bs2 422,00058 70 (ZZ2 =4 : 33,00057T) &=
ZETNFE+ZR=+—HIEFE S AMEE
HERBARGD CEZ=F 8-
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26 A7 (@
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26 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

BRApiEEN =T8I ()
ﬁi_v_IEE'F B=+—HIEEFE > ZFEAR
RETEAZ ZEKEFIBINT -

Share award scheme (Continued) @)
Details of the ordinary shares purchased by the trustee on the Stock
Exchange during the year ended 31 December 2024 are as follows:

(@)

Number of ~ Highest purchase Lowest purchase
ordinary shares price per price per
purchased ordinary share ordinary share
SREER SREER
BALEREE REHEEE RIEEEE
Thousand shares HK$ HK$
T BT T
Month of purchase Rﬁ)\ﬁ %

April 2024 “ETNFMA 174 0.47 0.44
June 2024 ,7473&/\)% 144 0.49 0.47
August 2024 “ZTMENA 960 0.35 0.29
September 2024 “ZE_WFENR 13,581 0.38 0.32
October 2024 —FMEL+A 1,842 0.44 0.40
November 2024 —EOE+—A 1,860 0.43 0.40

Total CLD 18,561

Details of the ordinary shares purchased by the trustee on the Stock
Exchange during the year ended 31 December 2023 are as follows:

HE-P-=G+-A=+—BLEE B
NRBHSFRBA 2 BB AR T -

Number of  Highest purchase Lowest purchase
ordinary shares price per price per
purchased ordinary share ordinary share
SREER SREER
BALERHE R=BEE RIEBEE
Thousand shares HK$ HK$
TR BT BT
Month of purchase BARMG
August 2023 ZZT=%)\AR 870 0.56 0.50
September 2023 —EBE_=FhAB 4,224 0.66 0.54
October 2023 TET=F+A8 6,891 0.56 0.52
November 2023 “E=F+—A8 942 0.55 0.47
December 2023 —ET=F+"R 5,412 0.55 0.48
Total L 18,339
There were no ordinary shares granted to grantees under the Share BRE_ZE_NFE+_B=+—HLEFE I

EREBERDRBAZFAABARTZER-
RIZEZ=F+—HB+tRH aZtaEREA
%%tljm 995,000 B > BN & N &R

AR P IR BN ST BB TR RMD A E RN LN
15,038,000%75o

Award Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2024. On 17
November 2023, a total of 31,995,000 ordinary shares were granted to
grantees and the share-based payment under Share Award Scheme of
HK$15,038,000 was recognised in consolidated income statement.

Bl (F) ARAT —z-maeasg 203



204

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GLAE RiEd (TS

26 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(©

(d

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

Share options of the Company

The Company operates a share option scheme since 2021 (the “2021
Scheme”) for the purpose of attracting, retaining and motivating
talented employees of the Group or associated companies (including
executive and non-executive directors) in order to strive for future
developments and expansion of the Group. Eligible participants of the
2021 Scheme include the Group’s full-time employees, executive and
non-executive Directors. The 2021 Scheme became effective on 18
May 2021 and unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain
valid and effective for a period of 10 years therefrom until 18 May
2031. No share option was granted under the 2021 Scheme.

Issuance of share option of VBill OPCO

On 15 January 2018, the directors and shareholders of VBill OPCO
have passed a resolution to conditionally grant options to several
management (the “Grantees”) of VBill OPCO pursuant to the terms of
a share option scheme for VBill OPCO (the “VBill OPCO Share Option
Scheme”) a right to subscribe up to approximately 12% of the enlarged
registered and paid up capital of VBill OPCO at the exercise price of
RMB12.51 within a period of 3 years from the date of grant. The share
options are fully vested as at 31 December 2018.

The VBill OPCO share option scheme was subsequently amended to
extend the exercise period from 3 years to 6 years until 5 February
2024 during the year ended 31 December 2020.

On 6 February 2024, the VBill OPCO Share Option Scheme was
terminated.

Issue of share option of Shenzhen Hi Sun

On 20 May 2024, the board of directors and shareholders of Shenzhen
Hi Sun resolved to adopt the share incentive scheme adopted by
Shenzhen Hi Sun (“Shenzhen Hi Sun Share Incentive Scheme”),
pursuant to which, Shenzhen Hi Sun granted options to the scheme
participants to subscribe for a maximum of RMB7,500,000 new
registered capital of Shenzhen Hi Sun at the subscription price of
RMB1.5. The life of the Shenzhen Hi Sun Share Incentive Scheme is
three years from the date of adoption, unless further resolved by its
shareholders.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

26 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(d)

Issue of share option of Shenzhen Hi Sun (Continued)

All the share option to be subscribed for under the Shenzhen Hi
Sun Incentive Scheme shall be held by the RIIBHKEARES
bz (BRE) (unofficial English translation being Shenzhen
Huan Qiu Jin Shi Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership)) (the
“Shareholding Platform”), a limited partnership incorporated in the
PRC with the general partner being Mr. Liang Jing Jing (“Mr. Liang”),
who is a director and substantial shareholder of Shenzhen Hi Sun and
the limited partners being Mr. Kang Chuang Sheng (“Mr. Kang”), who
is the general manager of the delivery centre of Shenzhen Hi Sun and
Mr. Zhou Jin Hui (“Mr. Zhou”), who is the key technical personnel
of Shenzhen Hi Sun (the “Shareholding Platform”). The scheme
participants shall only include all the general and limited partners of
the Shareholding Platform who are also employees of Shenzhen Hi Sun
as at 20 May 2024.

Vesting of the share options is subject to the fulfillment of the
predetermined financial targets of Shenzhen Hi Sun set for (i) each of
the financial years in the period commencing from 1 January 2024 to
31 December 2026 (the “Performance Period”); and/or (ii) the entire
Performance Period (which may be early fulfilled). Number of share
options to be vested depends on the level of financial targets met and
when such financial targets are met. All vested share options may
only be exercised within one year from the end of the Performance
Period, subsequent to which all Share Options remaining unexercised
shall lapse unless otherwise agreed by Shenzhen Hi Sun and the
Shareholding Platform.

Pursuant to the terms of Shenzhen Hi Sun Share Incentive Scheme,
each grantee may elect to request Shenzhen Hi Sun to repurchase up
to 30% of the subscription rights of his/her share options before the
time of exercise at a price to be determined with reference to the net
profits of Shenzhen Hi Sun (excluding any share option expenses)
for the financial year preceding the date of exercise, subject to a
maximum repurchase price of RMB10 per share option. In any event,
such repurchase shall only be carried out without adversely affecting
the general working capital of Shenzhen Hi Sun.

On the same date of the adoption of Shenzhen Hi Sun Share Incentive
Scheme, the board of directors of Shenzhen Hi Sun has also resolved
to grant the share options to the Shareholding Platform to subscribe for
7,500,000 shares options.

a0 A 5w R BT
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RIBERYS 5 RE st B8 BB RPT A R B
BEEMRINARGEEERIEREARESD
¥ ERED (HBRYa)FHE HEEEEAR
Rz EEREERREZRR (REE) WA
REBARRINBBEZA R OMREIERRIE TRk
&) BRI BRAE RS & ERE (BkE) o5t
B2HEEAENR "B _NFAA _+ATARY
BHEENEERRTEEBRAREBA-

BRENSBRISHEERREERTEZEMMNE
TETNE—-—B—HEEZZERE+"_BA=+—

BEHAR (FRIRHA) SMBEE ; K& RiEERR
HAFT ENTAE M5 B 1R (AR ATERR) - SR mIVRE
FEIERN B BURM PTERYR 75 B AR K T R Al 1 75
BRNEE -FrEERBEREEN N BRRRG
RES—(WERTTE HEMBRITEBERERS
R BRIERIIBEEFERTERENE

HRIE RS 5 IR 17 B 51 B BURAR > B AR A FTIE
BEERRNEHBRITEBRENBRAEBREDR
Z30%RIERIEME BB LET 2 E 17 B AT — B
FERISHEEFFHE CEETABRIEMSD
e I’Egﬁ@ﬁiﬁﬁﬁjﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁx@/\ﬁmmm°EAE
AERT  ARBRETRTHRIISHE—RKE
BSEEFARENBER T ET-

PIRG TS SR EE st RNER RSB E
%@iraa/%l‘jhﬂw?é}ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂy&u%%7,500,000
1P RERRHE -

—TFEFR
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26 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 26 BR7s @

Number of Number of

Share Options Share Options

held as at Granted Exercised Lapsed held as at

Exercised 1 January during during during 31 December

Grantee Date of grant price 2024 the year the year the year 2024

RZZ-NE RZZ-NEF

—A—BHEN +ZHA=+-H

ERA Rt 7@ BREHE FRRE FATE  FARN HENBRERE
(RMB)
ARH)

The Shareholding 20 May 2024 1.5 - 7,500,000 - - 7,500,000

Platform
rkTa “Z_mFERAZ+H

ZEBRENERHABR L AE3E-

The validity period of these share options shall be 3 years from
the date of grant.

RITERB IR EHE R EAER I T 6E
BESHUT

Movements in the number of share options outstanding and
their related weighted average exercise prices are as follows:

Average exercise price

in RMB per share option Options

B BRENTY
TEE (AR TR
(thousands)
(FB)
At 1 January 2024 S _E_WE—HF—H - =
Granted E-gan 1.5 7,500
Exercised 171E = =
Lapsed KU - -
At 31 December 2024 RIE-NFE+"A=+—H 1.5 7,500

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

Up to the date of this report, no option is exercised. Employee
share options expenses of HK$2,149,000 were recognised in
the consolidated income statement.

The weighted average fair value of options granted during
the year determined using the Binomial valuation model was
RMB1.08. The significant inputs into the model were exercise
price shown above, volatility of 48.23%, zero dividend vyield,
exercise multiple of 2.8 times, post vesting exit rate of 0% and
an annual risk-free interest rate of 1.99%.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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£ I B4
I";F =~ ", ;EE
27 RESERVES 27 f{#f&
Share Treasury  Contributed Other Exchange Retained
premium shares Surplus reserves reserve earnings Total
(Note (i) (Note (if))
R EE BRI BARG Hithhith ERf#E REEF EE
(o0 (Frzti)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER FER TEn
At January 2024 R-B-mE-A—H 1,063,153 98260 168434 (2450,541)  (208778) 8,621,551 7,183,993
Profit for the year ERER - - - - - 157,605 157,605
Exchange differences on translation of ~ HAEEIMIBABIEEZ
foreign subsidiaries ERER - - - - (78,696) - (78,696)
Reclassification of exchange reserve upon & i & A ] BN &
disposals of subsidiaries (Note 32) BEENDE W32) - - - - (62,942) - (62,942)
Share of other comprehensive loss of ~ EMAHE ATz EM2E
associated companies Eﬂéﬂ - w - - - - (78,498) - (78,498)
Release of reserve upon dilution of BE—RRE AR ERE
interest in an associated company B2 - - - - (1,426) - (1,426)
Share of other reserves of FEEEE AT 2 EftbEE
an associated company - - - 10,560 - - 10,560
Purchase of Company’s shares BAXRERG (Wat26@)
(Note 26(a)) - (6,837) - - - - (6,837)
Grant of share options under share RE—RKBABBRE
options scheme of a subsidiary SRR
(Note 26(d)) (fat26(d) - - - 720 - - 720
Deemed disposal of shares of RIFELE—RMRBARZ
a subsidiary 17 - - - (230) - - (230)
At31 December 2024 REBZME
+=B=+-8 1,063,153 (16663 168434  (2,439491)  (430340)  8779,156 7,124,249
Share Treasury  Contributed Other Exchange Retained
premium shares Surplus reserves reserve earnings Total
(Note (1)) (Note (ii))
RIVEE EFRH BARHG HikE ERGHE RERF CE
(Fyzt) (Hrsi)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TER FER TEn TER FER TEn
At 1 January 2023 RIBE-_=%—HF—H 1,003,153 (30,000) 168,434 (2,676,471) (86,544) 8,173,081 6,611,653
Profit for the year FRER] - - - - - 463,432 463,432
Exchange differences on translation of ~ HAEEIMIBABEEZ
foreign subsidiaries EREE - - - - (72,506) S (72,506)
Share of other comprehensive loss of — EIEBE AT 2 Ht12E
associated companies BB - - - - (49,913) = (49,913)
Release of reserve upon dilution of BE—-mHEARETE
interest in an associated company B2 G = = = = (2,981) = (2,981)
Change in value of a financial asset BATESAEMZE G
at fair value through other ZERMEEBEED
comprehensive income - - - (152,846) - - (152,846)
Share of other reserves of RS A B 2 At
P;&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%m%br HROREHBBALAT . . i - . . -
Share Award Scheme (Note 26(a)) AR (Mz226(a)) - (9,826) - - - = (9,826)
Issuance of shares under Share Award ~ 1RIRAR(A S2 B 51 B 31T RAD
Scheme (Note 26(a)) (Hz226(a) - 30,000 - - - (14,962) 15,038
Deemed acquisition of shares of RIFWERB ARG
subsidiaries
- Vbill (Cayman) — Vbill (Cayman) - - - 381,304 3,252 - 384,556
- Other —Hfh = = = (860) 59 - (801)
Deemed disposal of shares of RELE—RIRBRATN
a subsidiary (Note 37) R&tn (Hat31) = = = (1,595) 870 = (725)
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 32) HE—BIEAR (z32) = = = = (1,015) = (1,015)
At31 December 2023 RZBZ=%F
+ZB=+—H 1,063,153 (9,826) 168,434 (2,450,541) (208,778) 8,621,551 7,183,993

BEEH (RE) BRAR

ZEZEFR
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27 RESERVES (Continued)

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

Notes:

(i) The contributed surplus of the Group represents the difference between
the nominal value of the ordinary shares and share premium account
of Hi Sun Holdings Limited (“HSHL") acquired pursuant to the Group
reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) on 17 October 2001 as set out in
the circular to the shareholders of HSHL dated 9 August 2001, over the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange thereof.

(i) Major items in other reserves are as follows:

- the difference between the net proceeds from issuance of
convertible preference shares of subsidiaries and the amount
transferred to non-controlling interests upon their conversion into
ordinary shares in prior years;

- the impacts from granting employees’ incentive programmes of
subsidiaries and an associated company;

—  change in values of the financial asset at FVOCI;

- the initial recognition of the written put option liabilities; and

—  the recognition of gain/(loss) on the deemed disposals of
subsidiaries.

(iii)  PRC companies are required to allocate 10% of the companies’ net
profit to a reserve fund until such fund reaches 50% of the companies’
registered capital. The statutory reserve fund can be utilised upon
approval by the relevant authorities, to offset accumulated losses or to
increase registered capital of the companies, provided that such fund is
maintained at a minimum of 25% of the companies’ registered capital.
As at 31 December 2024, retained earnings comprise of statutory
reserve fund amounting to HK$105,955,000 (2023: HK$210,874,000).

28 TRADE PAYABLES, PAYABLES FOR PAYMENT

AND DIGITAL SERVICES BUSINESS AND OTHER
PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Material accounting policy

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Payables are classified as current liabilities if payment
is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value

and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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(iii)

FEEZ BEHBFERSHBERARAR ((SHEE
k) RRFEBRA-TZ—FN\BNBZBERFT
FOREN_TE-—F+ATLHETZEREAR
(TE4) FriE 2 B isER . B BREERRM &
EiR BARBRMILIG BETROBMEZEZE-

HM#EENEZEEHIWNT

- REEFEREESHRSTEREMETHEAR
FIRREBSTIR Z PSR S R E IR R 1
B ERL Z

- RUNBRAR—EHEATZESREE
HNEE;

— BATESAHtEERGD SREEEEE
#;

— FEIELNLREERE &

- EIRALENBARNNRE (&BH) o

PEABNER AT Z10%DEE#ES BE
ZREETEINRTFMELRZ50% EERBERR
BRAERMERITARIEHRTBEIEMATZ
HEMEL EZHEEERBEERNATSFZMES
Z25%KF - R ZB_MFEF+_B=+—H RE&
MEBEAEFHEEE05,95500087T (CET=F:
210,874,00087T) °

FEITARAR XA R B FERFBERZ
FEATRRIA Ry EL A FE SRR IE R fE 5t 7R IE

EREFHER
EURRAERREFERTAHERRER
mERBMES N ZEE - W NRIEZHE
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FRUAN REXBEBLEEBRAN AR

RERE)) BARBERDEARDER-T
Al 25RIEREa R
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28 TRADE PAYABLES, PAYABLES FOR PAYMENT 28 FE(IERFN - X REFILRFEEEZ

AND DIGITAL SERVICES BUSINESS AND OTHER FEASTRIE B ELth (T R IR R FE 5t R IR
PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS (Continued) 6=9)
As at 31 December
®+=ZRA=+—H
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHETT
Trade payables (Note (a) FERTERR (at(a) 427,433 596,415
Payables for payment and digital services {4 RBFILRIEERZ
business (Note (b)) FEAITRIR (B7aEb)) 2,623,537 3,591,920
Other payables and accruals (Note (c)) HAth &S R IA e FE 5T IE
(H152(c)) 925,445 932,745
3,976,415 5,121,080
Trade payables, payables for payment and digital services FERHBRAN s A R B RF 27~ R (I 7RIR
business and other payables and accruals are denominated in e LT FIB R FESHRIERR U T EHE5(E

the following currencies:

As at 31 December

m+=ZHB=+—H
2024 2023
—E-NmE TEI=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FEx
HK$ BT 86,850 75,176
RMB AR 3,540,065 4,808,511
us$ 7T 273,062 179,087
JPY H 18,545 10,337
EUR BNt 36,966 28,692
GBP HiE 13,565 13,823
SGD 0T 1,094 1,341
Others Hith 6,268 4,113
3,976,415 5,121,080

BERE (RE BRAT —z-mesEg 209
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28 TRADE PAYABLES, PAYABLES FOR PAYMENT 28 FE{HERT T KRB FILRFEEHEZ

AND DIGITAL SERVICES BUSINESS AND OTHER FE AR TR Be EL fth P& (S R TR R FE 51k TH
PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS (Continued) (&
Notes: Mzt :
(@) Trade payables @ FE(TERTR
As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the ageing analysis of the trade RIEMER_ZE-=F+"A=+—H &
payables primarily based on invoice date was as follows: REZ AR Z A IRTERE DTN T ¢

As at 31 December

®+ZHA=+—H
2024 2023
—EmE —E=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
Current to 90 days BPEAZE90H 422,633 318,313
91 to 180 days 91E180H 148 110,708
181 to 365 days 181E365H 14 156,504
Over 365 days 365H L E 4,638 10,890
427,433 596,415
The credit period granted by the suppliers ranges from 0 to 180 days. HEMR T ZEERN FOEI180H 2
(b) Payables for payment and digital services business b) ZAREFCRBES ZEARIE
Payables for payment and digital services business mainly represent I RBFCRBES 2 BAFEFEIEAEREA
payment received from the relevant banks and financial institutions on WEABRAIR T R SRR - BB EEANE
behalf of the merchants. The amounts are required to be settled with ENEERRREERER
merchants upon the respective contractual settlement clearance dates.
(c) Other payables and accruals (0 HMEHRIERERIE
As at 31 December
®+ZH=+—H
2024 2023
—E_mE —E=fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Current portion ENEAER 5>
Accrued staff costs and pension obligations EETBTMAKREBARESEE 223,907 256,214
Deposits e 33,667 35,154
Receipt in advance from customers (Note i) FELWERE B 2 I8 (Kfati) 27,382 24,023
Deposits from business channel partners REEHRESFEEANZS 445,864 424,893
Others EHih 193,934 192,461
924,754 932,745
Non-current portion JEBPERER 3
Other payables H AT RIE 691 -
925,445 932,745

210  HISUNTECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

28 TRADE PAYABLES, PAYABLES FOR PAYMENT

AND DIGITAL SERVICES BUSINESS AND OTHER
PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(c) Other payables and accruals (Continued)
Note:

() A contract liability is recognised when a customer pays
consideration, or is contractually required to pay consideration
and the amount is already due, before the Group recognises the
related revenue. The Group recognised its contract liabilities
under other payables and accruals as receipt in advance from
customers in the consolidated balance sheet.

Revenue recognised during the year ended 31 December
2024 that was included in the contract liability balance at the
beginning of the year amounted to HK$22,079,000 (2023:
HK$40,177,000).

29 BANK BORROWINGS

Current BNHA

Bank borrowings FRITIERR

a0 A 5w R BT

28 FEMIERTR A RAFIEIRBERZ

FEAITRIE R EL fth P& (S TR IE e FE 5K IR

)
Wizt :

(0 HEMENREREHRE (8
sz -

() BHNEERAEREDERERAR REFAZ
ARBEREORER LN NEESRETR
HER - AEENGREEEARRTHEDHE M
& IR FE S P S A B ERTAKIR
WERZMIE

REE_S_NE+-_B=+—HI-FE#D
W st AFEH & B EEERZ WA 322,079,000
T (CE =4 40,177,000587T) ©

29 $RITE®

As at 31 December

®W+=ZHA=+—H
2024 2023
—E-mE TEC=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
82,130 42,688

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, bank borrowings of the
Group borne a fixed interest rates and carried at amortised
cost. The bank borrowings approximate its fair value are
denominated in RMB and are repayable within 1 year.

As at 31 December 2024, the bank borrowings are not
pledged.

As at 31 December 2023, the bank borrowings are pledged by
buildings (Note 14), right-of-use assets (Note 15) and certain
loan receivables of the Group.

R _E_MER_E_=F+"_F=+—8>
REFERITERUBEEN X B > WIZHHL
KYER - BEHA T EBENRITERUARE
sHE WA FERER

S TETNFF+ A =+—H RITERTE
R o

ATE T =F+"H=+—H RITERBES
EEETF (ist14) ERESEE (F:315) K&
TREWERREHEF o

BERE chE) BRAT B MEER
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30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 30 IRIEFRISIR

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities FR REFMSMEEESE ST !
during the year is as follows:
Deferred income tax liabilities IRIEFRISIRERE
2024 2023
ZECmE -S4
Accelerated tax Revaluation of Accelerated tax Revaluation of
depreciation  intangible assets Total depreciation  intangible assets Total
MERERE EBHEESH = MERERE EBYEEER At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TEn FEn TEn
At1 January ®-B—H 17 28 255 40 2,666 2,706
Disposals of subsidiaries HEHBAT - (226) (226) = = &=
Credited to the consolidated income statement ~ stASGHRE (6) (6) (12) (23) 2,369) (2,392)
Exchange realignment ERER - ) (6) - (59) (59)
At 31 December R+=ZB=+-A 11 5 11 17 238 255
Set-off deferred income tax assets RHRILFERER (11) (238)
Deferred income tax liabilities, R+ZB=+—BH
net at 31 December EEMERaEE - 17
Deferred income tax assets IREFRSREE
2024 2023
—E-E —E=F
Revaluation of  Revaluation of
intangible assets intangible assets
BILBEESEN BEEESEM
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET TAET
At 1 January n—B—H (238) (268)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAE 217 =
Charged to the consolidated FFASRE W TR
income statement 6 23
Exchange realignment R 4 7
At 31 December R+ZB=+—H (11) (238)
Set-off deferred income tax liabilities I IREFTISIRaE 11 238

Deferred income tax assets,
net at 31 December

R+ZR=+—HK
BEEFTSMEEFE

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED
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30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

31

Deferred income tax assets (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carry forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax
benefit through the future taxable profits is probable. As at
31 December 2024, the Group had unrecognised tax losses
to be carried forward to offset against future taxable income
amounted to HK$1,105,634,000 (2023: HK$1,151,529,000),
which were subject to agreement with respective tax
authority. These tax losses have no expiry date except that
HK$761,945,000 will expire from 2025 to 2029 (2023:
HK$767,270,000 will expire from 2024 to 2028). The potential
deferred income tax assets in respect of these tax losses which
have not been recognised amounted to HK$218,143,000
(2023: HK$216,831,000).

As at 31 December 2024, deferred taxation has not been
provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect
of the withholding tax that would be payable on unremitted
earnings of certain PRC subsidiaries of the Group amounting
to approximately HK$323,483,000 (2023: HK$494,019,000)
as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

DEEMED DISPOSAL OF SHARES OF A SUBSIDIARY

In November 2023, VBill (Cayman), VBill Management
Shareholders and CodeOne Data Limited (“CodeOne”) (an
indirect partially-owned subsidiary of the Group) entered
into a subscription agreement (the “CodeOne Subscription”),
pursuant to which, VBill (Cayman) and the VBill Management
Shareholders Holdcos had agreed to subscribe for and
CodeOne agreed to allot and issue ordinary shares at
HK$4,000 and HK$12,893,000 respectively. The CodeOne
Subscription was completed on 1 December 2023. Upon the
completion of the CodeOne Subscription, CodeOne remains
as a subsidiary of the Group. The Group was deemed to have
disposed of approximately 2.24% of CodeOne, resulting in
a decrease in shareholding from 82.28% to approximately
80.04%.

30

31

a0 A 5w R BT

EIEFRISIE (@

IRIEFRISMEE (8

RIEFTISME ET R EERRIER R A 7 5E
FEABRESRRENEEMMAEE 2 NIE
BRERERR R _2-_NE+_-_/F=+—8>
NEBBAELULHEHBRERRUA Z RHE
AR IERT181,105,634,0008 T (CE =4
1,151,529,00087T) » I BEIS ZREEIERE
B bx761,945,0008 TN _E_AFE_Z
ZHERRER CE =4 : 767,270,000 7T
RIBZWEE T )\EHRREER 9 ZF
MRIBES I8 B Em B ff o At S M IBAS 185
R BERIEFR SR E E4218,143,000/87T (Z
T =4 1 216,831,000/ 7T) ©

A S NE+_RB=+—H BRAEET
PO R R R B R AR e Y
R E] BAR R [D] > B AR B A EE B S T A R
BRBIRERF Z EITEINMRA323,483,00078
To(CE T =4 :494,019,000870) RiF S B 75 R
RIEHIRIEFR B o

RIELE—RHB ARG

A2 =%F+—A VBill (Cayman)- VBillZE
[ER R R A BB D A B R B M E
BARAT (M) 5T R mE (USR8
E£IE)) I VBIll (Cayman) K VBIllEIEEHRER
FIRIF A B R EL4,00058 75 5212,893,00078 75
SORE T A [F) B B 85 R 3317 SRR o TG AR A
BN T =FE+ "B —HM R
HRESEE  MISNALREENKRB AR -
NEBGHEA B HEMIEA2.24%  EREES
82.28%/ N E4780.04%©
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B M BRI EE
31 DEEMED DISPOSAL OF SHARES OF A SUBSIDIARY 31 R{EHE—RMBATRG @
(Continued)
Loss on deemed disposal of shares of CodeOne Data for the BEEZ=—F+"_B=+—HLLFE RF

32

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

year ended 31 December 2023 is calculated as follows:

Hj’im QE%%(FHXHETJESE SR

For year

ended

31 December

2023

BHE

+ZR=+—H

FE

HK$'000

FHETT

Proceeds received from the CodeOne Subscription B MR BEEWE Z FrEmIE 12,893

Less: recognition of non-controlling interests i HESRIE IR (13,618)
Less: proportionate share of accumulated currency B REAID SN RETEEIRE
translation differences re-attributed to ERBEWEAFERE SR

non-controlling interests (870)
Loss on deemed disposal of shares of CodeOne 1 ELfth 3 4 e SR AV AR (F L1 & 4%

recognised in other reserves IR1n k58 (1,595)

DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a) Disposal of Hangzhou PAX Electronic Technology

32 HEMEBEAT

@ HEMMNEEEFRMAERAR

Ltd. (“Hangzhou Electronic”) and ¥ B {5 B if
BHIRAF (“Hangzhou Fushun”)

On 7 July 2024, Hangzhou Electricity Technology
Limited (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) and Pacific Sheen International Limited (an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company)
entered into a share transfer agreement with Zhejiang
Haochao Technology Co., Ltd., a third party purchaser
in relation to the disposal of the entire equity interests
in the Hangzhou Electronic and Hangzhou Fushun, two
indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, at a
total cash consideration of approximately RMB41,600,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$45,020,000). The share
transfers of Hangzhou Electronic and Hangzhou Fushun
were completed and upon which Hangzhou Electronic
and Hangzhou Fushun ceased to be subsidiaries of
the Company on 10 July 2024 and 28 August 2024,
respectively.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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32 DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 32 HEMBAT @
(a) Disposal of Hangzhou PAX Electronic Technology (@ HEMMNBEEEFRMAERAE
Ltd. (“Hangzhou Electronic”) and #iH Z B {5 2 if (THMEF) RN EIEE 2B
BPRAE (“Hangzhou Fushun”) (Continued) BRAR (MM EIEL) (8
At dates
of disposal
MEE B
HK$'000
TFAET
Consideration E 45,020
Less: Net assets disposed of: PR EBEERE !
Property, plant and equipment W~ BRI Fe st 14,659
Right-of-use assets FREEE 7,625
Intangible assets mILBE 6
Inventories 78 22,334
Other financial assets at amortised cost HEH AT EN
HhSpEE 540
Other current assets HiRgh&EE 4,120
Trade and bills receivables JFE U BR = e FE U 2 4% 7,435
Cash and cash equivalents BENBEEEY 14,653
Trade payables FE AT BRR (42,810)
Other payables and accruals HREARIE & FE 5T IE (21,278)
Deferred tax liabilities FIEFTIEMM AR 9)
7,275
Add: Release of exchange reserve upon disposal AN o RS EE B R L RV B 2 Rk 63,331
Gains on disposal of Hangzhou Electronic and R RmREDZHE
Hangzhou Fushun recognised in consolidated TNEBF RN EIEZ W s
income statement 101,076
In the consolidated cash flow statement for the year RBEE_Z_NFE+_B=+—HLFE
ended 31 December 2024, net cash inflow from NEGEaRERERT  HEMNEF K
disposal of Hangzhou Electronic and Hangzhou Fushun MNEBERYIRE R A JFEE30,367,0008 7052
of HK$30,367,000 represents proceeds received of WL PR1S7RIR45,020,0008 TTRP HE R T K
HK$45,020,000 less cash and cash equivalent disposed of F&EBEY14,653,0008 7T °

HK$14,653,000.

Bl (F) ARAT —s-mEgg 215
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32 DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b) Disposal of Diansansan

Beijing Tianque Technology Limited (“Beijing Tianque”)
(an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
Changsha Yuan Wang Software Technology Limited, an
existing shareholder of Diansansan (an indirect partially-
owned subsidiary of the Company), which is principally
engaged in provision of payment and digital services
(collectively the “Existing Shareholders”), Zhou Zhen, Ma
Da and Zhao Qun (collectively the “New Investors”) and
Diansansan entered into a capital injection agreement (the
“Capital Injection Agreement”), pursuant to which, the
New Investors had agreed to subscribe for an aggregate
of approximately 30% of the enlarged registered capital
of Diansansan at subscription price of RMB1,400,000
(equivalent to HK$1,520,000). Upon the completion of
the Capital Injection Agreement, the Group'’s interest in
Diansansan decreased from 70% to 49%. Diansansan
ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company and was
accounted for as an associated company of the Company.
Consequently, the financial results of Diansansan will no
longer be consolidated into the consolidated financial
statements of the Group and its assets and liabilities
will be deconsolidated from the Group’s consolidated
financial statements. The Group accounts for its interests
in Diansansan as an investment in an associated
company initially at fair value and will share the results of
Diansansan as an investment in an associated company
using the equity method going forward.

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024

32 HEMBEATE @

(b) HERM==

AR EEHB AR KRR A RAT
(MEREXRR) BV 2ERGEMERA
8 (—REAR R RMEB D ER KB AR
== (FEWSREZIREFERY B
INBRLE @B IRABE]) ~Zhou Zhen~
Ma DakZhao Qun (4i%8THIREE]) Bih
==FTiAERE (TEERBZE) it 3
KEEDREUART 400,000t FHE
1:1,520,0007870) BIRIE BB S EAI30%
BB = = RKIBAFMER - REMFE W
SEE AEERE = =HERA70%EE
49%° M= = FBAKXABNMNEB AR I
ARA B NBIWEE AT cFHIL B5==
N B EEBTBEHARNERNGEH
BRER HEERBRTIABEHASR
EENGETBREN - AEEPT UL
FEBHNRE= =S ARY AR BE
REIRERE > WA KRR AR IEZ —
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32 DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 32 HEMRBAE @
(b) Disposal of Diansansan (Continued) (b) HEM== @)
At date of
disposal
RHERE
HK$'000
FHT
Consideration RE _
Less: Net assets disposed of: B PTHESESE
Property, plant and equipment Y E RV 33
Right-of-use assets EREEE 639
Intangible assets BB E 2,525
Other financial assets at amortised cost R IER AT B EMER
BE 190
Other current assets HMR#EE 683
Trade and bills receivables FE LT B 0 e P LU R 9% 8
Cash and cash equivalents HEkREEBY 397
Other payables and accruals H At R IA K FE 5T 7R IE (348)
Lease liabilities HE&E (665)
3,462
Less: Non-controlling interest disposed of W E SRR (3,999)
Less: Release of exchange reserve upon disposal P E R AVEE R (389)
Loss on disposal of Diansansan recognised in RiFERmREDLHE
consolidated income statement ==mE1E (7,850)
In the consolidated cash flow statement for the year ended RBEE_Z_MNE+_B=+—HLEE
31 December 2024, net cash outflow from disposal of NEHRERERT HEM==-NIRE
Diansansan of HK$397,000 represents cash and cash TR EEA397,0008 T RRHENIRS
equivalent disposed of HK$397,000. KR E(EY) %4397,000/8 7T

Bl (F) ARAT —s-mEsg 217
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32 DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(c) Disposal of Qumaimai (Shenzhen) Network
Technology Company Limited

32 HEMBEATE @

(0 HEBEE (R PEFBERAR

On 15 June 2023, the Group disposed of its 100% equity ﬁ/\‘: T _—FATAB XEEU
interests in Qumaimai (Shenzhen) Network Technology EHENBEE (R AREXERAR
Company Limited (“Qumaimai”) to a third party at the (MBEE)) N100%KEFE=7 1
consideration of RMB1 (equivalent to HK$1) upon which BRARBIT BERTET) »HEX

the Group lost its control over Qumaimai.

EERREHHBEERES -

At date of
disposal
RHERE
HK$'000
FHTT
Consideration B
Proceeds received BUFrERIA .
Less: Net liabilities disposed of B PTHEaEFEE 2,262
Add: Release of exchange reserve upon disposal m: R EREL 2 ERELR 1,015
Gain on disposal of Qumaimai recognised in RirE W m REDRHE
consolidated income statement ==l g 3,277

* The balance represents an amount less than HK$1,000.

* o EEERIE/DIN, 000 TR ER

In the consolidated cash flow statement for the year ended RBEEZZ=F+ZA=+—H1
31 December 2023, net cash outflow from disposal of FENGEREMAER LEBEEN
Qumaimai of HK$231,000 represents proceeds received IRE T F%8231,0008 4 B WS
of HK$1, less cash and cash equivalent disposed of REVBTREMEERERESEE

HK$231,000.

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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33 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 33 &Z8IRERERMET

STATEMENT

(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to cash

(used in)/generated from operations

SR ZHIR

@ PFRFRISIRATERRRLEES FRA) Fr

For the year ended
31 December

BE+T-_A=t—HLEFE

2024 2023
“EmE —ET=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Profit before income tax from BREFISTREDRF] 174,633 478,987
Adjustments for: RE
Depreciation of property, plant ME B E KRR ERE
and equipment 42,263 97,457
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CRESENE 29,374 28,908
Depreciation of investment properties REMETE 179 173
Amortisation of intangible assets BV EEH#H 352 1,484
Share-based payment LARGAR 7 BBy 2 A 2,149 15,038
Fair values losses on financial assets at FVPL, BAFEFABRZEHEEY
net RFERBERFE 8,804 6,436
Derecognition of written put option liability RIEERBATESI ARG Z
at FVPL B L RERR - (4,863)
Gains on disposals of property, HEME BB REE 2 W
plant and equipment (208) (103)
Write off of property, plant and equipment WEEIZE BB s 88 6
Impairment of intangible assets BEEERE - 20,837
Impairment of investment in REERBZRERE
associated companies 141,307 22
(Reversal of provision)/provision for inventories 175 (B EH:E]) /s (686) 1,942
Share of results of associated companies FELE AT A (213,160) (402,949)
Gain on deemed acquisition BABEREE—EHE AT RERY
and dilution of interest of W B R
an associated company, net (4,906) (1,973)
Gains on disposals of subsidiaries, net HENBASZWEFE (93,226) (3,277)
Credit impairment loss EERERSE 49,638 56,505
Interest income F B WA (141,520) (73,758)
Finance costs =i 1,895 3,757
Operating (loss)/profit before working capital ~ &EE B2 K& (§518) &7
changes (3,024) 224,629
Decrease in bank deposits RITERRLD - 467
Increase in inventories FEIEm (3,286) (3,226)
Increase in trade and bills receivables FE W AR 0 e FE U 2 455 3 10 (23,370) (12,429)
(Increase)/decrease in loan receivables FEWRE R (m) /mb (350,077) 989,730
Decrease/(increase) in other financial assets at ~ HE#HM A 22 At EMEE
amortised cost b () 7,981 (101,332)
(Increase)/decrease in other current assets HthhshZE tgm) /mb (13,528) 22,246
Decrease in amounts due from FEUSH & A B) 2 FUE R D
associated companies - 156
Decrease/(increase) in restricted bank balance for 3214 BB FLERFEEH 2
payment and digital services business ZIREIRITAEER L (GBI 862,012 (2,516,313)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and bills payables, — FE{TRRFNRIEMESE I REF1(E
payables for payment and digital services AR5 275 2 AT ARIE L R HoAh
business and other payables and accruals FEATRIE R FE 5T CRlrD) 1210 (950,726) 2,631,620
Cash (used in)/generated from operations & (FRrA) /FiisiRsE (474,018) 1,235,548
BRI CFE BRA —zomesg 219
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33 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 33 ZaRE£REXRM:E @
STATEMENT (Continued)
(b) In the cash flow statement, proceeds from disposals (b) REEFRERDP  HEWE -HEKRR
of property, plant and equipment comprise: HARSRIAELE :

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=t+—HiEE

2024 2023
—E-mE o=
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#T T
Net book amount (Note 74) AREVFE (W5E14) 21 419
Gains on disposals of property, HEVME- -BERZEZ
plant and equipment Wi 208 103
Proceeds from disposals of property, ~ HEYIZE B E MR ESUE
plant and equipment 229 522
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (c) MEIFEEXZEEHIR
activities
This section sets out the movements in liabilities arising REFIE2NNFERETHELZEE
from financing activities for each of the years presented. bEEL
Asset-hacked
securities  Bank borrowings Lease liabilities Total
BEXHES RITHER fREaR Ch
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEr TiEr TiEn TR
As at 1 January 2023 RZEZ=F-F—H 265,058 55,748 29,829 350,635
Cash flows Eﬁi/ﬁi (259,268) (11,550 (31,908) (302,726)
Additions HE - - 46,512 46,512
Exchange realignment ERHE (5,790) (1,510) (949) (8,249)
As at 31 December 2023 RZEZ=F+ZA=1-H - 42,688 43,484 86,172
As at 1 January 2024 RZE_ME—A—-H - 42,688 43,484 86,172
Cash flows REne - 41,645 (34,494) 7,151
Additions HE - - 28,789 28,789
Disposal of a subsidiary LE-BHEAT - - (665) (665)
Exchange realignment ERHE = (2,203) (1,44) (3,447)
As at 31 December 2024 RZE-ME+ZA=1-H - 82,130 35,870 118,000

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

34 FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS

In 2020, the Company entered into a guarantee agreement
(the “2020 OEM Guarantee Agreement”) with Megahunt
and an independent manufacturer (“OEM”), pursuant to
which the Company shall guarantee to repay Megahunt’s
due and unsettled debts of up to US$10,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$78,000,000) owed to the OEM incurred in relation
to manufacturing orders placed against the OEM should
Megahunt cease or fail to honour its payment obligations.

In 2021, the Company entered into a guarantee agreement (the
“2021 Manufacturer Guarantee Agreement”) with Megahunt,
Megahunt Microelectronics Limited (“Megahunt HK”) and
Tianjin Megahunt Microelectronics Company Limited (“Tianjin
Megahunt”) pursuant to which the Company shall guarantee
to repay the due and unsettled debts of Megahunt, Megahunt
HK and Tianjin Megahunt individually and/or collectively
of up to US$20,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$156,000,000) incurred in relation to manufacturing orders
placed against a named manufacturer, should any of Megahunt,
Megahunt HK and Tianjin Megahunt individually and/or
collectively cease or fail to honour its payment obligations.

As at 31 December 2024, the provision for financial guarantee
contracts was assessed to be immaterial (2023: same).

a0 A 5w R BT

34 MFBHRESH

AR TTE AABEIGIIEER —REIL
gl (RR{ERGSE) STUERRE (ZF
“EFRREREEERGE) oI MIKR
IBEEIERREBTHARET A QT EIE
REBIKEZERIKIEEZERRREHEE AR
TEARRESTERS ISR RREREEHY
SR R EBIRHIEFE T #83510,000,000% 7t (18
E1278,000,00077T) ©

RIEBT—F> ARFEIKIEE  JKAME T
BRAT (DKREE) RREIABETFTHEME
BB (KRB 5T iERpE (T2 —
FRISHIERIE)) odRIE > MIKEIEEE  JKER
ERRFBIKER R, HHEEEIEZREES
TEMRET AR BEBEFREEIAIEE
KAEBRR BN B —RIEE SR T iE
RS BAS I BM B R REENEE BB
20,000,000 7t (FEE 52 49156,000,000787T) ©

RIZTNE+"A=+—H BHEREN
ZEHEETMETEAER CEZZF 1 HR) -

BERE chE) BRAT —ECmEES
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35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As at 31 December 2024, Rich Global Limited (incorporated in
British Virgin Islands) owns 22.22% of the Company’s shares.
The remaining 77.78% of the shares are widely held (2023:

same).

(a) Transactions with related parties
Except for those disclosed below and other than those
disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group has no other significant transaction
with related parties during the year ended 31 December
2024 (2023: same).

35 BERRS
R_E_NE+_BA=+—H REBRRE
E5Ef AL ZRich Global lelted%ﬁZK@E
22.22%B&AD o BR T77.78% RS A ALEZ
BE (CEZ=F 4R -

@ HRERZRS
BR N X BEE e ir & M B iR R H A A
DFFRBEEN WBEE-_S"HFE+-A
=T—HLEFE AEBRTEERER
THMEARS CE=F 1 HF) -

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=t+—HiEE

2024 2023
—EME —T=fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHTT
Transactions with PAX Global, HMEANTAERKZR S !
an associated company:
— Rental income (Note i) —MHEUWA Hati) 348 1,411
— Purchase of electronic payment —BEETNER Wati)
products (Note ii) 15 -
— Service charges (Note iii) — R ER (H7a2iii) - 287
Transactions with Beijing Fangyun, HBENBIERAEZ
an associated company: X5
— Consultancy fee (Note iv) —s8:08 (Hstiv) 598 =

Notes:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

Rental income from an associated company was charged at a
fixed monthly fee mutually agreed between the two parties.

Purchase of electronic payment products was transacted pursuant
to the terms and conditions set out in the framework agreement
entered into by the Group and an associated company dated
19 December 2012. The terms and conditions of the framework
agreement were subsequently renewed on 31 December 2015, 5
December 2018 and 23 December 2021 respectively.

Service charges were transacted pursuant to the terms and
conditions mutually agreed between the two parties.

Consultancy fees were transacted pursuant to the terms and
conditions mutually agreed between the two parties.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 35 FERRS @
(b) Balances with associated companies (b) EAHHE QT Z4EER
As at 31 December
w+ZA=+—H
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TFET
Amounts due from associated FEUR B E A B FRIE (faEi)
companies (Note i) 6,304 5,000
Less: Provision for impairment R E R (531) =
6,273 5,000
Amounts due to associated FETBE AT FRIE (Bati)
companies (Note i) 4,160 4,295
Note i: As at 31 December 2023 and 2024, these balances are WaEi: WIEZ=FRZEINE+ZB=+—
denominated in RMB and HK$, unsecured, interest-free and B> ZEEREIUARBEBTHE A
repayable on demand. R TR R EERERE
(c) Key management compensation o TEEEEZHE
During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, key BE_Z-_MNMER-_Z=F+"A
management compensation is equivalent to the directors’ =t+t—HLEFE - TEEEEZ2HEN
and chief executive’s emolument as disclosed in Note 37. ERME7AREZEERITEHARZ
[
SRR (FE) BREAT —BTNEFR
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36 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVES MOVEMENT OF

THE COMPANY

Balance sheet of the Company

FARZEERER

36 ZATZEERBERKMHEEE

As at 31 December

m+Z-A=+—H
2024 2023
“EME EC=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FAT
Assets BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment properties S B 505 763
Right-of-use assets EREEEE 16,676 17,436
Investments in subsidiaries RSB AR Z®RE 807,027 907,074
Investment in an associated company R —EEE AR ZKE 259,770 259,770
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 1,083,978 1,185,043
Current assets RENEE
Other current assets HihRsh&EE 1,199 1,069
Other financial assets at amortised cost &Rt E 2
HMEmBEE 1,524 1,384
Financial asset at fair value through BATEFABGRZ
profit or loss TREE 878 833
Amounts due from subsidiaries e N NI/ R 673,493 665,009
Cash and cash equivalents BERIEEFEY 781,479 684,279
Total current assets MENE EAE 1,458,573 1,352,574
Total assets BEEHEE 2,542,551 2,537,617
Equity i
Capital and reserves attributable to TAREBEANBEES
owners of the Company K f#E
Share capital 52N 6,942 6,942
Reserves ot (Note a)
(Biz#a) 1,426,317 1,418,504
Total equity REmAa%E 1,433,259 1,425,446
Liabilities =R
Current liabilities REA&E
Other payables and accruals HEN B R
FEst IR 33,296 34,711
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEIH B AT RIE 1,061,196 1,062,660
Current income tax liabilities BNHAFS R aE 14,800 14,800
Total current liabilities BB R 1,109,292 1,112,171
Total liabilities I=Ripks] 1,109,292 1,112,171
Total equity and liabilities EEkaEEsE 2,542,551 2,537,617

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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36 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVES MOVEMENT OF 36 ATz EEBERLEEEH @

THE COMPANY (Continued)

Balance sheet of the Company (Continued)

Note (a): Reserves movement of the Company

AR ZEERER (B

Wista): FARZ EHEED

Share Contributed Retained
premium  Treasury shares surplus  Other reserves earnings Total
(Note)
e fn a1 EFRH BREES HithiE REBRH ast
(=)
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FER FHET FHET FHET FHET
At 1 January 2024 RZE-mE-A—-H 1,290,857 (9,826) 46,417 26,900 64,156 1,418,504
Profit for the year FRiET = = = = 14,650 14,650
Purchase of Company’s shares for ~ FERR{7EEISHEIFEA
Share Award Scheme (Note 26(2)) ~ IATIBRIR (Hi3226(a) = (6,837) = = = (6,837)
At 31 December 2024 RZE-mE+=A=+-H 1,290,857 (16,663) 46,417 26,900 78,806 1,426,317
At 1 January 2023 RZ®Z=F-F—H 1,290,857 (30,000) 46,417 26,900 4128 1,338,302
Profit for the year FREF - = = = 74,990 74,990
Purchase of Company’s shares for ~ FIR{AREIHBIBA SR T RA
Share Award Scheme (Note 26(a)) (H73226(a) = (9,826) = = = (9,826)
Issuance of shares under Share RIRAID IR BN 51 BB TIRD
Award Scheme (Note 26(a)) (Hit26(a) - 30,000 - - (14,962) 15,038
At31 December 2023 R-®2-_=%+-A=+-H 1,290,857 (9,826) 46,417 26,900 64,156 1,418,504
Note: izt :

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess of the
fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the
reorganisation over the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange thereof. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, a company
may make distributions to its members out of the contributed surplus under
certain circumstances.

TRBZEHRFIERBEAFMBBZINBRRRMN A
FEBBAABFMIEIAZ BETROEEZSE R
BRE-NN—FREZE ARIEETER THESRE
BRI AR ER A E AR R EH 72Kk

BEEH (RE) BRAR —TFEFR
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37 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 37 EEZEMRiERD (GFEL LR

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF (58622%) $3831% AT REES
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE FEERD $RH (55622GE) REA L
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE HRAERIEL )

OF INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND
HK LISTING RULES)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (@ EFRITHESRZME
The remuneration of every director and the chief executive BREERITHRIZMESEHINT :
is set out below:

For the year ended 31 December 2024: BE_Z_NF+_A=+—HILEFE:

Emoluments
paid or
receivable
in respect
of director’s
other services
in connection
Remuneration with the
Employer's paid or - management
contribution  receivable of the affairs
Estimated toa  inrespect of the
money value retirement  of accepting ~ Company or
Discretionary Housing of other benefit office as  its subsidiary
Fees Salary bonuses  allowance henefits scheme director  undertaking Total
HER
BHER
FARE
WEREE  EMEAR
HtrfEH Bfz  AEFz EHZEM
fhat BRI B REZER
ik & BREA  REEM O AREE  HEfR BUME  SREE Eh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fin TEn T T FEn TET T T T

Executive directors HITES
Kui Man Chun REE ((THEF)

(Chief Executive Officer) - 4,355 7,000 - - 18 - - 11,373
Xu Wensheng st = 4,685 7,000 = = 18 = = 11,703
Li Wenjin ZXEB = 3,815 6,600 = = 18 = = 10433
Xu Chang Jun #HEE - 3979 6,600 - - 18 - - 10,597
Hui Lok Yan (Note (i) TR () = 2,395 1,700 = = 18 = = 4113

Independent non-executive BUFHTES

directors
Tam Chun Fai ERE 300 = 350 = = = = = 650
Leung Wai Man, Roger 2ER 300 - 350 - = = = = 650
Li Heguo FHE 300 - 350 - = = = = 650
Total &t 900 19,229 29,950 = = 90 = = 50,169

226  HISUNTECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2024



My, Mgy Ty, Uy gy "SI NEEEEEEERREC " _Lul 7

L} ] ] LN} nl

0 -:'h:*'r bt .:....llIIII.IIII-.'..::III :

A .'l;*.'l..;.l. :. EEEEm I.-ll'll...:.'-.l“ I
Kn, k | - s -- i i

|'I LI L R ® .--_:!!- ...-!!::_--I-.-F,_- a4

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R e B R N R

37 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 37 EEZEHNRiER (GFELTER

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF (58622%) $3831% - AT REES
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE FIZEHE) A (5622GE) REAL
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE HRAERELIES) @

OF INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND
HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments @ EBEFRITHAHKZME (&)
(Continued)
The remuneration of every director and the chief executive SREZRTBAESZNEHIINT : (@

is set out below: (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023: BE_Z_=—F+_A=+—HLEE:

Emoluments

paid or

receivable

in respect of

director’s other

services in

connection

Remuneration with the

paid or - management

Employers  receivable of the affairs

Estimated ~ contribution ~in respect of the
money value to a retirement  of accepting ~ Company or
Discretionary Housing of other benefit office as it subsidiary
Fees Salary bonuses  allowance benefits scheme director  undertaking Total
BHER
EINGE

AERZE  EWELT

HitizA) Bfz REEz  SHZHM

fist BER BN HEzEd
ik Bz BBEEL  REER EBEE MR Rl SRR &t
HKS000 ~ HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK§000  HK§'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER TER TER TER

Executive directors BTES
Kui Man Chun REE ((THEF)

(Chief Executive Officer) - 3,020 8,000 - 3,760 18 - - 14,798
Xu Wensheng [3€3 = 3,315 8,000 = 3,478 18 = = 14,811
Li Wenjin EXE . 2,660 7,600 - 3478 18 . S B
Xu Chang Jun #es - 2,956 7,600 - 3476 18 - S 1050

Independent non-executive ~ BUFRTES

directors
Tam Chun Fai EinE 300 - 350 - - - - - 650
Leung Wai Man, Roger RER 300 - 350 - - - - - 650
Li Heguo FHE 300 - 350 - - - = = 650
Total At 900 11,951 32,250 - 14,192 72 = = 59,365
Note (i):  Hui Lok Yan was appointed as an executive director of the Kizi): HHERR _E_NFE=FERTAAR AT

company in March 2024. BiTES-

BRI (FE) BRAS —zomEsg 227
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37 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE
OF INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND
HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

Directors’ retirement benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits during the year (2023: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any
termination benefits during the year (2023: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company
did not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available directors’ services (2023: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

During the year ended 31 December 2024, there are no
loans, quasi-loans and other dealing in favour of directors,
or controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities
with such directors (2023: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed, no significant transactions, arrangements
and contracts in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year (2023: Nil).
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38 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL 38 HthBESASHEENE
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BIGEEARKESRE AR
(a) WiEBLE]

38.1 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity where the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power to direct the
activities of the entity. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible and rights arising from other contractual
arrangements are considered when assessing whether
the Group controls another entity. Subsidiaries are
fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date that control ceases. If the changes of the
relevant facts and circumstances resulting in changes
of relevant elements in the definition of control,
the Group will re-evaluate whether subsidiaries are
controlled.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group (refer
to Note 38.2).

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
income statement, consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated balance sheet
respectively.

BEEH (RE) BRAR

B RS AERERZENEZAE
B (REEBTEEE -E4£ERS
HEEZEEMESAARETEHA
BO1%R - WA EREIEEERES
ZHENTE LB AEERHZ
BEREAERE AL AEEENH
S—EEEEAERER AEET
EREREFEERERNERNE
FERABUREMENRHERE
MkHEZE B ABREHEEE
EXAEEERR2BRG AR IR
EHIERIEEREABES AR W
RIBAEEMN BRIV CEEH T
EERPMIRNBRERE LS
FEEEMAEESEFZSIMNEA
o

AEERBWEEEHEBERSHAR
FE2REMEE38.2) ©

EEABMZRARERS EEFkE
SR Z W T U - REIREE
IRE T LIRSS BRIFA RIS 5 B
HBREEENREER - WBATDZE
SAHRERBERE URFRALE
E R 2 R E R —E

N NZYNSIES SV Saii N2 g
DRABI2FNEERER RS
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38 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

38.1 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Continued)
(b) Structured entities

(c)

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

Structured entities are entities that have been
designed so that voting or similar rights are not
the dominant factor in deciding who controls the
entities, for example when any voting rights relate
to administrative tasks only, and key activities are
directed by contractual agreement. Structured entities
often have restricted activities and a narrow and well-
defined objective. Examples of structured entities
include trusts, securitisation vehicles and asset backed
financings.

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A
change in ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests
and any consideration paid or received is recognised
in a separate reserve within equity attributable to
owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of
control or significant influence, any retained
interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value
with the change in carrying amount recognised
in the consolidated income statement. This fair
value becomes the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associated company, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect
of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income are reclassified to
the consolidated income statement or transferred to
another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRS.
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38 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL 38 HEBESAEHEEHNE @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

38.1 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting 381 FAARKESEHERR (B

(Continued)

(c) Changes in ownership interests (Continued)
If the ownership interest in an associated company
is reduced but significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to the consolidated income statement
where appropriate.

38.2 Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises
the:

e fair values of the assets transferred

e liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business

e equity interests issued by the Group

e fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement, and

e fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired
entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

) HERERZED (&
HE S AR 2 A R B
REEATE ALAREMEE
Wb 2 SRR AIERNEE
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38 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL 38 HMEBESAEHEEHNE @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

38.2 Business combinations (Continued) 382 £ EH @)

The excess of the:
e consideration transferred,

e amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired
entity, and

e acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair
value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired,
the difference is recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement as a bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is
deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted
to their present value as at the date of exchange. The
discount rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing
rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be
obtained from an independent financier under comparable
terms and conditions. Contingent consideration is classified
either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified
as a financial liability are subsequently remeasured to
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to
fair value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses
arising from such remeasurement are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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38 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL 38 HEBESAEHEEHNE @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

38.3 | M FFER R

38.3 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investments. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.

38.4 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the Company’s
functional and the Group's presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at year end
exchange rates are generally recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated income statement on a net basis within
“administrative expenses”.
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38 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

38.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b)

(c)

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

Transactions and balances (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when fair value was determined.
Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried
at fair values are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. For example, translation differences on
non-monetary financial assets and liabilities such as
equities held at FVPL are recognised in the profit or
loss as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation
differences on non-monetary financial assets, such
as equities classified as financial asset at FVOCI are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign operations
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(ii) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and

expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of

the transactions); and

(iii

=

all resulting currency translation differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment in foreign
entities, and of borrowings, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation
is sold or any borrowings forming part of the net
investment are repaid, the associated exchange
differences are reclassified to the consolidated income
statement, as part of the gain or loss on sale.
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38 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL 38 HEBESAEHEEHNE @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

38.4 SMEIE (8
() FEBEETAE (#)

38.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(c) Group companies (Continued)

()

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate.

Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
or a disposal involving loss of joint control over a
joint venture that includes a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of significant influence over an
associated company that includes a foreign operation),
all of the currency translation differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation attributable to
the owners of the Company are reclassified to the
consolidated income statement.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result
in the Group losing control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, the proportionate share
of accumulated currency translation differences are
re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in the consolidated income statement. For
all other partial disposals (that is, reductions in the
Group’s ownership interest in associated companies
or joint ventures that do not result in the Group losing
significant influence or joint control) the proportionate
share of the accumulated exchange difference is
reclassified to the consolidated income statement.
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38 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

38.5 Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate cost
to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as
follows:

Buildings 5%
Leasehold improvements 20% or over lease terms,
whichever is shorter

Office furniture and equipment 18%-33%
Plant and equipment 10%-33%
Motor vehicles 18%-25%

The assets” residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within “administrative expenses” in the
consolidated income statement.
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38 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL 38 HEBESAEHEEHNE @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

38.6 Investment properties 38.6 REME
Property that is held for long-term vyields or for capital PSRN GNEARTHERME 2
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the % RIIFRARERGR2YE 908

Group, is classified as investment property. The cost of
an investment property comprises its purchase price and
any costs directly attributable to bringing the property
to its intended use. After initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate cost of the investment property over its estimated
useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 5%

Subsequent expenditure is included in the asset’s carrying
amount only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the
consolidated income statement during the financial period
in which they are incurred.

If an investment property becomes owner occupied, it is
reclassified as property, plant and equipment.

38.7 Intangible assets

(@) Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included
in intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised but it
is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
it might be impaired, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on
the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount
of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is
made to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the
business combination in which the goodwill arose.
The units or groups of units are identified at the lowest
level at which goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes, being the operating segments.
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38 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

38.7 Intangible assets (Continued)
(b) Brand name, customer list and contracts, patents and
capitalised software development costs
Separately acquired brand name, customer list
and contracts, patents and capitalised software
development costs are shown at historical cost less
amortisation.

Brand name, customer list and contracts, patent and
capitalised software development costs acquired in a
business combination are recognised at fair values at
the acquisition date.

Costs incurred on development projects (relating to
the design and testing of new or improved products)
are recognised as intangible assets when it is probable
that the project will be a success considering its
commercial and technological feasibility, costs can be
measured reliably, there is an intention to complete
and use it, there is an ability to use it, there will be a
probable future economic benefits inflow and there
are adequate resources to complete and use it. Other
development expenditures are expensed as incurred.
Development costs previously recognised as an
expense are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent
period.

Brand name, customer list and contracts, patent and
capitalised software development costs have a finite
useful life and are subsequently carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of
them over their estimated useful lives (2 to 5 years).

(c) Computer software
Acquired software are capitalised on the basis of
the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software. These costs are amortised over their
estimated useful lives (3 to 5 years). Costs associated
with developing or maintaining computer software
programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred.
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38 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL 38 HEBESAEHEEHNE @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

388 FFEMBEEZRE

38.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite
useful life are not subject to amortisation and is tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be
impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at each reporting date.

38.9 Investments and other financial assets

(a) Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

— those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income, or
through profit or loss), and

- those to be measured at amortised cost.
The classification depends on the entity’s business

model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.
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38 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

38.9 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

Classification (Continued)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in the consolidated income
statement or other comprehensive income. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held
for trading, this will depend on whether the Group
has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment at
FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments have expired,
or when a financial asset is transferred, the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership, or when the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all risks or rewards of ownership
of the financial asset but has not retained control of
the financial asset.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at FVPL, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial asset carried at FVPL are
expensed in the consolidated income statement.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest.
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38 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

38.9 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
(c) Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends

on the Group’s business model for managing the asset

and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There
are three measurement categories to classify the debt
instruments:

(i)

Amortised cost

(i)

Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance
income, except for interest income generated from
loan receivables which is included in revenue,
using the effective interest rate method. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition is recognised
directly in the consolidated income statement.
Impairment losses are presented as separate line
item in the consolidated income statement.

Fair value through other comprehensive income

Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows and for selling the financial assets,
where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured
at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount
are taken through other comprehensive income,
except for the recognition of impairment gains
or losses, interest income and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in the
consolidated income statement. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from equity
to profit or loss. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in
“other gains, net” and impairment expenses are
presented as separate line item in the consolidated
income statement.
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38 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

38.9 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(c)

(d)

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

Measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)
(iii) Fair value through profit or loss

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or
loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at FVPL is recognised in the
consolidated income statement in the period in
which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to
the consolidated income statement following the
derecognition of the investment. Dividends from
such investments continue to be recognised in the
consolidated income statement as “other gains,
net” when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL
are recognised in the consolidated income statement
as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of
impairment losses) on equity investments measured at
FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes
in fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the
ECL associated with its debt instruments carried at
amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
(“HKFRS 9”), which requires expected lifetime losses
to be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables.
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38 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL 38 HEBESAEHEEHNE @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3810 IESHERE T A

38.10 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the consolidated balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Company or the counterparty.

38.11 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work in
progress comprises raw materials, direct labour cost and
related production overheads (based on normal operating
capacity). Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

38.12Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s
equity instruments, for example as the result of a share
buy-back or a share-based payment plan, the consideration
paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs
(net of income taxes) is deducted from equity attributable
to the owners of the Company as treasury shares until the
shares are cancelled or reissued. Where such ordinary
shares are subsequently reissued, any consideration
received, net of any directly attributable incremental
transaction costs and the related income tax effects,
is included in equity attributable to the owners of the
Company.

Shares held by the trustee are disclosed as treasury shares
and deducted from contributed equity.
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38 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

38.13Bank borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair values, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan
facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to
the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until
the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated balance
sheet when the obligation specified in the contract
is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of a financial liability that
has been extinguished or transferred to another party
and the consideration paid, including any non-cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in
consolidated income statement as finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless, at the
end of the reporting period, the Group has a right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the
reporting period. Covenants that the Group is required to
comply with, on or before the end of the reporting period,
are considered in classifying loan arrangements with
covenants as current or non-current. Covenants that the
Group is required to comply with after the reporting period
do not affect the classification.
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38 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL 38 HEBESAEHEEHNE @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

38.14 Borrowing cost 38.14 fERR A

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of
time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

38.15 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period. The discount rate used to determine the present
value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to
the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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38 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL 38 HMEBESAEHEEHNE @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

38.16 Dividends 3816 B 2

246

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.

38.17 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset
is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The group allocates the consideration in the
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on
their relative stand-alone prices.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than
the security interests in the leased assets that are held by
the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the fixed lease payments.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.
To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group,
where possible, uses recent third-party financing received
by the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to
reflect changes in financing conditions since third party
financing was received.
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38 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL 38 HEBESAEHEEHNE @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

38.17 Leases (Continued) 3817 HE (&)

Lease payments are allocated between principal
and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the
consolidated income statement over the lease period so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
amount of the initial measurement of lease liability and any
initial direct costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of premises
are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in
the consolidated income statement. Short-term leases are
leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is
a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis
over the lease term (Note 15). Initial direct costs incurred
in obtaining an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the underlying asset and recognised as expense
over the lease term on the same basis as lease income. The
respective leased assets are included in the consolidated
balance sheet based on their nature. The Group did not
need to make any adjustments to the accounting for assets
held as lessor as a result of adopting the new leasing
standard.
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Summary of Financial Information
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A summary of the published consolidated results and of the B ERERM B RRRRBERBREYZ
consolidated assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five FEEBEREATREESAMGREEGER
financial years, as extracted from the audited financial statements mOEERaEMENT

and restated as appropriate, is set as below:

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+—HLEE
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
ZEImE ZBI=f TIF EBEI-H IZIEZHE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT TR TET TR FET

Results %5

Profit attributable to KRB ER NG EF)

owners of the Company 157,605 463,432 939,416 3,521,526 656,685
Assets and liabilities BERAR

Total assets BERE 11,858,778 13,031,718 11,455,311 10,818,808 9,717,099
Total liabilities BB (4,135,902)  (5,253,700)  (3,901,029)  (3,327,814)  (3,349,595)

Capital and reserves attributable to A FEHE AFEM
the owners of the Company BXREHE 7,131,191 7,190,935 6,618,595 6,423,304 5,542,066
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